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Corporate Profile

NEIFN

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited has been listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 2003.
The Group is the leading producer of fermentation-based amino acids, food additive
products and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Asia. Our products are sold to food distributors, international trading companies,
and manufacturers of food, paper, textile, and
chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan
and several European countries. Most of our products
are marketed under the VEDAN brand name.
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Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group’s production has been undergoing
continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group
is currently the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian
region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in
Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group
further acquired the assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan
Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business
operations center in the PRC, signifying its determination and
commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure
the Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production
platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai
Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Corporate Information

REEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EE &
Executive Directors Hl{TE =

YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) YRR (£/E)

YANG, Cheng #1E

YANG, Kun-Hsiang iR iE
(Chief Executive Officer) (1T #E %)

YANG, Chen-Wen R

YANG, Kun-Chou 15 18

Non-executive Directors JEHITESE
HUANG, Ching-Jung =ERE
CHOU, Szu-Cheng A GE
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CHAO, Pei-Hong HIER
KO, Jim-Chen LR
CHEN, Joen-Ray R B I
HUANG, Chung-Fong S

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES £ E{ &R

YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Kun-Hsiang

COMPANY SECRETARY QS E
WONG, Wai Yee, Ella =ER

AUDITOR 1% & Eff

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
'K E G SRR AT

HEDSHED

SRR AR E R AL A
EBEPIREKRFKRE2212

LEGAL ADVISORS % {&EERI

Deacons

5th Floor, Alexandra House, 18 Chater Road,
Central, Hong Kong

BT RENIT
EAPRIRIEITE 18RE L KESE

REGISTERED OFFICE iS5

Second Floor, Century Yard,
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,
Cayman Islands

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR
RE#ERBBRELE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Second Floor, Century Yard,

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103,

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR R BBRERHE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
HEERERARAR
BERERKRER183FREMA 05412

04 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT

INTERNET ADDRESS H Ei484841k

Website #83t :www.vedaninternational.com
Email address B ES it :vdi@vedaninternational.com

STOCK CODE B&{7 X8k

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMESRX AR 02317

Bloomberg 218 : 2317 HK

Reuters B&%5 : 2317.HK

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS & E & 2 jth 2k

Vietnam Office # it = &=

National Road 51, Hamlet 1A,

Phuoc Thai, Long Thanh District,

Dong Nai Province, Vietnam

Tel: (84) 251-3825 111

Fax: (84) 251-3543 160
HEREERIEBREEMSIEESFIAS
BEEE 1(84) 251-3825 111

{8H :(84) 251-3543 160

Shanghai, China Office F1E LGt E &R
No. 518 Lianying Road, Chedun Town,
Songjiang District, Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (86) 21-5760 2525

Fax: (86) 21-5760 2030

FRE LRI & B IR I R 51858
E5E 1(86) 21-5760 2525

f§H :(86) 21-5760 2030

Xiamen, China Office FEEFIMEE
568, North Tong Ji Road,

Tong-An District, Xiamen City,

Fujian Province, PRC

Tel: (86) 592-712 8111

Fax: (86) 592-702 9274
FEEEREMTRZEREILEK5685E
EEE 1(86) 592-712 8111

{8H :(86) 592-702 9274

Taiwan Office &I EE

18 Jinhua Street, Shalu,
Taichung, Taiwan, ROC

Tel: (886) 4-2665-2178

Fax: (886) 4-2665-6463
REEPmVEEIRERG18R
% 1(886) 4-2665-2178

{8 H :(886) 4-2665-6463

Cambodia Office TIHEWEE

KY iCenter, level 22, Room 2206,

No.41, Street 360, Sangkat Toul Svay Prey 1,

Khan Boeung Keng Kang, Phnom Penh, Cambodia
Tel: (855) 23 885 688

RFPRTBEIRE

T T B 1 5% @ 360%4 15722182206 F

5% 1(855) 23 885 688

Hong Kong Office &M EE

Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980-1888

Fax: (852) 2861-0285
BAEREKRER183F/EMA 05412

B 5% 1(852) 2980-1888

f$H :(852) 2861-0285



Financial Highlights
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BE+-B=1+—HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2021 2020
Us$'000 Us$'000 Difference
FEx FEx =8
Revenue Wt 382,361 360,741 6.0%
Gross profit EF) 60,373 72,556 -16.8%
Profit for the year KEEHF] 11,032 16,677 -33.8%
Profit attributable to owners %A AESEF 11,014 16,650 -33.8%
Basic earnings per share SRELRT 0.72US cents £l 1.09 US cents Al
Diluted earnings per share SRR 0.72 US cents £l 1.09 US cents EAl
Final dividend proposed per share RKESRRARKS 0.162 US cents Efll  0.462 US cents Al
Total dividends paid and B Rtk
proposed per share BRESHEE 0.434 US cents Efll  0.656 US cents Al
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REVENUE
BE AEGGEH Uy &
in US$'000 F37T in US$'000 F37T
25,000 500,000
20,000 400,000 357,857 360,741 382,361
! 15,563 16,650 ! ! ! —
15,000 300,000
11,014
10,000 F 200,000
5,000 100,000
0 0
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021
REVENUE BY PRODUCTS REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION
HERDEZWE & o8z W
12 months ended 31 Dec 2021 12 months ended 31 Dec 2021
H#E_T-_—F+"A=t+—HI+ZEA H#E_T-_—F+"A=t+—HI+ZEA
9.8% 83%
(o)
75% 6.8%
5.6% 7.6%
59.4% 44.3%
177 % 16.6%
16.4%
. ;ifﬁsgg%s:ﬁsonings . Specialty Chemicals . \ée%nam . ;Sgg*
LS -t EIET
m;?\lwgesdt :::;:d Vallose Fertilisers and Feed Products . éla;:n . ;S
SR  RARHRESE
" o o
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Yang, Tou-Hsiung
1 S I
ChairmanZ &

Armed with modern technology and
sound management, we have successfully created a number of
quality products to cater to the consumers’ tastes and demands.
BERAREREAEE RMHZEEEER
P& HEENOKRME K-




Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRESE

Looking at 2021, the global economy was still suffering from the
heavy blow dealt on by the COVID-19 pandemic (the “pandemic”).
Economic activities in major regions had been restricted and the
consumption remained slow. Quarantine restrictions have been
imposed in many regions, leading to a shortage of containers,
inconvenience in transportation, and soaring logistics costs. In
addition, the transportation and supply of various raw materials and
energy such as coal and petroleum were difficult and the prices had
risen sharply. Consequently, the risk of inflation hiked. Economic
growth of the world’'s major economies, including the United States,
European Union, the PRC and in Asia, Central and South America
were dragged down, making the overall business environment
uncertain. The pandemic in Vietnam, the Group's largest market,
has gradually spread since the second quarter of last year. To control
the pandemic, the local government had implemented strict social
distancing policy and imposed stricter requirements on the labour
conditions of enterprises to continue production. This largely affected
the production and sales activities in most regions in the second half
of the year. Meanwhile, as its major trading partners have been also
impacted by the pandemic, which adversely affected export sales of
products, leading to a slowdown in the overall economic growth of
Vietnam.

During the year, the Group's revenue amounted to approximately
US$382,361,000, an increase of approximately US$21,620,000
or around 6.0% against the previous year. Revenue of several key
products of the Group, including starch, maltose, soda, hydrochloric
acid, fertilisers and feed products as well as trade products and
coffee beans distributed in the PRC, rose due to significant increase
in the demand. Moreover, gross profit for the year was approximately
US$60,373,000, a decrease of 16.8% when compared with last year,
and gross profit margin fell to 15.8%. The decline in gross profit was
mainly because the pandemic outbreak in Vietnam in the second half
of the year impacted the production and sales and the ocean freight
rates increased sharply. Net profit for the year was approximately
US$11,032,000, a decrease of approximately US$5,645,000 when
compared with last year, and the net profit margin fell to 2.9%.

08  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B3 BIRE (2282) BRA S

RER2021E > 2REBENZIMEERKBSE
B (EE) G2 STEHENEETHER
FRH HEMNE - RZEHERK T IRERG
EREEER ERAE YRMRARE M
ERBERMEERR AHRFERERHER
B BERAELR BEEREARAR 2KE
BREKE OEXE BB -PE-TM PR
EMNENEEERBIER BREKERER
mEH - EERATSUEETEAEFE _FEE
BERHEN - REGEE EMBNERT
BENEREERRMEEERBELEENS D
BHERBEZIER EFTFEAZEENE
ERFHETHRIEEREENTE - R
AETEEZBHOERRBRERNTZE,
FRIERINE EHEEREEEREERMN
TR

FER EREEBAIRT2EEET BREFE
HIN492,1628 & IRFA4I6.0% - EEKEIE
FEER OFERN THE BT HE L
FARETEENBZRIERRMBEE EHES
PEEEIRF+ BB AE M- B FAREFL
6,0378E > REFTE16.8% > EFXEE
15.8% B THREZEHANR THFFURIEEDN
REHEENHEEREE URESEERK
18 EARFAE - ERFM AN 1038 = BE
FETPRRAS65BETT FHERE2.9%



Chairman’s Statement

EFREHRESE

Performance of different products sold in the Group’s major markets
varied during the year. In Vietnam, the Group recorded a growth
in the revenue from products such as starch, chlor-alkali products
and fertilisers and feed products due to rising market demand, but
the government adopted strict pandemic prevention measures due
to the outbreak of the pandemic at the end of the second quarter,
which posed constraints on both production and sales activities.
In particular, the implementation of social distancing measures in
different regions for a period of time made the end sales difficult,
which dragged down the overall revenue of the Group during
the year by 0.7% against last year. Regarding the Group’s PRC
operation, the revenue from MSG, seasonings and starch slightly
decreased compared with last year due to reduced sales volume.
However, the revenue from the trade products distributed by the
Group such as bulk food ingredients and coffee beans during the
year achieved notable growth when compared with last year due to
the better-defined sales regions and strengthened sales channels.
Hence, the overall revenue of the PRC grew by approximately 34.9%
compared with last year. Furthermore, as for the operation in Japan,
the economy was still recovering slowly. Therefore, the Group has
adopted a flexible sales strategy to meet local demand. Sales of
products such as MSG, modified starch, fertilisers and feed products
grew slightly, resulting in a slight increase of approximately 2.7% in
overall revenue compared to last year. The ASEAN market saw faster
recovery with stronger demand. Sales volume of major products, such
as MSG, modified starch and fertilisers and feed products increased,
and the revenue of this market rose by 11.3% year-on-year during
the year. In addition, in the United States, since the skyrocketing
ocean freight rates and the shortage of containers had made shipping
arrangements difficult, the revenue dropped by around 2.2%.

ERSTENHEAKEZREBERTEERARER
KR -THETS WARY HEERLEH
HMEERMEATHEERLA  ERMNBGEIER
BRE_FREZBIEE BUFRINEED
BER EEERBEHRIRG LHE—
RS MBI IR ERCRIGHE
TR HRERNERBRBENREETA
0.7% EEMETEENEES T BAKE
AR ERDEERL  WAREFEMT
%, AMERARFTEMEMBIEEFEZNER
mAHEENBRABR B EWREE
BRBABEZER FBTEEEEZENRRE
FEFAK349%-Fo BEAMBHEELE
HEFEHERSEE SEREAEHTER
BTEMZHERE SEEED  WKE-
gk BRANFHE9RNMEE R BRE
BB EFMAN2.7% RANIZMERIR
BREER FTENHEER KIFE - SHERH
HEEHHESRAEM EFARITEEE
ZEWRAHERI1.3% BRIz EES
LRSEERFRREEMER ME LR
B EREWTERA2.2% -
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRESE

By product category, the Group's major products, namely MSG
and seasonings, were affected by the outbreak of the pandemic
in Vietnam in the third quarter, and were subject to considerable
restrictions on production and transportation. Consequently, the
overall revenue fell by approximately 2.2% compared with last year.
Regarding the Group’s another key product, modified starch, the
supply and price of its main raw material, cassava, stabilised when
compared with last year and the product recorded a stable growth in
Japan and Vietnam due to the launch of new product specifications.
As a result, sales and revenue of modified starch increased. Maltose
was another key product of the Group that also benefited from the
stable price and supply of raw materials and the introduction of high
value-added products, boosting the sales volume during the year.
In particular, maltose achieved satisfactory growth in Vietnam and
the US, and therefore revenue from starch products and maltose
increased by approximately 7.0% against last year. Observing the
market potential and development prospects of these products, the
Group is working hard on the development of these products and
their variants, hoping to offer more diverse and high value-added
products.

As for hydrochloric acid and soda products within the specialty
chemicals segment, market operation slightly recovered during the
year with increase in sales volume, and overall revenue of specialty
chemicals products increased by 13.3% against last year. With regard
to the Group's fertilisers and feed products, overall sales of fertilisers
and feed products increased by approximately 15.6% year-on-year as
a result of the Group's efforts in securing new customers, meeting
market demand, consolidating sales channels and improving product
mix. To capitalise on the rapid growth in the consumer goods industry
in Vietnam, the Group is negotiating with internationally renowned
brands and modern retail logistics service providers on product
distribution and joint operation of the Vietnamese modern logistics
channel market, aiming to diversify the Group’s operation and
expand its scale of operation. As for distribution of trade products in
the PRC, including bulk food ingredients and coffee beans, revenue
surged notably during the year and recorded year-on-year growth
of approximately 63.0%, primarily due to the Group's strategy to
strengthen product mix and sales network.

10 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B/ B (2:A2) AIRAS
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mREEE=FERIRERENTE &
SERERHTIEENRG BEBERRE
FTRO22% EES-—HEZHNEMRH
Em REREAAZRHHERAERREER
EoMEERTRERE FEHE BEEHS
ERENER CEEERBEMERNFERE
WiEm-ERS -—HEENEFRER  BF
RERRBRHERREHERASHMEEGE
miER HEEN LEEMERXEE R
BHER FHEARNMERBAETEZEE
BEREFEMA7.0% EEEAEEERILE
EmRHmENENEER REONEEER
HHEHERZAE NERSTCERER
RESZERWMER-

S ERECERTHNEREAKITER &
RZHEEERECREEHAMRE HE
Em FEESECEREREREERHA
133% - ERNEENEANEREE BHNE
BERNAERER REmERER BAHE
BRANZERES EANBREEHERE
FRANIS 6% ZENBEHEREERR
Rk EEERBRNGMERAFATEYR
BARNERRE RARGHEEEHERA
MImERTG  UIENEEREERE  BRE
BRE- I EPEENAREMEMGEE
FESEmAE EEEBRICERESH
HEME FRERRBEN BREFERY
63.0%°



Chairman’s Statement

EFREHRESE

Looking ahead to 2022, the Group expects to see continuous supply
shortage in various international and local raw materials, energy
and packaging materials, thus prices will remain high. The conflict
in Eastern Europe broke out in February is also set to bring a certain
degree of negative impact on finance, raw materials and energy.
As such, the Group will face greater uncertainties in its operations
and be more seriously affected this year. Inflation risk will continue
to rise and demand will turn more conservative, coupled with other
uncertainties such as price competition of various products, rising
international shipping costs and the COVID-19 pandemic. These
all will trigger concerns for the Group’s operations. In view of this,
the Group will strive to secure major sources of raw materials and
alternative sources to stabilise production costs, timely adjust and
enhance sales strategies, hasten the development of new products
and the pace of entering strategic alliances and save various expenses
so as to improve the stability of its business operations at a faster
pace.

Although overall economic activities in Vietnam have slowed down
slightly due to the impact of the pandemic in the short term, the
country is expected to substantially resume its development potential
when the pandemic improves, backed by its advantageous overall
operating environment and the signing of trading agreements
including EVFTA, UKVFTA and RCEP with ASEAN, EU, the UK and
other regions and countries. Therefore, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic and will continue to operate in steady strides, enhance
operational flexibility so as to grasp opportunities and quickly
respond to the fast-changing operating environment. Building on its
solid long-term business foundation, the Group believes its businesses
will continue to advance along the right development track and all
members of the Group are well aware of the opportunities and its
responsibilities in the changing business environment. The Group
will adopt a pioneering and active approach, and with pragmatism
and prudence, execute the planned operational strategies, in order
to achieve greater breakthroughs and development in its results and
operation.

By Order of the Board

Yang Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

22 March 2022
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STANDING OUT
IN A SPECIALISED
INDUSTRY
RIEREFIEZEH
R E




As a successful long-term player in a market with significant entry barriers,
Vedan International has distinct competitive advantages that add real
value to its products. With advanced expertise in large-scale fermentation
technology, starch processing conversion technology and chemical and
electro-chemical technology, Vedan International is developing new products
which represent the latest breakthroughs in industrial science and look set to
be major profit drivers in the future.

KAERFAIESHNEXZATRES MERERPIZIIES RRAR/ES

BRGFEZENMEENBEREmP A AR EZEEE BRHM

THRCEMBRECREE SR KA EIFR b3 R E X 20
W En AR AREFEEREE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRRA

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2021, the global economy benefited from the growth in
consumption expenditure and capital inflow, and trading
of goods actually exceeded the pre-pandemic level. Global
economic growth therefore rebounded strongly from the low
point of =3.41% in 2020 to 5.54% in 2021. However, as the
effect of the monetary and fiscal stimulus began to weaken
and there were major disruptions in supply chains, economic
growth momentum had slowed down significantly at the end
of 2021. Many economies faced rising inflationary pressure
and freight logistics shortages which led to a surge in costs,
adding extra risks to the economic recovery. At the same time,
the emergence of Omicron, a mutant strain of COVID-19, has
triggered a new wave of the pandemic which is expected to
result in additional life and economic loss, and create new
challenges.

Continuing its outstanding anti-pandemic performance in 2020,
Vietnam became one of the countries with the fastest economic
growth in early 2021. However, due to the outbreak of the
fourth wave of the pandemic since May and in response to
the changing pandemic situation, the Vietnamese government
launched various social distancing measures and travel
restrictions such as the three localization policies, produce
locally, rest locally and live locally, in the following months.
As a result, Vietnam’s economic development was affected
again and moved forward on a bumpy track. Despite this,
as the vaccination rate increased, Vietnam began to enter a
“new normal” in the fourth quarter with production gradually
recovering and industries beginning to regain vitality. The
annual GDP growth rate was 2.58%, lower than 2.91% in
2020 and a record low in more than 30 years.

14 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B/ B (2:A2) AIRA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRR A

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Overall revenue and gross profit of the Group’s main products,
starch and maltose, improved, benefiting from the slowdown in
the rise of raw material costs and also the Group’s continuous
effort to develop new highly functional products. As fuel and
raw material costs surged, industry competition intensified
and acceptance of price adjustments was slow, gross profit
of MSG and seasonings products dropped sharply. As for
specialty chemicals, the selling prices and gross profit of soda
decreased notably due to greater price competition in the
market. Hydrochloric acid, however, recorded an increase in
sales volume and selling price. Hence, both overall revenue
and gross profit of specialty chemicals products were better
compared with last year. As for fertiliser and feed products, the
Group focused on consolidating channels, adjusting product
mix and developing high-margin products. Among other
products, the Group's sales volume of and correspondingly the
revenue from coffee beans and bulk food ingredients notably
increased, reflective of the Group's effective sales strategy. In
2021, the Group's revenue amounted to US$382,361,000,
an increase of 6.0% or US$21,620,000, while gross profit
decreased by 16.8% or US$12,183,000 from the previous
year to US$60,373,000. The Group's overall gross profit
margin decreased from 20.1% in 2020 to 15.8%. Net profit
was US$11,032,000, a decrease of 33.8% or US$5,645,000
from the previous year. Net profit attributable to owners was
US$11,014,000, which was 33.8% or US$5,636,000 lower
year-on-year. Net profit margin decreased from 4.6% in 2020
10 2.9%

-

EiGEE (3
EEFEERTPHNRMEEEREZER
FERRZARIEEAE  WiIFEARE S
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BRERAEERERE RANEERSEF
Emoltih HMERTHMBERATRE
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EEREwmR O

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

The emergence of the Omicron mutant strain at the end
of 2021 showed that the pandemic continued to present
uncertainties which again brought disturbance to the economy.
Although 2022 is expected to be another year of economic
growth as the global economy continues to recover, growth in
the year is expected to slow down since the massive fiscal or
monetary policy support from governments and central banks
at the beginning of the pandemic has receded. The post-
pandemic economic recovery is different from the economic
recovery in the past as unexpected supply chain bottlenecks
have occurred. At the same time, the tight supply in the labour
market has caused labour shortage in enterprises, which has
pushed up wages and contributed to inflation. Many developed
economies have seen significant increase in debt levels over the
past two years. Interest rate hikes may trigger risks to financial
stability and may expose emerging markets and developing
economies to risks and challenges associated with capital flows,
currency and fiscal positions. Geopolitical tensions continued,
and in particular the situation between Russia and Ukraine
may trigger wider global risks. The current climate crisis also
indicates that the possibility of major natural disaster events
remains high.

Vietnam was one of the few countries most successful in
containing the pandemic. Although economic growth was
below expectation in 2021 due to the pandemic, its long-
term economic growth momentum remains stable, facilitating
it to be the production base of many enterprises. Vietnam has
also been actively engaging in regional economic and trade
consolidation such as signing free trade zone agreements
including the Free Trade Agreement (FTA), the Comprehensive
and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP)
and the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP)
with developed economies such as the UK, EU and the PRC.
That plus Vietnam's efforts in speeding up infrastructure
construction, nurturing skills of labourers and improving quality
of labour and systematically simplifying various procedures
through electronic processes have favoured the overall
development of the country. In response to the influence that
the changing international economic environment may have on
the Group, Vedan will adhere to its prudent operating strategy,
strengthen the operation, management and integration of
its supply chains and seek to form strategic alliances with
companies within the industries which it operates or other
industries as well as step up the development of high-value
products in order to enhance the Group's core competitiveness
and create greater value in its operations.
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BEEENRR A

Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS

(1) Sales Analysis by Market

— EEDW
(—) WBHED

Unit:US$'000 B FTETT
2021 2020 Difference
—E--& _ECEF =8
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Country Ex &8 % &5 % &8 %
Vietnam e 169,363 44.3% 170,547 47.3% -1,184 -0.7%
Japan Bz 62,832 16.4% 61,195 17.0% 1,637 2.7%
PRC ==l 63,447 16.6% 47,016 13.0% 16,431 34.9%
ASEAN REBEX 29,067 7.6% 26,112 7.2% 2,955 11.3%
us E3Ei| 26,132 6.8% 26,717 7.4% -585 -2.2%
Others Hith 31,520 8.3% 29,154 8.1% 2,366 8.1%
Total &t 382,361 100.0% 360,741 100.0% 21,620 6.0%
Vietnam BEHYE

Vietnam is the Group's largest market. During
the year, revenue from the Vietnam market
was approximately US$169,363,000, down by
approximately US$1,184,000 or 0.7% when
compared with 2020. Its share of revenue
generated by Vietnam also decreased from 47.3%
to 44.3% mainly due to the fourth wave of the
pandemic. Production was partly affected, end-
sales of MSG proved difficult while external
sales and logistics were disrupted amid a long
period of social distancing policy, resulting in an
unsatisfactory performance. Nonetheless, the
Group adjusted the selling prices of modified starch
and maltose in response to market changes and
strengthened inventory control and management
measures, thereby boosting production efficiency
and effectively boost sales volume and revenue. The
performance of hydrochloric acid and soda products
also improved along with the increase in market
demand. As for the fertiliser and feed market, the
Group adjusted the product structure of fertilisers
and feed products by adding new high-end
products, which stimulated unit prices and revenue.

HERERE—ATE £R
B4 %169,363,000E 7T
820205/ #91,184,000
ETHO0.7%  E UL EE A
47 3%PEFEA4.3% - INE T
THEWRTE FERNUES
MEREIERE REFENGT
REHEBRET AEZHBE
2 RIE R E R SN
VMRS E EMEERNTE
HA o SEARGNIL - B R R
HHENERNRETSECHA
Be@ ratEEEEHRE
EME BUMEAHESHNE
iR BERAKITERN
EBRNUBEERHBTERIE MM
R AR FREANTIS
EERAOURESHREER &
BEAEEREHE THHE
BEAEKIER-
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BEEENRRA

Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

2.

Japan

Japan is the Group’s second largest market.
Although the pandemic remained volatile during
the year, the Japanese economy improved over
2020. The MSG consumption market rebounded
slightly, leading to a small growth in revenue.
Regarding the modified starch market, the Group
continued to expand new customer base and
product applications, and develop products with
higher added value, thus overall revenue still
substantially grew. Revenue for the year was
approximately US$62,832,000, an increase of
approximately US$1,637,000 or 2.7% over 2020,
but its share of the Group’'s revenue fell from
17.0% to 16.4%.

The PRC

Revenue from the PRC market was approximately
US$63,447,000, an increase of approximately
US$16,431,000 or 34.9% over 2020, and its share
of the Group's revenue increased from 13.0% to
16.6%. During the year, revenue in the PRC market
increased significantly. Although the performance
of seasonings only improved slightly compared
with the previous year, the Group effectively
executed its strategy to enlarge its scale of business
by enhancing its product mix, expanding sales
channels and stepping up development of and
cooperation along its industry chain, helping boost
the sales volume and revenue of trade products
and coffee beans it distributed in the country. As
the market stabilised, MSG's revenue also increased
significantly compared with 2020.

The ASEAN Market

The Group’s revenue from ASEAN countries
(excluding Vietnam) was up by approximately
US$2,955,000 or 11.3% year-on-year to
approximately US$29,067,000, and the revenue
contribution increased from 7.2% to 7.6%. Both
sales volume and revenue of MSG products rose
benefitting from effective execution of its sales
strategy. ASEAN countries remain the Group's
key development market. With this in mind, the
Group aims to leverage its advantages in the
industry, expand other businesses with its core
products, establish closer partnerships, and further
develop sales channels, and ultimately achieve
breakthroughs in sales.

18  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT

- BESW (@&
(=) WBHE D ()

2.

A& %S

BAAEBE _AHiH  H
RERNEBERE  BE2020
FERKBRFIER KEHE
MmIEHAL A > SEWERM L
FrorBERMTS £E@F
BRECHMEHRAERER
EiBEESNMEEER
RERESKRCSGHEER
FRELLI62,832,0005E 7T
2020518 10491,637,000%
TTH2.7% > HERE WA B
17.0%PEZE16.4% °

H @

AEFPEHBEERNS
63,447,000 75 » BR2020%F
N4 16,431,000% T8
34.9% UL EER13.0%1%
Z£16.6% c FEHIHERE I
AL BEARF AR ZER
BRAEHMEE BRHPE
EFRIEZ 8 5 E &
ERRICEMRMBEHEYE
REE RAEXEH#HNEREHNA
BIE BEERERRRIES
WoHEESHEXEREE
BRI KIBERTHE
B BEER2020FENEBE
ERFA

BHEHS

AERBHSH PRz )
B4 %529,067,000%E 7T
82020518 10492,955,0003%
TTH11.3%  (HERAREWNH
T2%RFAET 6% - KiIEE R
BIRHERKEY HESH
EWHBEER -RETHEAE
BFERBHAEZENTS
FAEREEIEEEED Uz
ERTEEMER WELE
EENBHSIERG R
EBEE AIEEHENHEER

=
78 ©



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENRR A

BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

« EERESR (@

(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued) (—) TBHE DR @&
5. The US 5. E[EF
During the year, revenue in the US market was FEmHEERERAOR
approximately US$26,132,000, a decrease of 26,132,000 7T ° 8820204
approximately US$585,000 or 2.2% from 2020, L #9585,000557532.2%
and its share of revenue fell from 7.4% to E UL EER7.4% M E6.8% ©
6.8%. The decrease in revenue was mainly due FREGHRD TEEKFH
to weak market demand for MSG and high-end EEEERNMERREBR
modified starch products due to the pandemic and BEMA LR SHIBERE
rising shipping costs. The Group attaches great o EEMEEERE MR HA
importance to the expansion of high-end starch and EHBERNATIZNER
maltose products in this market. Looking ahead, it AREGFHBECEHBEEHE
will continue to integrate the production and sales KREAZENESEER URS
value chain and develop functional products to raise mmE N BARFREREBE
product competitiveness, hoping to drive sales after ERBREE-
the pandemic.
6.  Other Markets 6. EHEmbEs
Other markets include mainly Taiwan, South Korea HthmizTEAREZ BEK
and the European Union markets. Revenue rose BNERA™S > FERE MR
sharply mainly due to the rising market demand for fEER 2 Tim R RKIEM  E
modified starch and fertilisers and feed products. HXEERABEER - FRE
Total revenue during the year was approximately s 497%31,520,000%& 7T
US$31,520,000, a growth of approximately 12020515 N%92,366,000%
US$2,366,000, or 8.1%, compared with 2020, and TTE8.1% > {hEEE4EE W H
the share of revenue from other markets increased 8.1%MIEE8.3% °
slightly from 8.1% to 8.3%.
(2) Sales Analysis by Product (Z) EREEDR
Unit: US$'000 B FET
2021 2020 Difference
—Z”-F —Z2I%F =B
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Item IEH &8 % T8 % iy %
MSG and Seasonings R S22 5 ke 226,991 59.4% 232,093 64.3% -5,102 -2.2%
Modified Starch, SR
Native Starch KIAR M
and Maltose KR 67,684 17.7% 63,262 17.6% 4,422 7.0%
Specialty Chemicals RbEmM 21,330 5.6% 18,828 5.2% 2,502 13.3%
Fertilisers and Feed AE L AR
Products 28,870 7.5% 24,966 6.9% 3,904 15.6%
Others Hith 37,486 9.8% 21,592 6.0% 15,894 73.6%
Total At 382,361 100.0% 360,741 100.0% 21,620 6.0%
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BEEENRRA

BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(2)

Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

7.

MSG and Seasonings

Revenue of MSG and seasoning-related products
amounted to US$226,991,000 during the year,
a decrease of approximately US$5,102,000, or
2.2%, when compared with 2020. The weakened
performance was mainly due to the impact of
the pandemic on economic activities and market
demand in Vietnam and the US, which resulted in
the decrease in both sales volume and revenue.
Total revenue of MSG and seasoning-related
products decreased, and the proportion of revenue
contribution from this product segment dropped to
59.4% from 64.3% in 2020.

Modified Starch, Native Starch and Maltose

Owing to stabilising cost of cassava, effective
strategic procurement plan and a notable increase
in market demand for organic products during the
year, modified starch, native starch and maltose
products recorded both higher total sales and
profit. Revenue was approximately US$67,684,000,
up by US$4,422,000, or 7.0%, when compared
with 2020, and its share of the Group’s total
revenue increased from 17.6% to 17.7%. Except
for the decline in revenue of modified starch in
the US market due to the impact of the pandemic,
other markets recorded a growth. Moreover,
maltose reported an increase in revenue, which was
driven by the new customer base and new usages
of organic maltose in Vietnam. Taking into account
the Group's active effort to develop new products
with higher added value and tighten cooperation
with leading companies around the world, stronger
profitability momentum in the future could be
expected.
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BEEENRR A

Specialty chemicals including hydrochloric acid,
soda and bleach are sold in Vietnam. During
the year, the demand for such products rose
compared with last year, which led to an increase
in sales volume. During the year, total revenue of
specialty chemicals amounted to approximately
US$21,330,000, a growth of approximately
Us$2,502,000, or 13.3%, when compared with
2020, accounting for 5.6% of the Group’s total
revenue, up from 5.2%. In light of the low-price
competition of soda products during the year,
the Group adjusted the selling prices of those
products according to market trading conditions,
which caused a drop in gross profit, though sales
volume and revenue increased. On the other hand,
the selling price of hydrochloric acid products was
adjusted upward based on production volume and
market demand, resulting in an impressive growth
in sales volume, revenue and profit during the year.

Fertilisers recorded a notable growth in profit
despite a drop in sales volume of various products
during the year. The Group launched products of
new specifications, actively prospected for new
customers and improved the fertiliser product
mix, allowing it to set higher product prices.
Consequently, it achieved a growth in revenue and
profit. Revenue from fertilisers and feed products
amounted to approximately US$28,870,000, an
increase of US$3,904,000, or 15.6% compared
with 2020, and accounted for 7.5% of the Group's
total revenue, up from 6.9%. The Group will
continue to promote high value-added special
fertilisers and develop new sales channels.

Other Products

Revenue from other products was approximately
US$37,486,000, a growth of approximately
US$15,894,000, or 73.6%, compared with 2020,
and the segment’s revenue contribution to the
Group's total revenue rose from 6.0% to 9.8%,
mainly attributable to the strong sales volume of
coffee beans and bulk food ingredients distributed
in the PRC. By extending the depth and breadth of
product categories, and adding new product types
to meet market demand for similar types of items,
the segment achieved handsome revenue growth.

Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued) Z BEMW R
(2) Sales Analysis by Product (continued) (Z) ERFEEDR @
3. Specialty Chemicals and Fertilisers and Feed 3. HFEEDEEEN
Products
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BEEENRRA

MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY
OVERVIEW

(1

(2)

Cassava

In 2020/2021, major cassava producer countries in
Southeast Asia recorded a growth in production volume,
and the output of cassava in Thailand increased as well.
Nevertheless, the stronger demand of the international
consumer market led to the rising raw material prices of
cassava and starch.

In the 2021/2022 production season, a stable output
of major plantation areas like Thailand, Vietnam and
Cambodia was expected. At the beginning of the
production season, cassava was still in short supply and
its price was at a relatively high level. However, as the
output of cassava rose at the beginning of 2022, the
price gradually returned to a reasonable level. The Group
stepped up exploring more new sources of supply and
purchased at the high production volume period in order
to control procurement costs and improve profit.

Molasses

Global production volume of molasses in 2020/21 was
64,530,000 tons, a significant growth from 59,120,000
tons in 2019/20, up by approximately 5,400,000 tons,
or 9%. However, the price of molasses remained at its
historical high. The price stayed firm mainly due to the
rise of fuel and ethanol consumption and the overall
tight animal feed markets. The high prices of corn and
wheat and the shift of some molasses exporting countries
into importing countries in 2020/21 were also the direct
causes of the molasses shortage.

Global molasses production volume in 2021/22 is
estimated to be slightly lower than the previous year. For
example, the molasses output in India in the 2020/21
production season increased by 2,000,000 tons and
the annual production volume reached 13,600,000
tons, while the current estimated production volume in
2021/22 is 13,400,000 tons. Moreover, the increase in
the output of sugar cane is estimated to be largely used
for ethanol production, which will directly boost the price
of molasses.

Overall, the outlook for the total production and export
volume of molasses in 2021/22 is not optimistic, and
these prices may continue to be firm. The Group will
continue to keep a close watch on changes in the
international molasses market and actively develop
more new supply sources to ensure stable access to raw
materials.
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MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY
OVERVIEW(continued)

(3)

Energy

In 2020, global coal output decreased by 6.5% year-on-
year. Affected by the pandemic at the start of the year,
coal consumption was on the low side and production
resumed faster than consumption demand, and coal
prices dropped with the market concerned about coal
demand. Coal production and supply then slowed down
and coal price turned around and headed upward.

In 2021, the global economy gradually recovered from
the shadow of the pandemic. Major economies adopted
looser fiscal and monetary policies to stimulate the
economy, which provided strong support to international
oil prices. At the end of 2021, the main contracts of
New York Mercantile Exchange Light Crude Oil Futures
and London Brent Crude Oil Futures closed at US$75.21
and US$77.78 a barrel respectively, up by approximately
55% and 50% respectively against the end of 2020.
The rise in international oil prices has been driven by
different factors such as global economic recovery, tight
inventories and insufficient production capacity. On
the supply side, the OPEC and non-OPEC oil-producing
countries continued to implement production reduction
plans despite the US request for increasing oil supply to
slow the rise of oil prices, and strived to maintain the
current supply and demand dynamics in the international
oil market, demonstrating their ability to control oil
prices. On the demand side, the steady rebound in
economic activities and the increase in transportation fuel
consumption have driven higher oil demand.

Throughout 2021, international oil prices still fluctuated
while rising, and the three major fluctuations were all
associated with the pandemic. Therefore, there are still
great uncertainties in the trend of the international oil
prices. The course of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
outbreak of regional conflicts in Eastern Europe since
February will remain the biggest uncertainties affecting oil
prices this year. It is currently known that the significant
increase of crude oil prices has led to the surge of the
prices of natural gas and coal. The futures index has risen
to its highest point recently, and the upward trend still
continues. The conflicts in Eastern Europe will be the
most significant factor affecting economic stability. The
Group will continue to monitor the changes in the energy
industry in order to plan the counter measures early.
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I1l. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY
OVERVIEW(continued)

(3)

Energy (continued)

Regarding electricity price, following the implementation
of an electricity tariff subsidy policy in 2020, the
Vietnamese government introduced several electricity
tariff subsidy resolutions in 2021 in order to help
enterprises or work units navigate the difficult times
brought by the pandemic. It also continued to transform
and upgrade the electrical engineering capability to
ensure electricity demand could be met after the
pandemic ends and work and production resume. The
Group has been using a cogeneration power system to
assure it has a stable electricity supply. Since the Group
uses mainly self-generated electricity, a drop in the cost of
purchasing electricity from external sources would have a
limited impact.

IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and structured
bank deposits amounting to US$69,744,000, a decrease
of US$2,414,000, or around 3.3%, when compared
with the end of 2020. Short-term bank borrowings
amounted to US$31,661,000, a decrease of US$712,000,
or around 2.2% when compared with the end of 2020.
Medium-to-long-term bank borrowings amounted to
US$8,647,000, a decrease of US$5,339,000, or around
38.2%, when compared with the end of 2020. Total bank
borrowings amounted to US$40,308,000, a decrease of
US$6,051,000 or approximately 13.1% from the end of
2020. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
capital expenditures. The borrowings were mainly in US
Dollars, accounting for 94.5%, and the rest was in New
Taiwan Dollars and Renminbi, accounting for 3.6% and
1.9%, respectively. The ratio of short-term and medium-
to-long-term bank borrowings was 78.5% to 21.5%.
Net finance income this year decreased by US$22,000
compared with 2020.

Trade receivables amounted to US$32,164,000, an
increase of US$1,866,000 or approximately 6.2%
from the end of 2020. Around 67.1% of the trade
receivables were aged within 30 days. Total inventory
was US$101,648,000, an increase of US$9,983,000 or
approximately 10.9% from the end of 2020.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(1)

(2)

(3)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

Due to the decrease in borrowings and the increase in
shareholders’ equity, gearing ratio (total borrowings to
total equity ratio) was 14.3%, lower than 16.4% at the
end of 2020; as cash was higher than borrowings, net
gearing ratio (total borrowings less cash and deposits to
shareholders’ equity) was —8.7%, down from -7.6% in
2020. During the year, current ratio fell from 3.2 at the
end of 2020 to 3.0 and the quick ratio decreased from
1.8 at the end of 2020 to 1.6. The Group’s financial
structure remained stable.

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure for the year amounted to
approximately US$11,413,000, a decrease of
US$22,544,000 from US$33,957,000 in 2020. This was
mainly due to the completion of the expansion plan and
other various projects of its Vietnamese subsidiary in
the previous two years. Other than funding for ongoing
projects, there were no new projects requiring substantial
capital expenditure in the year.

Exchange Rate

Vietnam’s economic growth in recent years has resulted
in sufficient foreign exchange reserves which have
helped stabilise the Vietnamese Dong. Moreover, as the
Vietnamese Government has not resorted to currency
depreciation to stimulate exports, the performance of the
Vietnamese Dong amid the pandemic has been relatively
strong when compared with currencies of other major
ASEAN economies including Singapore, Indonesia and
Thailand. The central exchange rate announced by the
State Bank of Vietnam depreciated 0.06% in 2021, from
VND23,131/USD at the end of 2020 to VND23,145/USD
at the end of 2021. A good balance between pandemic
control and economic development, coupled with the
signing and implementation of free trade agreements
with major global economies, has provided an important
impetus for Vietnam’s economic recovery, improving the
investment climate and providing various preferential
measures as incentives for foreign investment. The RCEP
trade agreement has also come into effect in 2022.
Vietnam is expected to continue its export growth in
2022, with inflation maintained at a relatively low level.
The overall macroeconomy will remain stable, and the
Vietnamese Dong will remain healthy.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(3) Exchange Rate (continued)

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly responsible
for local sales with transactions denominated in RMB. In
2021, the overall RMB exchange rate slightly appreciated,
as the currency has fluctuated within a reasonable range.
Among them, the exchange rate of RMB against the
US Dollar dropped to a certain extent in March, once
close to 6.58, and then rose to around 6.35 in May and
December. Generally speaking, the RMB exchange rate
is expected to be stable and the floating exchange rate
regime will be more flexible, thereby helping to stabilise
the macroeconomy. The Group will continue to monitor
the changes in the exchange rate between the RMB and
the US Dollar.

The regional conflict in Eastern Europe breaking out
in February 2022 is expected to have an impact on
the exchange rates of currencies in the world, and the
Group will closely monitor the situation and respond to it
accordingly.

(4) Earnings per Share and Dividends
Basic earnings per share were 0.72 US cents. The Board
of Directors decided to pay a final dividend of 0.162 US
cents per share, representing a payout ratio of 60%.

PROSPECTS

In 2021, countries around the world experienced a surge in the
number of people infected by new variants of the COVID-19
virus, and lockdowns were again imposed. Despite other major
influential factors including uncertainty of vaccine efficacy,
challenges in supply chains, and rising transportation costs,
global economic growth rates still rebounded to 5.5%, but it is
expected to slow sharply to 4.1% in 2022, mainly reflecting the
continued outbreak of the pandemic, shrinking fiscal support,
persistent supply chain bottlenecks, inflationary pressure and
climate-related disasters. The Group expects a continued
undersupply of various international and local raw materials,
energy and packaging materials, and an increase in related
prices. In particular, the regional conflict in Eastern Europe that
broke out in February has caused geopolitical tensions. This
complicated situation is bound to have considerable impact and
present major uncertainties to financial projects, raw materials
and energy alike.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

Although facing an unprecedented economic environment,
the Group has nonetheless made some progress with initial
achievements in the development of regional markets.
Looking ahead, it will continue to improve the flexibility of
its overall operations, adjust business portfolios and models,
strengthen organisational operations to raise management
efficiency, actively develop new products, expand the scale of
production, put more focus on satisfying the demand from
customers and consumers, optimise cost structure and industry
chain integration, expeditiously implement action plans and,
ultimately, create new growth drivers to raise profitability. The
main tasks and direction are set forth below:

Expand product lines and optimise product mix, screen
existing third-party products and launch a series of
extended products. The Group will also increase the
proportion of highly functional and high value-added
products to enlarge market share and boost profit from
product sales.

Actively expand into new channels and new markets,
identify potential customers and consumers with similar
product demand in different markets, adjust product
positioning and sales tactics, look for cooperative partners
to expand market scale, strengthen brand positioning
and competitive advantages so as to improve the Group's
results performance.

Continue to advance production technologies and
enhance production efficiency, develop customised
products, improve operational and management
techniques and utilise key technologies to enhance core
competitiveness so as to achieve the dual objectives of
raising quality and lowering costs.

Capture the market trends of bulk raw materials, actively
look for alternative raw material solutions, maintain long-
term cooperative relations with domestic and overseas
suppliers and effectively execute procurement strategies
to ensure a stable supply of raw materials.

Adopt the “co-opetition” strategy to boost product and
service value, leverage its production base in Vietnam
to actively develop the ASEAN market and the markets
which are signatories of the Free Trade Agreement (FTA),
Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-
Pacific Partnership (CPTPP) and Regional Comprehensive
Economic Partnership (RCEP), and via mutual support
within the Group to realise its core advantages and
expand the Group's business presence.
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V. PROSPECTS (continued) i RE(@&

. Facilitate the works on energy conservation and . BEEERE -BRDWBANEZ
consumption reduction as well as recycling and reuse of BEIF > THEEARERERMN
resources, and improve energy efficiency to achieve the FOoDEINBHIRR - KEBKEN
missions of caring for the environment and sustainable fEdp o
operations.

. Accelerate the formation of strategic alliances or . MREEHBNEELSE BRE
cooperation with different businesses to jointly FERHFARESSE AL ED
develop the markets through effective consolidation of AEES MR T P4 ENEE B HA 4R &
resources and strengthen its research and development AR ERZEE BAKE
(R&D) function to realise technological breakthroughs, R 18 B AR A R o

facilitating the upgrade and transformation of the
Group, in addition to the introduction of new products,
expansion of its business scale and improvement of
business performance.

. Establish a strategic organisational structure and . BESHMAUABRREETRI/NAE
dedicated strategic teams to enhance the organisational RAZSBEMARNE SHEES
efficiency of all units, evaluate products or distribute RZEGBFRER RERAKEH
products that match business needs, assess the FARE AEERPERKRERE
manufacturers that offer cost competitiveness, and B EZIREEWR- M HEREZ
develop products that fit customer requirements in order GRRE o

to improve revenue, profit and economies of scale.

. Expedite the introduction of an electronic process . MEREABFCEENRR EIT
and information system for the management and REENEEKRER WSAEE
application of Big Data, so as to obtain immediate EEF BLEBRE EBMER
feedback information for optimising business processes, i H B T R FE S SR BR o

better understanding customers and developing better
corresponding strategies.

. Adopt financial management for ongoing management . ERMEERESHE FESE
of capital allocation, improve the operational efficiency of BExRARRE IRESEEEE
assets and reduce risks of exchange rates, interest rates ME - UHEZKEMMIFEEZ
and prices amidst the volatility of the global financial B REEXR X BENTHER
market. g o

. Give full play to capital efficiency, and require all related . HELTSWR TERSHELE
companies to reduce various expenses. EEEMNEEER-
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V. PROSPECTS (continued) i BE (@&)

Looking ahead to 2022, variables such as inflation risks,
soaring raw material prices and conflicts in Eastern Europe will
bring great uncertainty to the prospects of global economic
recovery. The Group’s business operations will encounter
significant challenges. It will continue to develop new drivers
for its operations in the future, maintain competitiveness in
the industry by adapting its mindset to cope with the changes
in the environment, adopt a flexible business strategy. It will
also capitalise on the initial results from core technologies,
market penetration and sales channels and the exports and
development advantages of various products produced by the
Vietnamese factories. The Group believes that by leveraging
its integrated operational strengths and building on its existing
business foundation, it can create strong growth momentum.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s business success is a group of core
products with widespread applications and strong brand

recognition, one of the Group’s most important and well-guarded
assets. Its renowned “Vedan” brand MSG, for example, is considered

essential throughout the food processing industries across Asia for
its role in enhancing the flavours of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys
a huge and constantly growing market throughout Vietnam,
the PRC, ASEAN countries, Japan and the United States.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EF - SREEEKRATME[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 79, the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company, as well as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung Min Der Commercial
Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung has approximately
59 years’ working experience in the MSG industry and is one of
the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is
responsible for formulating our overall corporate strategy. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion
Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 67, an Executive Director of the Company, has
been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr. YANG, Cheng had
approximately 46 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our business
development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of Taiwan
Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited. Mr.
YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Vedan Culture and
Education Foundation and Wanpao Asset Management Co., Ltd.,
the president of Fongle Real Estate Co., Ltd., the commissioner
of Industrial Development and Investment Promotion Committee
of Taichung City, the Executive director of New Taiyuan Urban
Development Association and the supervisor of Taichung Culture &
Education Foundation. Mr. YANG, Cheng obtained an EMBA Degree
from Xiamen University in the PRC in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 64, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, has been a director of the Company since 2002. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing the Group's
operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from Meiji
University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in the
development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam since
1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and President of
Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power
Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 35 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 58, an Executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. He is also a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen
Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen
has approximately 28 years’ working experience in the MSG industry.
Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is responsible for coordinating our purchase
activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen obtained a bachelor degree in
mechanics in 1993 from Waseda University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 62, an Executive Director, has been a director
of the Company since 2012. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou had approximately
40 years' working experience in the food, beverage and consumer
products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is a director and Vice
President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director of Vedan Vietnam,
Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known as Xiamen Maotai)
and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou also
holds directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28 June 2006.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 68, a Non-executive Director, a member
of the Remuneration Committee, has been a director of the Company
since 2002. Mr. HUANG is also the Vice President of Taiwan Vedan.
Mr. HUANG graduated from the department of accounting and
statistics of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan
in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately 44 years' experience in
administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 61, a Non-executive Director, has been a
director of the Company since 2006. Mr. CHOU is the Supervisor of
Taiwan Vedan and an Independent Non-executive Director of Shin-
Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the founder member
of Legalway Law Firm, the director and legal consultant of Wincome
Incorporation and a supervisor of Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
He has over 22 years of experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU
obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow University, Master
of Law degree from East China University of Political Science and Law
and Doctorate of Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 60, an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a
director of the Company since 2002. Mr. CHAO obtained a bachelor
degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from Soochow
University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law from the
University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive partner of
Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also a director
of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui Industrial
Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013) and the Independent
Non-executive Director of Force-MOS Technology Co., Ltd (an OTC
company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHAO has
approximately 32 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 61, an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee, as well as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, has been a director of the Company since 2004. Mr.
KO graduated with a Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia
University, Taiwan, and subsequently obtained a Master of Science
Degree in Accounting from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr.
KO has been the executive partner of Weyong International CPAs
& Co., Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO
is also the Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a
publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 62, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee, has been a director of
the Company since 2008. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State University, and
a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan University. Mr. CHEN
is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing Research and Investment
Corporation and also a director of Forcecon Tech. Co., Ltd., the
Independent Non-executive Director of Longwell Company and Pili
International Multimedia Co.,Ltd. (a publicly-traded Company on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHEN has more than
34 years of experience in securities business in Taiwan and was the
Vice Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd,. the Chairman of Concord Capital Management
Corp. and the Senior Vice President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, 66, an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee, has been a director
of the Company since 2018. Mr. HUANG holds a bachelor’s degree
in electrophysics and a master’s degree in management science from
National Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. Mr. HUANG is currently
a technical expert in the rank of adjunct associate professor at the
department of transportation & logistics management of National
Yang Ming Chiao Tung University in Taiwan. He is also the president
of Citpo Technologies Inc. Mr. HUANG was the founder secretary
general of Chinese Professional Management Association of Hsinchu,
Taiwan and was the chairman of Provision International Inc. and Ecom
Software Inc. Mr. HUANG was the president of Weblink International
Inc., Taiwan Regional Operations of Acer Inc. and Lottery Technology
Service Corporation. Mr. HUANG was the vice president of Quality
Assurance, ITGO, Acer Inc. Mr. HUANG was also an adjunct
assistant professor in the Department of Industrial Engineering and
Management of National Yang Ming Chiao Tung University in Taiwan.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 56, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and
the Executive Vice President of Vedan Vietnam and Financial Vice
President, is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon, major in finance and
marketing, and holds a master degree in business administration from
Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined Vedan Group in 1993, and
has been the vice manager of business and foreign trade department
of Vedan Vietnam, special assistant to the chairman, senior manager
of financial department, project manager of finance department of
Taiwan Vedan as well as the manager of the Group's Taiwan branch.
Mr. NI has full qualification in finance, marketing and executive
administration, and has accumulated approximately 29 years of
working experience.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 58, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 32 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 60, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company’s
specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from
National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-
Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of
international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 31 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 59, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 33 years
of working experience in finance and administration.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. ZHUANG, Kuixing, 54, General Manager of the Group in
Chinese mainland region. Mr. ZHUANG graduated from Zhi-Ren
School of General Education. He joined Vedan Taiwan in 1997
and had acted as Manager of the Consumer Goods Division and
Assistant Vice President to the Agent Products Division successively.
Mr. ZHUANG has rich agency sales experience in international brands
such as Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor, SPEY Whiskey, Gekkeikan Sake, and
Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds. Mr. ZHUANG has over 26 years’
profound sales, operational, and management experience in the food
industry.

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 48, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 21 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 46, is a Director, Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited ("Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate and
Investor Services. Ms. WONG has over 23 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial field and has been providing professional
corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. WONG is a
Chartered Governance Professional and a Fellow of both The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI) and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms. WONG is a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKCGI. (Note: The Company
has engaged Tricor as external service provider and appointed Ms.
WONG as the Company's company secretary since 1 April 2012.)
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The Group always believes that high-level corporate governance
standards and a sound and efficient board of directors are the
crucial foundation for the assurance of the Company's effective
operation and sustainable development. In addition to mitigating
operational risks, pursuing performance excellence and enhancement
of the shareholders’ interests by making significant efforts through
continuous improvement of the corporate governance and internal
monitoring system, we also fulfill the environmental and social
responsibility of the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
has become a power for the advancement of society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are disclosed based
on the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The Group
commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices, and the Board
endeavors to take the necessary actions to ensure the compliance
with the provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in
establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies and
plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group’s
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2021, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors (“NED"”) and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs").
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The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise and the
requirement of having sufficient number of INEDs representing one-
third of the Board. None of the INEDs has any business or financial
interests with the Group nor has any relationship with other directors
and confirmed their independence to the Group.

The relationships between some members of the Board are disclosed
under “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” on page 32.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board's primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Group's expense in carrying out their functions.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgment on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to the
Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the then Listing
Rules. The relevant terms of reference was revised on 25 December
2018 to comply with the existing Listing Rule. The Audit Committee
comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-
Ray and Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong, all Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his valuable experience
in reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control
and financial issues of the Group who among themselves possess
a wealth of management experience in the accounting profession,
commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Senior Management remuneration by band are set out in Note 32 to
the accounts.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessing the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates
of directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to skills, regional and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, gender
and other characteristics.
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The principal businesses of the Group are manufacturing, R&D and
sales, of which the Group has not engaged in any high-risk and high-
leveraged investment. The members of the Board and the senior
management have not engaged in any conduct of business which is
beyond the risk acceptance level of the Company.

The Board of the Group oversees the Company to establish an
appropriate and effective risk management mechanism and internal
control system. The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board
to oversee the management of existing or potential risks in the
Company. The management of the Company constantly supervises
risks and the implementation of the internal control system to
guarantee its effectiveness.

According to the characteristics of the industry in which the Group
operates, a designated internal audit department and personnel are
set up and appointed in each operating region with an operating
cycle of control customised for the regions to carry out regular
audit based on an annual plan and professional division of labour.
Analysis on the seriousness and deficiency rate of each operational
risk will be made, the results of which will be promptly reported to
the management of the Company and subsequent improvements
will be followed up. In addition to the monthly submission of audit
reports to the Audit Committee for review, the audit department also
presents major audit findings to the Board for examinations by the
members of the Board in order to effectively mitigate the operational
risks of the Group.
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The major scopes of work of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group are summarised as follows:

o Financial and financing cycle management — Alleviate risks
through stringent internal controls and legitimate taxation
planning applicable locally, credit risk management and control,
evaluation and prediction of factors attributing to financial
crisis; regularly assess capital position in markets, changes in
exchange rates and bank interest rates, and prudently manage
the fund allocation of the Company.

o Sales and payment collection cycle management — Oversee the
due execution of the procedures in the sales business, including
orders, credit provision, delivery, payment collection or refund
and customer complaints so as to minimise the risks in relation
to operating revenue.

o Procurement and payment cycle management — Perform
internal controls on operating procedures in relation to
supplier management, purchase requisition, price negotiation,
contracting, quality check for purchased products or product
returns, verification on payment or purchase discounts in order
to ensure the openness, fairness and incorruptibility of the
procurement system.

o Investment cycle management — The Group has established
the “Investment Review Board” to rigourously evaluate mid-
to-long-term investment or the subject matters of strategic
alliance and to timely deal with investment projects.

o Information risk management — Maintain the soundness of the
information management system of the Company, manage
and safeguard the security of network information and
swiftly provide the management with effective information on
operational management.

o Legal affairs, intellectual property rights and R&D cycle
management — The legal affairs department of the Group
collaborates with professional legal counsels to achieve risk
mitigation, transfer or aversion and to secure law compliance
by offering education, training and consultation in relation
to indentures, product liabilities, legal disputes and litigation,
patents, trademarks, intellectual property rights and other
relevant matters.
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. Environmental protection management for production cycle: e SERRZIREGFRESE  KIBEEERE

Implement all environmental protection stipulations and plans "é"'ﬂﬂ‘}ja'%ﬁﬁﬁi » RBRIBIRIGRERT A
in accordance with the local regulatory requirements of the FROUHEEEMUFE HIT - EEHA
operating regions; and establish special units to plan, execute, Lﬁfﬁ%lﬁiaiﬂﬁa%aﬁﬁ MR RHIRIRR
supervise and track all environmental protection measures in ENEE-

order to assure the fulfillment of environmental protection
responsibility.

. Occupational safety and hygiene management for production e SEREREZBEZ2HLEEE -HHER

cycle — Conduct review and risk analysis on the detrimental ﬁ?iﬁﬁ%ﬁkZﬁi%ﬁFLﬁﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ
level of abnormal environmental safety and hygiene incidents; B WERBREHEREESMATENSE
and require the relevant departments of the plants to formulate )j‘m”’

improvement measures.

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group ZAEBHEEHREHIFEAER2021ETEEEISE

stationed in the plant site in Vietnam in 2021 are as follows: FaTF

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

SR RIZHTE EERE

2021/3/27 Regulations for Loan Procedures 2
BERIEERE

2021/5/27 Measure on Receipts and Payments through Bank 2
BIBRITW - RIEERE

2021/5/31 Notes of the review of various fees 2
BEERAEERZAIESEE

2021/6/25 A comparison of the Financial Information System Update 2
MBEARREMER

2021/9/18 A comparison of the inventory Information System Update 2
FEEARREMHER

2021/11/22 Accountant's review of internal orders 2

B HABNITENEETER

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group ZAEEFEBEFTHEAER2021ETEEEIE

stationed in the plant site in the PRC in 2021 are as follows: BT

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

SR R E EERH

2021/03/26 Continuous Education on Accounting in Songjiang District 12
mWIegstBERS

2021/06/25 Continuous Educat|on on Accounting in Xiamen District 12
EFRegstEEHE

2021/09/17 Training for Internal Auditor 4
A EBE s EE

2021/12/10 The Audit of the Monetary Fund 2
B ESE
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During the year under review, all Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, including
the resources on accounting and financial reporting functions of the
Company, the qualification and experience of staff members and
the training programmes participated by the staff members and the
relevant budgets. The Board considered the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are adequate and effective.
The Group will, from time to time, review its risk management and
internal control system in order to optimise its effectiveness and
in turn heighten the overall corporate governance standard of the
Group.

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

REEFERN 2REFCERTEFNETE
FIRFBIRR > BEE QB G5 R Y FHERRE
BEFENER BTEERGR UKRBIFM
BRI REESE - EF R REEEH
NEBREERNBEERARHRAN - EH
ARG AREERABEZERF £HA
REERTHE UEAEERBEREERK

7 o

ERLFEC®

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HEE/eERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination ~ Annual General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

B3g BitZ88 iWzEg REZEE  RRAEAE
Executive Directors BTESR
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) GElE (28 414 NATER NATER 101 0
YANG, Cheng BE 3/4 NAF @R NARER NARER 0
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (C£0) B (THE%) 414 NATER NAT R NAT R 11
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 4/4 N/ATIE NAREH NARER 0
YANG, Kun-Chou B 4/4 NATIE NAFREH NAREH 0/
Non-executive Directors FRTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BRE 4/4 NATIE 1 NAREH 17
CHOU, Szu-Cheng BHE 4/4 NAT I NATRER NAREH 0
Independent Non-executive BUERTES

Directors

CHAQ, Pei-Hong HER 414 2 10 0 10
KO, Jim-Chen 1Ifts 4/4 2 1 101 0
CHEN, Joen-Ray BRI 4/4 2 7 101 0
HUANG, Chung-Fong RiEH 4/4 2 NAREA NATER 0
Notes: Mk :

Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung to exercise the voting
right on the first, third board meeting.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to the company secretary.
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COMPLIANCE WITH APPENDIX 14 TO LISTING RULES

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, with
the exception of code provision E.1.2.

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung, the Chairman of the Board was not able to attend the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2021 due
to business commitments.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr.
CHAO, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and Mr. CHOU,
Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HUANG,
Chung-Fong were appointed for a term of 3 years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.

BT EHRAKER14

BRF AR SCE 1 2R 290 IR EHARE - R A F]
—HET LEHRAMER14FTEZ T RMES -

MAEEREBTR) ZTFREXE 1218 EFF
TEREERRAFAE -EFFIFIHEE
TEREBRRRRHEARBDNR _E-_—F
ERA+NBETZREBERE -

L RYR T

RIEETHRANE3 136 AT EBEBULIE
HITESHIHEBUM -ARBRRMAEBIL
FRTEFHIRH/UN -

FERITEE
EEEBTRZFRMREXA 4 1FETRIEATT
EERUREARESME LARSEE MT
AMRXXA. 42185783 FRE TUIRFRER IS ERE &
ZAENEFANEZEIREEARRAT LER
RERESR MEBREF (BREUFETHZEN
ERRVABZFRERE—R-FRAEE
IIRMITEFHAURERER (1 EH3F) HE>
EREREAERBEEREENTEHA—F
MABREEE HEEEE RERKEERR
EREENERR=ZF - AREEZFNTES
AB=-FRERE R
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$355,000
and US$4,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2021. The reporting responsibilities of the independent auditor of the
Company on the financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 109 to 115.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. NI, Chih-
Hao, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during
a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

(with attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella,
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2528 3158

Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

IRERBRARRBNATRNEG LiRiE
BRI

AERERRERNA D REN RREAG L&
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FEEZEREMBEARNBIT - HMEFTERERN
BEEEXRB+—HRBHEERAKRE MRS
ERWALTABTUEZEASXNEHLIESE > ik
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REEEARNBRERE
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Hat EHERAER183E A M P N541E
GIRREERWER

BHE (852) 2528 3158
EBES : vdi@vedaninternational.com
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RIE-HERERES

INTRODUCTION

With the goal of limiting the increase in the global average
temperature to 1.5°C, the UN Climate Change Conference (COP
26) concluded at the end of 2021 urges countries around the world
to present specific carbon reduction target plans and quantitative
data in the climate change conference of 2022. This strict deadline
brings great pressure to leaders of countries, but it reveals the
urgency of coping with the climate crisis and aligns the goal with the
Paris Agreement. As another important progress of the conference,
countries acknowledge in the Glasgow Climate Pact that significant
cuts of carbon emissions are an imperative in the next ten years and
include “phase-down of fossil fuels” into the final copy for the first
time, which conveys the message that energy transition is inevitable.
Further, the 2030 interim emission reduction target and the net zero
emission by 2050 has become a global consensus, indicating that
the net-zero economy will be the core work of governments and
businesses around the world.

As an international corporate citizen, Vedan International Group
pays constant attention to the issue relating to climate change
and supports the civil notion of environmental protection, energy
conservation and carbon reduction and earth preservation with
practical actions. For many years, the Group has complied with
the national standards and regulations applicable to all production
bases and has formulated environmental policy which includes
environmental protection in daily management with all-staff
education in daily operation concerning energy conservation in
respect of self-initiated carbon reduction and energy efficiency
enhancement while participating in ecology-care activities and
proactively developing green economy with significant importance
attached to comprehensive development of corporate social
responsibility in hope to maximise its local corporate influence and
make valuable contribution to the local environmental protection.

Vedan International Group has established the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee”. The committee members practically
promote environmental education with combination of regional
production and sales strategy and the concept of environmental
protection and earth preservation and implements sustainable
environment plans with regular meetings to review the achievements
under the respective indicators. In this report, the Group truthfully
discloses the implementation of CSR. In 2021, the Group achieves
positive performance in emissions management and energy
consumption management. In the future, the Group will continue
to implement the corporate governance policy in accordance with
the laws and strive to achieve the most outstanding operating
efficiency of the Group with an aim to realise mutual benefit with the
environment.
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INTRODUCTION (continued)

To uphold the mission of sustainable operation, corporate social
responsibility of the Vedan International Group entails not only
environmental protection and energy conservation education,
but also maintenance of sound corporate governance and risk
management, provision employees with a safe and healthy working
environment where they can fully exploit their potentials, and balance
of the interests of employees, customers, supply chain, investors
and the overall development of the community. We undertake to
make our best endeavour to constantly contribute to economic
development, environmental protection for the earth and society
through good and solid corporate governance.

51= (&)

REKBEEENED  EEHTEETHKRAR
REBMS F7TREIRERE ERMEH
Bz HEERE2NABAEEREKREE-
REBT—EAZ2RBEASURCEZFENN
ITFRGE UTHRBEET B HEE - REA
RitEERZERZHHMNm  RMIRERTE
EERFEBENTEEL DBELENRE:
EREBELAMIKRBEFREBEANNHE -

The Vietnam Plant (Primary Production Base) Promoted Park-like Construction in

Factory Areas with Colossal Tree Plantings to Conserve the Ecology

TELEEMERRERTIRARC AEEMREBALR

This report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 and the principles of the CG Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the purposes of general disclosure responsibilities. The period and
areas covered by this report are as follows:

FREFRKBEEBH SRS EHRRM &
THER#RE L ERERBREIES) K
BTO(EEERATRD ZRAET —RIRES
FoAREANENERBIBWT :

Period covered

From 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

2 A 775202118 1H £2021412831H
Areas covered The production bases in Vietnam and China and the business footholds of
S branches in Taiwan and Cambodia covered by Vedan International Group

KA ERREERE R PR EEE

CBEDRERFEERD N EEEM
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{ENVIRONMENT)
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

The Group upholds the concept of “care for environment and
sustainable operation” and proactively carries out the efficiency
management of water resources, carbon reduction management
and waste management, while initiating energy management
system and continuous management of power consumption, and
adopting energy-saving electrical equipment to enhance the energy
conservation performance in the offices, as well as promoting
parklike construction in factory areas with colossal tree plantings to
conserve the ecology.

In respect of environmental protection and energy conservation, the
Group undertakes to carry out the following actions:

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste

o Employee safety, environmental protection and resource
conservation are the prime principles of all operating
activities of the Group. In the ordinary course of business,
the Group shall, as long as technically practicable, provide
treatment for, and secure the reduction of, emission
of exhaust gas, wastewater and waste, and achieve or
overachieve the provisions of the prevailing national laws
of the places where its production bases are located and
the requirements of internal standards.

° The Group regularly reviews the progress and
effectiveness of each resources management plan every
year and improves the deficiencies to ensure that there is
no substantial impact on the surrounding environment in
the factory areas.

. In 2021, the emission standard of each emission of the
Group was in line with the requirement of environmental
impact assessment for all production bases. The Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) reformed
the concentration system in production plants in 2021
for the purpose of reducing the consumption of steam
energy. In addition, enhancing the connection of various
wastewater treatment systems and the collection of
various types of wastewater is also expected to achieve
better water pollution prevention and pollution-free
discharge.
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RIE-HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued)

° According to the statistics, the types of emissions

IRIR A€ (48)

B BEIRIE KEKE (B

(1) HBYMEE-BHRLIEK BERAER

Mz B (48)

o BFE 2001 EFTEREEEBRTE

produced in the production process of the primary plants ZHBRYEEREESFIWT -
in 2021 and the relevant data are set out below:
2020 2021 Difference Unit

Type of emissions HemEs 20204 20215 ER B

Total volume of wastewater BEKAEEERE (LAK) 4.95 4.71 -4.86% mé/ton
discharged (m3)/product JEREE (AH) VY /N
output (ton)

Wastewater - Chemical Oxygen BER-CRHES(COD) (AF) 8.59 8.26 -3.85% kg/ton
Demand (COD) (kg)/product /EREE (AH) NN
output (ton)

Air emission - Sulphur oxides (SOX) ERHR-REEYSOx (AF) 4.85 3.16 -34.95% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) /EREE (A1) YNTN:

Air emission - Nitrogen oxides (NOx) | Z=REFH-EELHINOX (A Fr) 4.96 6.28 26.57% kg/ton
(kg)/product output (ton) /EREE (AH) NN

Total greenhouse gas emission RERBAHNE 840,900.44 844,261.02 0.40% tonCOze

AMECOze

Total emission intensity of AERBAHNERE 1.40 1.52 8.77% | ton COze/ton
greenhouse gas RUECO/ AN

Total hazardous waste FEBRENEE 59,779.06 47,456.29 -20.61% kg AF

Total non-hazardous waste BREFENES 36,751,103 71,272,766 93.93% kg AF

Hazardous waste intensity BEBENERE 0.10 0.09 -14.00% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) R/ AEERES) NN

Non-hazardous waste intensity BEFENERE 60.98 128.12 110.10% kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) R/ AEERES) NN
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

IRIGRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KREE (B)

(1) Emission management - Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHWMEEB-BHHLILEK BEREREE

wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued) M Z e (48)
Explanations on major differences in 2021 as compared to 2021 FEMER2020F 2 F B EZERAA -
2020:
Difference
Type of emissions BEES #E | Explanation for difference EEHH
Air emission - Nitrogen oxides ERBM— A EEYINOX 26.57% | Vietnam Vedan recorded higher NOx R 2021 ENOXRE 20205
(NOX)(kg)/product (AF)/EREE concentration in 2021 as compared with NOXREEIEM :
output (ton) () 2020:
Our use of coal with higher carbon content | H2021E 1§ A B RM 2 8R20205
in 2021 resulted in higher NOx density B BERRERERYLEE ZNOX
in the air emission even after treatment; BLABS BHRERNAEHEE
however, we still managed to meet the local | MHERESE 2 EERHERER.
emission standards in Vietnam, and passed
their tests during the year.
Total emission intensity of BERBLHNEEE 8.77% | From July 2021, due to the serious infection | E202157R % RHEEBERE HE
greenhouse gas in Vietnam, Vietnam Vedan had manpower | KR HAESHERNEERRER
shortage within the production base as it ERBAANEH EREAR N
followed the epidemic prevention policies RERBEAEHEERZERGEL
released by the Vietnamese government, & EBREAS BHERECNENR
which thus led to the failure of capacity [yt
expansion. In addition, the coal used by
the Vietnam thermal power station was of
low quality, and the steam and electricity
conversion efficiency became relatively
lower accordingly.
From July 2021, the coal for the boilers 202157 BERAERE XA
of the Vietnam thermal power station BERERAZERAERE ERER
was of low quality, which produced a BENAZEY URRESHBHA
_ P e o | large quantity of coal ash. Additionally, FERNEERRER SEERLR
Tote non-hazerdous waste RRRIEE B9 the epidemic prevention policies of the BEROAR Lz AEERELE
Vietnamese government required that the HERERIEERAEANRRER
production base should set up buffer areas | R HERZEERETAR KEF
for quarantine of confirmed cases and RRRRMERIER-
those who returned to the production base
for work. Therefore, the non-burnt bricks
I . & plant was temporarily transformed into the
Nonk-hazardous waste Intensiy m%(/%)fi%fufé 0%g) 110.10% | quarantine and buffer area for epidemic
(kgfton product output) AT/ AEmER prevention. As a result, the non-burnt bricks
plant suspended the production of non-
burnt bricks with coal ash starting from July.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(2)

Resources usage management - Promoting energy
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of
resources

The Group advocates and implements the 3R policy
(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) and recycles and reuses its
resources to achieve the goal of reducing materials
consumption and waste generation.

The Group implements green procurement policy to
procure suppliers to minimise their impacts on the
environment.

By implementing ISO 50001 Energy Management System,
the Group has established an energy management
system in the primary production bases and formed the
Energy Management Committee which is responsible
for the systematic management of all equipment in daily
operation in order to enhance the equipment efficiency
in a continuous manner. The Group has also implemented
energy saving and carbon reduction plan to rationalize
energy consumption and reduce energy cost.

In 2019, the Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) improved the concentration system in the
production process in production plants and reduced
the use of steam energy while also reducing water
consumption for cooling down.

The Group proactively implements the resources recycle
policy which recycles the condensation produced in the
concentration process of production and reuse the same
in the production process. The amount of condensation
that can be recycled for every ton of products in 2021
was 1.61KL.

In 2021, the packaging materials used by the primary
production bases of the Group in the production process
of main products can be classified into FIBC bags, paper
bags, carton boxes, plastic cylinders, etc. Towards the
goal of recycling and reusing the packaging materials
used for the finished products, the Company has recycled
and reused the plastic cylinders used for containing
maltose. According to the statistics in 2021, the recycling
rate reached 78%.

IRIGIRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KEEE (B)

BEREAEE-HEEHRERE BREI
BAA

EEEEHEBITIRBE(Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle): EiR[EIWEF A
WER R VY EHFEREZBR

MEGERBBERER EEMHE
BREHRRBERZEHE-

EBEHITISO 5000185 R EE R
AFELEEMBEULERERG
E UM REEZE S AR
REEEERRAMNEERER
HwOURBREARBHRE  LENK
B AE BB 51 8 > (R EFEAE B IBAE
P RAERAL A

ERTELEEMHEREMIN2019F
EHBEERPONBRERRET
ME BREEAERER BEH
WAL BKERE -

EEBERETEREIKEFNAZEK
ROBEERBEBRETREEZ S
B B EINEBFER > 20214F
FMNESRALKBER.61KLZ
R RRIK o

NN EFEERMTFEREREETE
SmBRERERAEEMNIT A KT
BN R EERE AT
BRESFAZE8MEREF BN
FE BB RETRHRELTR
R BEBRHETREWEFRA 2021
FHRFFZEBNEBETS% °
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RIE-HERERHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

o The total consumption of energy used in the primary

IRIGRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KREE (B)

(2) EBREREE-HIBEHERE RO
B A @)

o 2N EFTEXERMME REREE

production bases in 2021 is as follows: EMRAWT
2020 2021 Difference Unit

Types of usage FHEE 20205 20214 ] Bl

Indirect energy — Unit consumption REER-SHEMRE 727.79 842.74 15.79% kWh/ton
of electricity (total electricity (BHEAE (TR FTRE/
consumption (kWh)/production JEREE (AM) YN
output (ton)

Indirect energy - Unit consumption of | BZAER-—S$EMBEMEE 59.24 48.65 -17.87% kg/ton
biofuel (total biofuel consumption (EEMNERE (R NN
(kg)/production output (ton) /EREE (A

Direct energy — Unit consumption of | BEEEE-1#KEMAE 496.64 538.03 8.34% kg/ton
coal (total coal consumption (kg)/ (BiEmE (AF) / NN
production output (ton) EmEES (N1

Total water consumption mEke 8,137,965 7,431,697 -8.68% m? I F K

Water consumption intensity EKEBE @EKEQHK) 13.50 13.36 -1.07% m?/ton
(total water consumption (m3)/ EmEE (N1 AT /N
production output (ton)

Total packaging materials used FHRNEEMREE-XTE 49,765.50 55,622.90 11.77% kg RF
- FIBC bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEEREE-HE 375,470.05 398,626.38 6.17% kg RF
— Paper bags

Total packaging materials used FRNEEYREE-HH 2,824,045 | 2,834,930.85 0.39% kg RF
- Carton boxes

Total packaging materials used FRNEEMREE-2BR 425,473 296,805.00 -30.24% kg RF
— Plastic cylinders

Intensity of packaging materials used | ERNBEMREE-XEE 4.74 4.64 -2.10% kg/ton
— FIBC bags YNSN

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERMBEYRBE—HR 9.38 9.38 0.04% kg/ton
— Paper bags YNIPN

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERBIBEYRBRE -4 72.64 70.83 -2.50% kg/ton
- Carton boxes YNSPN

Intensity of packaging materials used | fERMIBEYRERE LB 41.23 40.86 -0.90% kg/ton
~ Plastic cylinders YNSN ]
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RIE-HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy (2)
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

Explanations on major differences in 2021 as compared to

IRIR A€ (48)

B BEIRIE KEKE (B

BEREAEE-HEEHRERE BREI
B A (@)

2021 FEARB2020FE 2 F EEZRREA ¢

2020:
Difference

Types of usage ERER #£E | Explanation for difference EEHH

Indirect energy - Unit consumption | FZAEE-BHEAE 15.79% | From July 2021, Vietnam Vedan had R021F7R# BBk ARGH
of electricity (total electricity (BHEEE (FRNE) manpower shortage within the production | BIBFERz £ EHREE  ERHA
consumption (kWh)/production /EREE (D) base as it followed the epidemic prevention | AJiEE EEEFRT URHER
output (ton)) policies released by the Vietnamese ERERBRAZERGERE ERE

government, which thus led to the failure A ENERECHENRL TR
of capacity expansion. In addition, the

coal used by the Vietnam thermal power

station was of low quality, and the steam

and electricity conversion efficiency became

relatively lower accordingly.

Indirect energy - Unit consumption | FfEAEIR— BN B -17.87% | The frequency of bucket elevator failure at | 2021E ZIE RN TR TRERBERE
of biofuel (total biofuel BE EEMNERE the by-product processing plant decreased | EE2020E KB T FIIRIEEEE
consumption (kg)/production (Bfr)/EREE (RH)) significantly in 2021 as compared with BEREL HERBUBTLE R
output (ton)) 2020, which reduced bucket elevator FEEMEENRE TR,

maintenance hours, ensured stable
production and led to a significant reduction
in unit usage of biofuel.
Direct energy - Unit consumption 834% | 1. From July 2021, the coal used by the 1. F0NETBE UEAERERE

of coal (total coal consumption
(kg)/production output (ton))

ERER-RREMLRE
(Eeme ()
/ERER (RH)

Vietnam thermal power station was of
low quality, and the steam and electricity
conversion efficiency became relatively
lower accordingly.

The boilers were not running normally,
as a result of which heavy oil boilers
and gas hoilers were used instead to
generate electricity, making our efforts
to reduce energy consumption roughly
go void.

2. We reviewed the rationality of energy
consumption monthly, and set the
baseline of energy consumption for each
product in accordance with 150 50001.

BZRREFE ENEA BN
ERBIEMETHE-

BERGRE KAEMER (B
0B R SREREREE
BHIEEELE.

). SARAEEEREZAEE I
REISO 50001 FIE B EERZ AR
Bigo
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RI-HHERERRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

IRIGRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KEEE (B)

(3) Environment and natural resources management — (3) REBRXABREE-RAEBEEAN
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring for R BEEBIEREBRLERE
environment and protecting natural ecosystem

In order to combat the global warming and devote our
efforts against the climate change, the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) obtained the ISO
50001: 2011 Energy Management System Certification
in October 2016 and the ISO 50001: 2018 Energy
Management System Certification in July 2021. We
established an impeccable equipment maintenance and
examination system through a high standard certification
inspection. The usage of energy consuming equipment
has been gradually optimised, which facilitated
reasonableness and efficiency of energy consuming
equipment and reduced energy costs.

Based on the differences of soil and changes in climate
among different business footholds globally, the Group
adopts environmentally friendly designs for its plants and
grows a variety of appropriate and diversified plants and
trees in the surroundings and at the same time promotes
park-like construction in factory areas. Various animals
are commonly seen in the landscaping wildlife ponds at
certain business footholds. The Group aims to bring land
greening, carbon reduction, biodiversity and ecosystem
and environmental protection into its daily operation.

With reference to the international environmental
education regulations, the Group merges the national
environmental protection concept into the employee
concept through daily trainings and enhances the
knowledge, skills, attitude and values of the employees
in respect of environmental protection while promoting
environmental protection, safety and hygiene propaganda
and continuously universalising civic environmental
protection education.

Since 2017, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has planned to use non-burnt bricks
equipment which recycled coal ash in electrical boilers
into non-burnt bricks and building backfill materials.
Being in line with the national development policy, it
reused and recycled waste and used such equipment
and technical skills to enhance reuse of resources, which
conserved energy and reduced consumption and brought
significant meanings to earth preservation. In 2021, the
plant has produced a total number of 240,000 pieces of
non-burnt bricks and has reduced the coal ash by 368
tons.
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RIE-HERERERS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) IRIZ(RE (48)
Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation % BERIR KELE (@

(continued)

(3) Environment and natural resources management - 3) BRERXABFREE-RAEBEERAN
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring R, THIBIERERARERE (B

for environment and protecting natural ecosystem
(continued)

° In 2021, the primary production bases of the Group o
organised a total of 43 training courses in relation
to environmental safety and hygiene with 1,469
participants and the average training hours were 7.38
hours per person every year. The contents of the courses
are summarised as follows:

No. Course Name

BHRX RELWE

2 FEEEFERELERIRER
2HEEBBHBIGRREET435
RBIMAKXA1,469A > EHEA L
EEHAT VNG EoHBER
BAEIWT

1 Groups 1 - 6 Training Targets about Labour Safety under National Requirements

BERERZHZE1~6cAINRER

2 Learning ISO 14001/I1SO 45001 Environmental Management System, Occupational Safety and Hygiene

Management System/Internal Inspector

ISO 14001/ISO 45001 IRIE B AZ#M BERZREGFETERATH ABEZE

3 Training for Safe Operation of Pressure Equipment
BhxEZ2RFEIR

4 Training for Overhead Operation Safety
EEEEZ D&

5 Safety Training — Use of Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA)
FREREAABLAAEBRERITRS (BASCBANZ 2R MFILKR

6 Safety Training — Use of Personal Gas Detector

fERE AR EABFHZ 2RI

Total Total training hours Total participation
for the year

ast 2 EMBNREFE HMBE AR
10,847 (hours) 1,469 (persons)
10,847 (/NBF) 1,469 (A)

Average training hours
of employees

BT FHRINEFEHL

7.38 (hours/year)

7.38 (/NBE )
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RIE-HERERHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(4)

IRIGRE ()
R | BEIRIE  KREE (B)

Internal inspection enhancement and cycle improvement (4) MEAEEZERIRNE
The Vietnam plant (primary production base of the EETFE4EENHERESES
Group) implements the Environmental Management HHTIRIEEE RSO 14001)
System (ISO 14001), Occupation Health Safety BEZ2HEEERMAISO 45001)
Management System (OHSAS18001/ISO 45001) and HEEREIEAH(SO 50001) EHA
Energy Management System (ISO 50001) every year, and ERBEFSEERINITRY I
regularly reviews the progress and effectiveness of all BB ERL HEREUSIEE
plans and proactively improves the deficiencies in order B REE AT E R
to continuously improve and govern with high-standard
international regulations and conduct self-reflection.
In 2021, in respect of all laws related to environmental 202V FEEMBRAFEHEBAEE RS
protection as well as the air monitoring, discharge of HAER-BURK - BEVME BERE
sewage and waste disposal, the Group met the national BHEEEMZBERIEE-
standard of all the places where its production bases are
located.
In 2021, the external inspection and environmental 2N EFELERMIBIEREEHE
examination in respect of environmental safety and T BE RSN ERAE 1% SR IR 15 A R AR 5T AN
hygiene and energy in the primary production bases are T
as follows:
No. Name Result
EHR &iE @R
1 First Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
F—FIRB A =R
2 Annual External Inspection (ISO14001& ISO 45001) Pass
FEHMEBFEIZ(SO 14001&ISO 45001) L el
3 Second Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
BFRIEEA =R
4 Annual External Inspection (ISO 50001) Qualified
FEIMERFEZ(1SO 50001) %
5 Third Quarter Environmental Examination Pass
B=FRIFEA BE
6 Fourth Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
BEFRFER =R

Note: The Group's production bases in China and business
footholds in Taiwan and Cambodia are principally engaged
in sales and light industry trade. The primary production
base of the Group is the Vietnam plant and therefore the
environmental emission and energy data disclosed in this
report mainly concern the Vietnam plant.
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

{SOCIETY)
EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits

To gain trust from the employees, the Group maintains sincere
communication, proactively cares for the employees and values
employees’ benefits and opinions. The Group supports the
international labour and human right standards and achieves the
goal of “building corporate harmony and enhancing employees’
benefits” through three measures, namely “full compliance with the
labour laws, continuous optimisation of the safety and healthiness
of the working environment and proactive implementation of
employees’ training and communication”, which help build a sound
labour-employer interrelationship and maximise the benefits of the
Group and society.

The Group undertakes to earnestly implement the following
employee relations policies:

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration

° The Group considers its employees to be its most
important cooperative partners. The employment of
an employee is based on the ability-oriented and fair
employment principles. There is no discrimination in
each division and department in terms of recruitment,
employment, promotion, training and reward. Upon
employment, the remuneration of an employee shall
be based on an equal pay for equal work principle and
there shall be no bias or discrimination against different
identities such as race, religion, nationality, gender or
disability in terms of appointment and promotion.

° The Group has long been complying the national labour
laws of the places where its production bases are located
to systematise the remuneration and report to the
competent authorities of the places where the enterprises
are located.

{SOCIAL &)
ETEHREEN
BE BIUICENE WWEBTER

FEBEHN AR IHMRET ERETHE
ZHEEROESE DUESETER *&EEX
FERS IR ABRE TR EREETHEE
P RERAZZEENIFRE BREBESE
ETHIIEER = HERER B EMEEE
EETREIN ZER BEURFHNHFEETHH
B AERRMEERREAEREANAE

REMAERNTUTEIREEER

(1) ERRA-2ATFZEEGHESRSE
Z R

e EKERREIRREBNGHEBMH
BESIUSENRE FEERA
RA REE-ER & Hillk
BEE SBEMNSEKE -8
TEEE HMTURIRM  F
EEER R EFEERREAE
FG MM ZFRE > MEEREFA
B LAPTRIASIRAR °

e EKERBEBETELEEEMZERY
Bire MERTHHMMEFL I
REMEEMREMZ TEHBET
HERo
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RIE-HERERERS

BETEREREN (&)
B BUTEME - BESTEN (@)

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions, (1) EBERI-ATZEERFRGESRSE
compliant and reasonable remuneration (continued) Z R (48)
. In 2021, the Group had 3,738 employees in aggregate. . 202V EEEEB T4 # 3,738

NTrmAEMR - thEE D AR I

The statistics of employee turnover rate by gender and

geographic region is set out below:

MEtEHESMAKLLER !

Total number

Male in Female in of employees
The Group's primary base each region each region in each region
EEFEEM EEBBET EEBRET EBRETHAY
The Vietnam plant = & 2,875 654 3,529
The China plant FEIR&E 120 60 180
Foothold in Taiwan &8 8 8 16
Foothold in Cambodia H3H 2B, 10 3 13

Total average

Total average

resignation resignation Total average

rate of male | rate of female resignation

staff per month | staff per month | rate per month

88T ZEBT | of each region

The Group's primary base BREm=E PR = ZEABREE
ERFEEM B I LRSS
The Vietnam plant @& K& 1.59% 1.07% 1.49%
The China plant FEIR&E 9.18% 20.43% 13.09%
Foothold in Taiwan & /& ¥ & 0% 0% 0%
Foothold in Cambodia SRIHE &2 0% 0% 0%
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(2)

Employees’ benefits - Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions

The Group attaches importance to gender equality
at work and has included such into the standards of
the Company. It complies with the local governmental
regulations. Provisions such as maternity system
management measure, paternity leave and menstrual
leave are clearly stipulated.

The Group has formulated relevant regulations which
provide the managements served at the primary
production bases in Vietnam and China with benefits,
such as meals and free transportation.

Employees’ benefits and working hour management
systems have been established for all operating areas
of the Group in compliance with the local labour laws,
including minimum wage, annual leave and other
statutory benefits. All are implemented in accordance
with local laws and regulations of each operating
location.

In 2021, in addition to the fixed monthly salary, the
Group’s employees can receive appropriate year-end
and performance bonuses based on the department or
individual performance. The Vietnam plant, the primary
production base, conducts promotion assessment twice a
year in order to encourage the talents to excel themselves
with a friendly management approach. In addition, the
overall salaries of all staff were raised in 2021 as in line
with the basic wage adjustments in Vietnam.

BETERAEN (&)
B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(2)

BIREA-RAGMNERFOITIERMG

EEEEMEIFTSLAARE
RE > BT EMBUN AR BATIE
ZHEEEREL: SHEEER Y
MERRSIRE

EEFIERRRE TEEEEM
HEkHERE #HHIMNRRER
BREHEERRETTEEREIN
& e

EEFAEEREEBISTEN
HHERNEITERIREER
o BEEEIE -BARRRES
RENEHN 9RSEERMZE
#hELHAT o

2021 EFEEBEE TIRETE B #5h 0 14
ARIFAREAERESES

BRERB¥NES TELEEMER
BESEEEEM2REFAFiZ
ERREEEAASTBAARIE
W H > R2021FER A HEERHA
BEATEM2ERAZEBE TS
BFo
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RIE-HERERHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(3)

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights

The Group provides diversified channels for internal
communication and opinion expressing which allows
it to persistently understand employees’ real opinions
and recommendations on each aspect of the Company
through diversified means such as the proposal system,
suggestion boxes and employee satisfactory survey, and
to make improvements based on the problems raised by
the employees upon discussion.

The Group respects the right of employees to form
associations and organise unions upon their own free
will in accordance with the laws, and regularly convenes
labour conferences to share opinions with the labour
representatives and directly respond to the queries raised
by the employees. Meanwhile, it regularly organises
“Employee Forum” with the labour unions which allows
the labour unions to promptly reflect each problem raised
by the employees and constantly follow up the execution
progress of each discussion topic.

The Group has reported its internal regulations to
the competent authorities in the countries where its
production bases are located. Furthermore, it has
established the “Incentive and Disciplinary Committee”
comprising labour unions, legal personnel and relevant
competent units to deal with the matters of the reward
and punishment on the internal staff of the Company in a
transparent and open manner.

The Group attaches importance to labour interests. The
Vietnam plant (primary production base of the Group) has
coordinated with international or local review institutions
to regularly carry out audits and collect employees’
opinions on labour management and relevant issues in
order to protect the relevant interests of the employees.
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(4)

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness

Adhering to the concept of “ensuring Company’s safety
to maintain employees’ healthiness”, the Group places
significant importance on the promotion of occupational
safety and hygiene. All of its policies, which are in
compliance with the relevant laws applicable to the local
operating area, have formed a safe working environment
to its employees, clients, underwriters and relevant
personnel.

The Group offers labour insurance and health insurance
applicable to the local operating area to each employee
and arranges regular health check for the employees in
an endeavour to look after the physical and mental health
of all employees. Moreover, the Group cooperates with
professional medical institutions to find out whether an
employee suffers from an occupational disease based
on the differences of each business division in order to
safeguard the healthiness of the employees.

In order to carry out the propaganda of the concept
of environmental protection, safety and hygiene, in
addition to organising environmental safety education
programmes for the management level and the
employees from time to time, the Group has also merged
the concept of environmental safety and hygiene into
major corporate events (for example, participation in tree
planting activities organised by environmental protection
units under local governments, and reception of
government agencies or academic groups for visits of the
sewage treatment system of the Company, etc.) in order
to create an impact by combining environmental safety
education with operating activities.

BETERAEN (&)
B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(4)

ERZ2HEERNIFRE-QAT%ZE>
2ERE

EEMAZERBIZE 2EREIN
B HRBEZE2BESERH
ER FAEBRANEGEERHE
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EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued) ETEREERN (8

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ 3 : B TE¥ME - WESTEFN (@)
Benefits (continued)

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment 4) EBEZ2HEERENIERIE-ATZR>
- Ensuring Company’s safety to maintain employees’ 2ERE @)
healthiness (continued)

The Group regularly inspects the progress and outcome
of every environmental protection, safety and hygiene
plan and continuously improves those plans in accordance
with the requirements. The department in charge of
environmental management implements and supervises
various safety and hygiene drills in the factory areas
targeting at the harm of special or major equipment in
the factory areas, and performs precaution inspections,
such as fire safety equipment, use of chemicals and safety
inspections on electrical equipment to avoid risks of
potential disaster.

In 2021, there were 6 cases of work injury in the Group’s
primary production bases, which resulted in a total of
1,784 lost working hours due to work injury. Among
which, a total of zero hour of traffic accidents were
happened outside the factory area (accounting for 0%),
whereas a total of 1,784 hours of work-related accidents
occurred within the factory area (accounting for 100%).
The Group will continuously minimise the occurrence of
work safety accident within the factory area every year
through rigorous safety education, management system
and equipment.

The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has comprehensively acquired various
management system certifications including 1SO 14001,
ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO 9001
and so on. Meanwhile, it adheres to the standards of
the management systems and frequently carries out
inspections and guidance with continuous improvements.
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RIE-HERERERS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(5)

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow

The Group believes that talents are, above all, the
greatest assets of the Company. The nurture and
development of talents are valued and each employee is
provided with comprehensive educational training and
promotion system to satisfy their needs from different
countries and regions, which allows all employees to
deploy their skills and unearth their potentials.

The Group regularly convenes meetings of the education
and training committee while proactively organising
professional courses and language courses based on
the job requirements of each department and regularly
conducting language and computer skill assessments to
improve occupational skills of the employees.

The Group formulates the “Annual Plan for Education
and Training” every year. To enhance the diversification of
learning, in addition to assigning employees to training
institutions to participate in various education and
trainings, the Group also engages professional lecturers
to hold a variety of seminars in the factories from time to
time and nurture its employees based on their aptitudes
so as to boost their potentials and enhance their work
passions and at the same time raise their sense of
belonging to the Company.

Based on the global operating strategy of the Group,
it continues to cultivate talents for its future senior
management and strategically nurtures employees
possessing high potentials with emphasis on specific
trainings to heighten the professionalism and regularly
updates on their promotion and development to ensure
the instantaneity and integrity of its talent reserve in a bid
to satisfy the needs for the long-term business growth of
the Group and enhance the core competitiveness of the
organisation.
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EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued) ETEHREEN (B

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ 3 : B TE¥ME - WESTEFN (@)
Benefits (continued)

(5) Development and training - Talent cultivation and (5) BREFZIN-AAERF BUSTIFER
establishment of learning and growing environment METRRIRIE (@)
which employees can follow (continued)

(6)

In 2021, there were a total of 19,783 hours of
education and training courses organised by the main
production bases of the Group with average training
hours of approximately 6.2 hours per person every year,
representing decrease of 54% in training hours per
person as compared to 2020. In 2021, total hours of
middle and senior management personnel of the Group
taking occupational training courses were 3,057 hours
(middle management officers) and 2,489 hours (senior
management officers), respectively, reduced by 61% in
training hours taken by middle management officers
and reduced by 63% in training hours taken by senior
management officers as compared to 2020. The Group’s
limiting the number of people gathering in one place
due to COVID-19 is the main reason for the reduction of
hours of training. Currently, the Group is making plans
and preparations for online trainings.

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws

The Group strives to comply with all labour laws
applicable to the operating areas and achieve the goal of
“establishing a safe and healthy working environment”
by three aspects, namely “ensuring the compliance with
labour laws, constantly reviewing the development plans
and prohibiting the violation of human rights”.

The Group adheres to the principle of employment
freedom and refuses to hire forced labour and child
labour. All employment shall be based on the employees’
own free will and imposition of mandatory measures
on employees in violation of laws or human rights of
employees is prohibited.

The Group accepts inspections on its labour safety and
hygiene system carried out by government authorities
or external independent inspection units to ensure all
operating activities are in compliance with the local
government decree and international standards.
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RIE-HERERERS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(6)

)

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws (continued)

The Group has an internal legal affairs department which
is not only responsible for revising the internal regulations
and systems of the Company in accordance with the
decrees issued by the government, but also for educating
the employees to understand and comply with the labour
laws through its education and training system.

Implementation of an annual external audit on human
resources recruitment agencies which cooperate with the
major production bases of the Group so as to ensure such
external agencies do comply with labour and safety laws
and regulations.

The fundamental obligation of the Group is to provide
its employees a safe and healthy working environment.
A specialised department for the management of
environmental safety and hygiene has been established
within the Group which is responsible for supervising
the management system for environmental protection,
safety and hygiene, formulating all safety and hygiene
management regulations, and set up the system of
safety manager in each plant, regularly reviewing the
improvement recommendations put forward by all units,
examining the abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene and analysing the causes thereof, and
suggesting feasible improvement proposals or refined
engineering designs to the Group in an endeavour
to assist the Group to continuously heighten the
management standards.

Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system

Annual targets of management on environment, safety
and hygiene have been set in each factory area of
the Group in accordance with local regulations. The
occurrences of abnormal incidents on environment,
safety and hygiene have been effectively reduced
through an implementation of environment, safety and
hygiene inspections, education and trainings and regular
inspections on working environment in order to maximise
the working efficiency of the employees in a safe and
healthy environment.

BTERAEN (B
B BUGEME - BESTEN (@)

(6)

()

STHA-HEETHFHEALRES

€))

EERABRILAHEREM FRIK
BENASZESEERTRIR
EHEN BEEBHFINRRR
HEEITRIBTHEHES

HHREMTELEEREMSIEZA
HERBEMHRER BRSFE—R
ZHNBRFEE TF BRI HER
BEEBTEREPEZEZES-

EREEREANEBRRMESE
TZ2EENIFIRE EERI
RERBEZE2FEEEEEINM
EERYBREEAMCEBEEWEY
FEEZ2HEETERGT URNSK
FRIZ2EEMGIE BT
BEERBARYEZHEESR Y
RZBHEBEHETHS OWE
FMiREEBRAITZHNERER
TREMRXR BHEBRFERA
BIEKF o

RERNERAR EREREZREHA
EREEE

EERIBEKEEMIERITEIR
ZHEEFEER SBENUBEBR
ZEEZ HAINRREHRIEEIR
BEESERER ARNERERER
BEBERBLEX EEIELZSE
BENRES FEERNIEN

&Ko

Annual Report 2021 &R

67



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERERS

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT (continued)

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(7) Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system (continued)

° In addition to self-initiated inspections on environment,
safety and hygiene by each unit of the Group, the internal
inspection department also regularly reviews all operating
control on environment, safety and hygiene in the factory
area and the relevant operating environment to ensure
the implementation management systems such as ISO
14001, ISO 45001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001, etc.

(8) Winning the recognition of Vietnamese governmental
authorities

For four consecutive years (from 2017 to 2020), our Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) have been
granted the “Exemplary Enterprise Award for Commitment to
Workers” by the Vietnam General Confederation of Labour, The
Ministry of Labour, Invalids and Social Affairs and the Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, in recognition of their
relentless efforts to improve the material and spiritual life of its
employees while actively improving their working environment,
giving full play to their talent and skills and striving to achieve
the goal of sustainable development together with them.
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RIE-HERERERS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers

Under the primary condition of stable quality and honesty in the
process of determining the suppliers, the Group selects its suppliers
across the globe as if deciding a long-term cooperation partner.
Under the gradual surge of green energy awareness across the
globe, the Group also wishes to promote the relevant environmental
protection concepts or practices to the upstream suppliers through
its supply chain management strategy of green products and
encourage the suppliers to actively cooperate and participate in the
environmental protection movement with its influence as a local
enterprise in hope to establish a green supply chain in the food
industry with its suppliers and improve the performance of the Group
and its suppliers in terms of social and environmental responsibility.

The raw material suppliers of the Group include manufacturers and
distributors. Engineering constructions are undertaken by engineering
contractors of construction and machinery. The Group adopts
standardised procurement model which not only includes comparison
of quality, cost, service, technology and delivery, but also includes
linked management for the information of suppliers to ensure the
integrity of the long-term information storage and flexibly updates
the changes in procurement demands so as to reduce procurement
risks.

The cooperation agreements between the Group and its suppliers or
contractors firstly requires the suppliers to faithfully carry out every
transaction in accordance with the contracts and not to damage
the interests and image of the Group. No suppliers shall engage
in transfer of personal benefits or involve in loans, leases and
investments for any non-business purposes with employees of the
Group or their families, relatives and friends. Meanwhile, the Group
also takes into account of appeals lodged by the suppliers against the
employees of the Group who may have breached the procurement
rules, and carries out investigations to safeguard the interests of the
suppliers in a bid to build a harmonious trading relationship between
both parties and establish an open, fair and just procurement
management mechanism.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RI-HHERERRS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

We undertake to implement the following supply chain management
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) Regular supplier assessment mechanism for purpose of
improving management system of both parties

° The Group has established a system for inspection upon
delivery, regular inspection and assessment, and explicitly
has required the suppliers to cooperate with the Group’s
investigation in the factories based on the “Suppliers’
Annual External Assessment Programme”. The top priority
is to guide the supplier to improve the deficiencies
found in the inspection and assessment. After notifying
suppliers the items which require improvement, regular
investigation shall be continued and gradings will be
given in order to improve the management system of
both parties and ensure its business relationships with
quality suppliers. However, the Group suspended the
external assessment on suppliers in 2021 due to the
serious COVID-19 infection in Vietnam, and expects to
resume the external assessment in the coming years when
the pandemic recedes.

° The procurements of new raw materials or newly added
suppliers of the Group are all subject to the examination
and qualification judgement based on the “Assessment
Form for New Supplier” in order to ensure the standards
of the Group’s procurement management.

(2) Continuous promotion and encouragement to suppliers
for implementation of their own management systems

° In order to carry out safety management for contractors
and prevent constructional safety incidents, the
Group not only continuously reminds and informs
the contractors of the relevant safety management
requirements, but also conducts on-site supervision over
the operation safety of the manufacturers and procures
them to implement their own management to prevent
safety hazard to workers or damage to the environment
arising from improper operation.

° The Group also requires engineering contractors
to comply with and undertake to abide by all
requirements under the “Management Measures for
Safety and Hygiene of Contractors” and the policies
and requirements under I1SO 14001 and ISO 45001 of
the Group and concurrently requires contractors to
assign safety management personnel and engineering
supervisors to the construction sites to confirm the safety
before, during and after the construction in order to
ensure the operation safety and environmental hygiene.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-HERERERS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (continued)

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(3)

Continuously maintain the proportion of green
procurement

In principle, if the suppliers in the country of the Group’s
business footholds or the neighbouring countries share
the advantages in delivery time with the same favourable
conditions in terms of quality, service and price, priority
would be given to the local raw material suppliers and
contractors in order to reduce the carbon emission in
the process of transportation and jointly achieve green
efficiency.

In addition to continuously facilitating the replacement of
old and high-consumption equipment with new models
through plans on manufacturing process improvement
or special projects, the Group also participates in
various exhibitions of innovative technology and new
energy conservation equipment from time to time in
hope to continue to manufacture with relatively high
efficiency equipment, reduce energy consumption per
unit, reduce the cost of electricity used for operation,
thereby implement energy management and enhance the
competitiveness of the Group in the industry.

The Group advocates green procurement policy and
gradually carry out the environmental protection
concept of “low pollution, recyclability and resources
conservation”. We support ecologically friendly products
and green energy, and give priority to recyclable,
degradable, reusable and recoverable products in
response to the international environmental protection
standards. In compliance with the local environmental
protection regulations, we encourage suppliers to actively
develop green products so as to minimise the damage
to the environment. All in all, we make a contribution to
take the eco-friendly pledge for all mankind.

In 2021, the Group's primary production bases
maintained a green procurement policy to achieve a
carbon emission control. Specific accomplishments
include: (a) continuous efforts in procurement at local
production places; (b) maintain the use of biomass energy
and production use unit demand purchase; (c) completion
of 100% procurement target for electrical appliances
with energy-saving labels.
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RI-HHERERRS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction

High quality is an important core capability which the Group has
always maintained. In order to give customers full confidence in
the quality of the products, the Group continues to improve quality
control and achieve customers’ expectations through high standards
of quality control to create quality products and live up to customers’
satisfaction.

We undertake to implement the following product responsibility
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) In compliance with national quality and safety regulations

° In order to maintain the core competitiveness of the
product quality, the Group continues to maintain various
food safety management systems, including GMP+Feed
Safety Assurance, ISO 17025, HACCP, ISO 9001 and
FSSC 22000, and to enforce them on relevant production
aspects so as to enhance its competitiveness and satisfy
customers’ requirements on quality and the requirements
of food safety standards. In addition, the Group decided
to implement the new agreements and rules on relevant
foods announced by the governments during 2020, and
internal education training was implemented to ensure
that the new agreements were fully carried out.

° The Group ensures the quality of every product it
produced is in compliance with all requirements of
relevant local laws applicable to the operating areas.

. In 2021, the Group has fully implemented the monthly
review of the validity period of various intellectual
property rights in a bid to ensure the due completion of
registration procedure for renewal before expiration.

o The shipment of each batch of the products is subject to
a random inspection conducted by the Group. The fail
rate of the Group’s product in the random inspection
was approximately 0.04% in 2021, and it was maintained
to enhance the system for the traceability of source
management.

. The Group performed a product recall drill in July 2021
for every main product (MSG, flavour seasoning, modified
starch, maltose syrup, rice protein, animal and plant liquid
and solid feed, and Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds),
enabling it to face potential circumstances with ample
experience.
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2)

Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations

As the Group weighs its customer relation management
system, it has established feasible and effective customer
communication channels to understand the needs and
questions of customers. The Group has established the
“operating procedures for toll-free customer service
hotline”. Through the toll-free customer hotline, the
Group ascertains the procedures and scope of customer
service operation and matters which require customers’
cooperation in order to ensure customers’ interests as
well as to safeguard the interests of the distributors and
agents.

Addressing customers’ opinions and feedback and the
quality issues, each business unit has formulated standard
operating procedures in compliance with the local laws,
according to which it promptly provides proper responses,
makes reports and puts forward solutions through the
communication channels specified in the official website
of the Group and sales personnel to achieve the goal of
customer satisfaction.

Addressing customers’ data protection and privacy
management, the Group carried out 6 internal
inspections in 2021 (one inspection in every two months)
to ensure that the management measures are duly
implemented by every department.

The distribution partners around the world are important
market vanguards of the Group which help the Group to
deliver its brand value to the potential customers at every
corner of the world. The Group organises distribution
partner meetings or product launching events from time
to time to share the analysis on the overall market trend
and its marketing strategies in order to assure customers’
satisfaction and establish a long-term and stable market
operating foundation for the Group.
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RIE-HERERES

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND PREVENTIVE MEASURES
Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards

The Group highly values operation in good faith. It has established
a designated inspection unit, in addition to the establishment of a
transparent and open communication platform. The Group requires
its employees to comply with the regulations of integrity and also
reinforces the propaganda on a regular basis to prevent corruption
and fraud.

The Group requires all employees to abide by the prevailing
government regulations in each operating area and the internal
regulations of the Company in an endeavour to procure employees
to safeguard the Group’s reputation with the highest moral standard.
For the implementation of the Group's anti-corruption policy, penalty
shall be imposed on inappropriate conducts in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the Company, while local legal proceedings
shall be instituted on a serious breach.

The Group shall implement the following policies with considerable
efforts to enforce the regulations of integrity on employees:

(1) Continuous propaganda of integrity

The Group requires every employee internally, and reminds all
customers, suppliers and all third parties involved in business
transactions externally not to obtain commercial benefits
directly or indirectly through malfeasance or bribery. It has also
established standard operation procedure systems for business,
procurement and finance departments to prevent employees
from abusing their power for personal gains which would result
in conflict of interests.

(2) Establishment of transparent and open communication
platform

Integrity is a major criterion of the Group’s assessment on its
employees and employees who reported corrupt conducts shall
not result in any implication to their salaries and promotion
prospects or be subject to other unfavourable penalties.
There is a feedback channel which allows all employees to
report corrupt conducts to the management directly through
diversified means, where the whistle blower shall be protected
by the Group’s system. No employee in the Group was subject
to legal proceedings regarding corrupt conduct in 2021.
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RIE-HERERERS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer

The Group provides special care to the relatively underprivileged
minority in society and gives long-term and appropriate support and
positive encouragement. With a thankful heart, the Group is willing
to be a cheerful corporate volunteer and communicate with the
community benevolently so as to requite the public for the support to
the Company.

Through internal coordination and planning of the public relations
department, the Group has been devoting itself to public welfare
activities, such as providing international medical support, taking care
of the impoverished families, promoting environmental protection
and energy conservation education and sponsoring outstanding
poor students for a long period of time in hope for encouraging
more enthusiasts to carry out charitable work and radiating
warmth to every corner in need through our modest contribution
and increased participation. Vietnam Red Cross awarded the “Red
Cross Outstanding Contribution of Business Enterprise Award” to a
Vietnamese company under the Group for multiple times, indicating
that the Company’s active participation in the public welfare has
obtained recognition by international charity and aid organisation.

The followings set forth a summary of the Group’s community
development and participation in public welfare:

(1) Continuous international medical support

Given that international human care has always been the
benevolent activity which the Group pays attention to, other
than sponsoring the “Agent Orange Victim Fund” and the
“Child Protection Fund”, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) cooperated with the Government of Dong
Nai Province, Taichung Veterans General Hospital, Taiwan and
Huei-Kong Social Welfare Foundation for eight consecutive
years to carry out international medical support activities which
benefitted over ten thousand people.

(2) Encouragement to employees to participate in social
welfare activities

The Group always encourages its employees to participate in
all kinds of public welfare activities and several directors of
the Group and their families have set an example by working
as long-term volunteers of medical institutions and hospice
centres in an endeavour to motivate more employees to unite
their power through personal actions and serve the public with
contribution to society.

HEKEREE A
BRREHEGER - HATEET

AEEHR T EEET AN S BH R
B RBATEENKBRERNKE -£0
BRRBOL ERH—BRENEEST
AELAMEEREE DOBEARHABNX
o

EEZEBAREELAHBARBPINARZRR
B REIURFERABERBERED BIRE
P EERREEREBRGHEREFTEFSE
AEEH BMFEZUBSRENSIE BEX
HEZ2E RAEZEOALEFTE KR
BFEEEAEFENAZ HEA+FEHLS
TIRE A +FEFERHRBEFTRE TER
BEAR BRADRB2HEETHEER
BERZESHIRARNEE-

UFR=EERTeREMEEQAENEIR

(1) FHEETERBRENED

BERAERE-—ERFEERINZD
EEREN  BREAREEESE M
REREEESG I 2 TELEEEN
Bremed 2@/ \FRRREHT 88
EPRRBEBRAEREZETAFER
ZEBEID BYRBRBERTRESR
Ao

(2) BREIZSHAMEAMED

EEMRZHETEIZEZERAT
B EESNEERERAERS SN
T REBEEEERES TEREREDN
ST HPEHEIME SHEZETH
EBEE RBABDBRMLE-
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RIE-HERERHRS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE HtEKEEEENT (B)
(continued)

BE:REMEUE HKA/EEST (@

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

=\ 2L 3

(3) Continuous charity and public welfare activities (3) HEBETEEAMEH

impoverished families, the Group adheres to the concept
of gaining healthy lives through flavourful and delicious
food and organises various activities such as “Spreading
Warmth at the End of the Year”, “Gratitude Fund”,
“Building Warm-Hearted House” and “Poverty Fund”
every year to provide the most appropriate support to the
needy.

In 2021, the continued spread of COVID-19 pandemic
plunged the global economy into a severe recession.
Vietnam was among the hardest-hit countries, with
millions of businesses and workers affected. During the
period, our Vietnam plant, the main production base of
the Group, dedicated themselves to the fighting against
the pandemic together with the Vietnamese government,

o To demonstrate the spirit of fraternity and help . AT RIERFAEERE® HIRIER

NENKE FERBEEZEKBEM®
REREEFNES EESEEM
FFEEE%/E@J TRREHRES

BRRBE - RBEEEE FZ
IE/‘E@J AEZRBREHREEDN
kUK

R EHERSFEEEHAS
o FERIKEBEBABRERR W
BT ZIAEEBRENETER 5HE
BErERSHEIFE -RILEE
R EEFELEEEMUREE
NEBF - ARREBERTHN
BIEE

people and workers:

- Donating money to the COVID-19 Fighting Fund of - BREAREREEZREH
Dong Nai Province and the COVID-19 Fighting Fund BEEE

of Taiwanese Chamber of Commerce;

- Donating medical supplies (ventilators, ward —  IEMBEME (TR HK)
beds) to the nearby communities affected by the FTHESERERNEERE
pandemic; K

- Donating bleach to the nearby communities for — EBERAKFHEHEHES
them to disinfect the public areas. NHIBIFEI -

ﬁmmﬁ

mE}-""“’m“ ]

——

Building Warm-Hearted House Spreading warmth every year to provide the most appropriate support to the needy

BRAEE s A EMRSHBRR
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RIE-H1ERERHRS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(4)

(5)

Facilitation of environmental protection and energy
conservation education

In order to enhance the awareness of the importance of
energy and climate change issues among all people, the Group
cooperated with the local government and international
organisations every year to promote the concept of forest
conservation by organising different activities such as “Green
Sunday”, “Tree Planting”, “Environmental Protection Drawing
Competition” and “Classification of Household Waste”,
and sponsor a variety of environmental protection funds in
an endeavour to facilitate environmental protection, forest
conservation, forest expansion and improve the ecological
environment.

Continuous promotion of study encouragement

In order to incentivise impoverished students, the Group
not only entered into the “Industry-University Collaboration
Memorandum” with numerous higher education institutions,
but also regularly carried out study encouragement in
accordance with the local government policies and gave
scholarships and donations for construction of schools in a bid
to provide better education to outstanding students in order to
encourage students to study hard.

HEEEHAZE T (B)

BEREMEUE HKAEEST (@

(4)

(5)

EEIRIRAERAE

ARRERTENERRREEEREN
EE KESFRGEMBFEMKRERK
EREEEMEMONTR BMSE %
®BEH - TEM  IREREELE - TE
ERR DR RS W HEKBIRGE
& BECRE EMEMBARMER
REESERBRIEME o

RERERDRTED

AEBERBT EEREASMEEHE
ERFEEZAFHETSH ZIN UER
EEEMBRARRETHENE AR
BhEERIRERS UIRMESBFES
ERFNHE BRBBEFREEZRS-

Donations Construction of Schools and
Encouragement to Students

RERSZBB T

Organized activities to celebrate the International Women’s Day to bolster
teamwork cohesiveness and spirit

SMENERGELEEHREEEEON
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RIE-HERERERS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE HtEgSEEZE AT (8)
(continued)

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be BE REMEBRE - RAGEET (B
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(6) Generation of a centripetal force towards society by (6) UXEHBEERMATEOLN
culture education

The cultivation strategy of the Group is to rapidly and fully AHEHMBREENERERE AFEEE
integrate into local culture where it operates. As such, the REMTE2EASERIFEM L £EE
Group provides various recreational activities and supports the RESBXEIFFUAKREE EMBAN
relevant activities of local governments, such as celebrating HEESE Al E X EEEH =N\
local festivals, participating in the International Women's Day, WREEES  BIHALE -BFREIR
tug-of-war competitions for employees, commending senior BEE I EAS EIFEEE ) MNoE
employees, establishing party organisations and organizing KB THAEMXEREERK > Rk
activities in a bid to enhance a sense of belonging of the FHEHABNRRERK -

employees to the local culture and earn recognition of the
Company from communities.

78  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-HERERERS

PROSPECTS

“Care for environment and sustainable operation” is the operational
mission of the Group and also a commitment and fundamental
responsibility of us as an international corporate citizen to the
environment and society. In process of the preparation of the
disclosure in this report, we have reviewed the actual actions taken
by the Group in a new perspective for implementing the three
sustainability measures, namely sustainable environment, public
welfare, and sound corporate governance. The Group will continue
to improve and formulate the most complete development solutions
which integrate operating procedures, and will continuously strive for
corporate excellence, facilitating social development and creating a
better environment.

With reference to the relevant regulations and international
standards, the Group will continue to review the hindrances and
risks to be involved in the future corporate governance, social
development and environmental protection. It will also formulate
mid-to-long-term improvement strategies and action plans as soon
as possible with effective communication with the stakeholders of
the Group, including employees, customers, suppliers, investors and
the community, that enable them to understand and support every
practical action taken by the Group for the environmental, social and
governance in order to face the trend of the macro-environment and
challenges together in a prudent manner and seek the best way for
coexistence and mutual prosperity.

The Group believes that the fulfilment of social responsibility is the
critical driving force for the sustainable growth of enterprises in the
21st century. In the future, we will continue to integrate the core
competence of biotechnology with social responsibility and develop
green economy. The Group expects not only to continue to grow
and develop in the food industry, but also to have a significant
influence — It will also focus on climate change, including issues such
as carbon reduction in an endeavour to contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment of the earth and create a better
home together.

RE

MZEIRIE KECE  RAEBAOKE €
S REREELARBIRIT AT GRAEN
BEXAER-RZMAZBKEFIREENERE B
MREEEHNBERXERE HELET S
REztEELR=-EXEEINERER LK
FENE BIURTHBAESEERENER
FEBAFBEREEIHMEE REHL S
ERIAIGSRIENHEE-

FEERSEZHMERKBEREE FERS
EERKRAEGXEE - HERRARIBRERN
REHBENEEARE BRERBAPRANER
BRTBHAE TAMBENRERZFZ/HE
ABEEIT - FFR -HEE KREAKRKTE &
ZTRIXFERTRRE HEREBNEE
FR HEZEEHRRENBZERE 8
REFHENREER

EEEEEEHEER REREEETT —HiL
KERRNBABER DR RFRFEER
EMEMZOENEHLEERES ERGE
BE SERETEERmEERURELER
X BEREEENTEN ERRARRBREL
BREARERENR T HEAMIKIRIE X E
ERB HRIEFRE-
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RIE-#HERERBREME

The Group's compliance of General Disclosures and KPIs: ERETREEMEAREVIEEZETE
7

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRIE-HHERERBEIESI N Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR - EE - —RRBERERERER

Compliance as disclosed
“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TRBTrLARRE) FBEEERBZETER

A. Environmental

IRiE
A1 Emissions: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
HEm - — %% EE (2016.1.1%E %)

Information on:

BRBRBEREHB RAKRIMHNGFS AERESER

MNELEEW .
(a)  the policies; and As stated in the section
(@) B & headed “Environmental

Protection (1) Emission

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a management” in this

significant impact on the issuer report e
(b) BFHBETABEAXEZNMEREERRROINER Mk E S NRITFREO)HF
MBI B EH RN

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: (1) Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations.

2 (WERIIREEAStY REtYRENMZREREERRIRE
SpEE Y/

Note: (2) Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

2 QRERBEE_StHK - BR-Staa - a/amtay - 281t
R 7S ®mACH

Note: (3) Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

2 QFEERERMERKKRAMmMATES-
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RIF- 11 ERERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHB EE - —RRBEREARERIER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

TRETREERE,
RARENIE1R(2017.1.1£E )

KPI' A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BSRERIERA SRR R AR MR -

KPlI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

RASRERGERA 2 D BERBEHKE QIS &k ER) &
EWNUSEEBEMN BERKMAHE) o

KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FABRENEEM I MEEEEEEYERE CIEHE) &k (N8
) ZE (UAESESEN §EREH) °

KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FARBEBIERAA  FMEEBRESEEYHEE UWEETE) K (3
B ZE MUSESEN SEREHE)

BRI -HERERRSES)Z2HER

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

FEEERBZETER

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

M EE RIBHRE)HF
WA E R S E AR

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

ML EERIBREN)H
W E R EERUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MRESE"IRIEMREN)HE
WY E R EEH A

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
MEIREE"IRIFREN)HE
A E IR SRR
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRI -HERERBEIESI ) Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR - EE - —RRBERERERER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report
TRE TR THREERBEZEITER
KPI A1.5: Description of measures to mitigate emissions and As stated in the section
results achieved. headed “Environmental
FABAR RIS IRALS | MU BRI ENIEE RIS R Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MR E S RIRRE)HF
B E R EH AR

KPlI A1.6: Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous As stated in the section

wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. headed “Environmental

FARERIERA16 I EEEERBEEEEYN AL BMEE Protection (1) Emission

T EMNEHRAEMRR- management” in this
report

MRS E RERE)GF
WY E IR & R

A2 Use of General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
Resources: — R = (2016.1.14 %)
BIRER :
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water As stated in the section
and other raw materials. headed “Environmental
BRERER (BFER KEREMEBEMR) K- Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MREERBFRE(2)E
RERAEE ZEHMR
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in

buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

2 BERUAREE #F EH BF BEFfAEF
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRI -HERERBEIESI)ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (48)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEHBE -EE - —RIRERBREWER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report

TREB TR FEEERBZETER

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
RARRAESISHZ (2017.1.1%30)

KPI' A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. As stated in the section

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per headed “Environmental

unit of production volume, per facility). Protection (2) Resources

RARAMIERA2. RBAE DN EEK,SHEEER (WE R usage management” in

Ul e UTETERGSE) REE WNUSESBEMU SIE this report

RS E) o MBEEIRBREQ)E
BERAEE ZEEHMM

KPI A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit As stated in the section

of production volume, per facility). headed “Environmental

ARG MIERA2.2  BEKERTE MMUSES B SERM Protection (2) Resources

8 o usage management” in
this report

MBEERRRE(2)E
REAEE EMR

KPI A2.3: Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and As stated in the section

results achieved. headed “Environmental

RREMIEEA2.3 e RER M m st 8 RIS R - Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

MBEEIRBEREQ2)E

REREE EMf
KPI A2.4: Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing As stated in the section
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results headed “Environmental

achieved. Protection (2) Resources
RARENIEIRA2 .4 M REGEA KR LRI B EMIMRE > LUKRIE  usage management” in
F Ak 5T B R TS AR © this report

MBEEERREREQ)E
RERAEE EEHMM
KPI' A2.5: Total packaging material used for finished products (in  As stated in the section

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. headed “Environmental

RARENIERA2.5 | W mPTAEEMENEE (UNEETE) & Protection (2) Resources

WER) SEEBMGE- usage management” in
this report

MBEEREREQL)E
REREE EEHRUR
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRI -HERERBEIESI ) Z2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

FTEHR - EE - —RRBERERERER

Compliance as disclosed

“Comply or explain” Provisions in this report
TRE TR AR TR TREERBZEBITER
A3 Environment General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
and Natural —RRIRE (2016.1.1£%%)
Resources:
RIBERRAER :
Policies on minimising the issuer’'s significant impact on the As stated in the section
environment and natural resources. headed “Environmental
BEETAHRIERRABRENERZENEE - Protection (3) Environment

and natural resources
management” in this
report
MMES"RIBRE )R
BRAABRER"EM
KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
B AE M IE1R(2017.1.1% %)

KPI' A3.1: Description of the significant impacts of activities on As stated in the section
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to headed “Environmental

manage them. Protection (3) Environment

RARAAMISIZAS . HMEBRIEHNHRIERRXABTRNEARTEZ  and natural resources

RERNEEBMEZENTE management” in this
report

MR EERFRE Q)R
BRRAEREE"EMH
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RIBE -HEREGREIESI N ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (4)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

FTERR EE —RRERWMRAMER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures FREERBEZ
TRETH R BElE TR

B. Social #t &

I. Employment and
Labour Practices

— ERRFELER
B1 Employment: General Disclosure
&% : (effective from 2016.1.1)

—RIEE (2016.1.14%)

Information on:
ERGFHA#EE BERSH
TR REA TEEE %
T REGUAREMFERE
il

&

the policies; and

BER; R

=

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

) BFHETABEATE
HAERE R RN ER o

relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report

MEEE'EIRRA
BR(NERRA ZH
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

B(RIE-HERERRSES)Z2HER

(%

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

B2 Health and

Safety:
EREZ2:

IRETHRE

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—RINE (2016.1.1%6%)
Information on:
BRRHZ2TIERERGRER
ERGHEMFEN

=

the policies; and

BiR ; &

D

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

b) BFHETABEAXE
R AR RARNNER -

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
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BERE-MRENER

KPI B1.1
R M IE1RB1.1

KPI B1.2
B R A 151R81.2

Total work force by gender,
employment type, age group
and geographical region.

BUER BEEE FERANK
HEESNESEH-

Employee turnover rate
by gender, age group and
geographical region.

7R ERARN R ER DK
BERKLLE-

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
NMBREEEIEHRA
BR(EER ZH
ot

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
NMBREETETEHAA
BRI RERR ZEH
E g

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MEEEBTERA
BRHOEEZZ2ERE
W TIERIR S HR
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

BRI -HERERRSES)Z2HER

()

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

BERE-MRENER

KPI B2.1
R A 1E1R82.1

KPI B2.2
PR 351282.2

KPI B2.3
RSB AERI51ER2.3

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.
RATERGMETHAB KL
o

Lost days due to work injury.

RIGRAIFRE-

Description of occupational
health and safety measures
adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HRFRANBEREEZE R
1 URABRRITRER %

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MEEEBTERA
BRHOEREZ2ERE
M TIERIR S HRU
As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MEEEBTERA
BRHOEEZ2ERE
W TIEIRIR S HRUR
As stated in the section
headed “"Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MEEEBTERA
BHOEREZZ2ERE
W TIEIRIR EHR
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RIF- g RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)

(continued)

B3R RIH :

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETFHER
— MR E(2016.1.1.5%)

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BEMRABERITIEREN
0 e B BE O BUSR o #3511
EJO

Note:  Training refers to vocational
training. It may include
internal and external courses
paid by the employer.

#: BIERREN TR
BIRHENRIMERRE
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KPI B3.1

R EMIEEB3.

KPI B3.2

BSR4 33512832

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and
employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle

management).

BHURRESER MERERE
EhREEES) AN

EEEDLL-

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
BURIKRESERNS D S4iE
ERMF N TR

B(RIE-HERERRSES)Z2HER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

As stated in the section
headed "employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
NMBREEEIEHRA
BRIOZERASI =
ik 6

As stated in the section
headed "employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
NMBREEEIERA
B/ ERAE) E
#Rut

As stated in the section
headed “employees
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
NMBREEETEHAA
BRG)ERASIN B
ik



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRI -HERERBEIESI)ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures TREERTEZ
IRETRER EERE [@1TER
B4% T A — R E(2016.1.1.£%)
Information on:
AR EE T8 EI% T :
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
(@) B R headed “Employee

Practice and Benefit (6)

Labour standards” in
(b) compliance with relevant

) this report
laws andl regglatlons that MBLEEIETEEE
have a significant impact BRI6)S TR B
on the issuer it
(b)) BTHETABEARE
WA RRAINER
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
Recommended Disclosures - KPI
BERE - WRENER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to  As stated in the section
PR ENIE1ER4.1 review employment practices to  headed "Employee
avoid child and forced labour. Practice and Benefit (6)
R IEMRASE M % Labour standards” in
BEIR®HSET- this report
NMBREEEIEHRA
ERI(6)5 T 2RI HH
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to  As stated in the section
R RAEMIEIER4.2 eliminate such practices when headed “Employee
discovered. Practice and Benefit (6)
HRERRERBERFERERM  Labour standards” in
BERAFERNS this report
NMBREETETHHAA
BRl(6)s T8 Z&
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

B(RIE-HERERRSES)Z2HER

(%

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

B5 Supply Chain
Management:

HIERER

IRETHRE

General Disclosure

(effective from 2016.1.1)

— MR E (2016.1.1%%)
Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
EEMEBNRERT T AR
o
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Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

KPI B5.1
B B 151285, 1

KPI B5.2
R S& AR 2 15 17B5.2

Number of suppliers by
geographical region.

SR b S
Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how
they are implemented and
monitored.
BOERERREENEN [
HYTEHBANGEEHE
UREHABHANRTRERR
e

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management” in this
report

MEEE MMEREE)
BEfL

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management (1), (2)
and (3)" in this report

MBEEHERER
(ONO)-EMES:Ten
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RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, BRI -HERERBEIESI)ZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures TREERTEZ
IRETRER EERE [@1TER
B6 Product General Disclosure
Responsibility: (effective from 2016.1.1)
EmEE: —RIEE (2016.1.1%5%)

Information on:
BRHMREERTRENEER
Z2 EE BERMEEEMN

RERHEN
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
@ BE; & headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
(b) compliance with relevant MBEETERERM)
laws and regulations that EX-0E 6

have a significant impact
on the issuer

b)) BFHETABEARE
HERERRARNNER -

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.
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RIF- g RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

B(RIE-HERERRSES)Z2HER

(%

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

IRETHRE

BERE-MRENER

KPI B6.1
B A3 15 1786.1

KPI B6.2
R & AR 2 1517862

KPI B6.3
R & %351286.3

KPI B6.4
BB A 151RB6.4

KPI B6.5
B R A I517B6.5
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Percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.

BEXBEXERBUTRZE
HEREAMERKNE DL

Number of products and service
related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.
BRERRERKRBNRHHE
DR FES 75 7%

Description of practices relating
to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
HhEEERFENNEERR
1B A

Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures.
B SRTEBEREMBKE
o

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

HiH & E B RRE R AR
B URMERRTREER %

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
MBEEEREEN))
X060
As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (2)" in
this report
MBEEERREQ)
EX-0E 6
As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
MBEEERREN)
E=X-0E G
As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
MREEEREEN))
SR
As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1)" in
this report
MBEEEREE())
=106



Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-#HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, B(RBE - ERERREIESNZHER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

Compliance as
disclosed in this

“Comply or explain” report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures THREEREZ
IRETHER BEHE i
B7 Anti-corruption: General Disclosure
R&S: (effective from 2016.1.1)

—RRIE (2016.1.1%%)

Information on:

BRMLEER 95 REFERS

R
(a) the policies; and As stated in the
@ HE; R section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures” in
(b) compliance with relevant this report
laws and regulations that MEREERESMAE

EER

have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEARE
WA RRAINER

relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
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RIF- g RERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

B(RR -HERESRGHESINZHER

(%

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

BERE-MRENER

KPI B7.1
AR B IE1ERT 1

KPI B7.2
R ENI51ER7.2
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Number of concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERBAHETAIHEER
it B BENE SRR HH
BRERER

Description and preventive
measures and whistleblowing
procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
B HEEERRRER > UK
HRRTRER Ao

As stated in the
section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures in
(1)" this report

MEEEREGHA
(1) | EER

As stated in the
section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures in
(2)" this report

MBEEEREGHA
(AN=x:F 5 ¢
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RIF- 11 ERERHE M

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (&)

(continued)

1ll. Community
= HE

B8 Community
Investment:

HERE:

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE —RRERMRENER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions
IRETHER

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
— R E (2016.1.15%0)

Polices on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities” interests.
BRMUHBSHRT BEEME
HEZFENRFHEREHGS
B BRI HAER o

KPI B8.1

RSB 5 1RBS.1

KPI B8.2

R EIE1RB8.2

Recommended Disclosures

BEKE

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-MRENER

Focus are as of contribution
(e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,

culture, sport).

SIEAMER (WHE RRES
EHISR BR N8B

B) o

Resources contributed (e.g.
money or time) to the focus

area.

TEEIRRABHRER (L7

KB o

BRI -HERERRSES)Z2HER

Compliance as
disclosed in this
report
THREEREZ
[@1TER

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MESEHELEHR
BERH I BHAM

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare (1)-(6)"
in this report
NMBREEMHELER
BER#H(1)-6) JEH
As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MBREEMHELEHA
BENT BHRULE
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Report of Directors

EFOHRS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Preface
For review of the Group’s business, the description about major risks
and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
Report.

Subsequent events after year end date
No major event that influences business operation of the Group has
occurred since 31 December 2021 (the balance sheet date of the
financial year) until the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 5
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth’s natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.
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In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labour safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4. Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6. Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group’s assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.

Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.

FEFEBTEEEMZBERBER EHEMS
RIRDRERENE RAEEETI X ERE
B BE2ETXZ2RE BHEFIIN
AEHLZEFHENDEHIE

FEERGRERD ZIRBFRERE !

1. MENEBHARESRREREZEZR.

2. GEFPFLUEIRAELRE RERBEKRR
BERZRAET

3. ERMATZEER @RV ER
BEK > REEEYME SRR

4. REBERZEOWEFAA LUEMRE YA
HEEHEZBR -

5. RERF - ZERBEZBEIMASIZI
B UMERRBRLHEY -

6. SBEEHRELBERFHNEERAITH
Mo WFRERKREITNE  UERFBEREZ
BAYo

BTFERRER

FEEFEBENEERE N (BrkPE) BAN
HERER BRECEBR -AEBEED I
REmEkRE ML EEZRENER
BeEgE DEFE AEBRTEMEEATE
HEHBERBTEEREMERERNERER

BES - ZTRREEENTERME
FEBBBEELEEEM AT ATHRATE
B HHESZENERREIKIINZIHA
BEI RAFFEREZEERE & HE
THREABRL RUHEHRNIFRRERETIE
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The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group’s regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group’s
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 118.

In 2021, an interim dividend of 0.272 US cents (2020: 0.194 US
cents) per share, totalling US$4,152,000 (2020: US$2,947,000)
was paid. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of 0.162 US cents per share, totalling US$2,466,000 (2020:
US$7,040,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021. Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, the final dividend will be paid in cash on 14 June 2022
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 1 June 2022.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 amounting to US$231,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company’s shareholders are set out in Note 33 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the percentage of revenue
from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable to the
Group's five largest customers combined was less than 30%.
Information in respect of the Group’s major suppliers is as follows:

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier
15%

- The percentage of purchases attributable to the five largest
suppliers combined 39%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued shares) had an interest in these major suppliers.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 3,738 employees,
3,529 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 180 by
subsidiaries in the PRC, 16 by the Taiwan Branch and 13 by the
Cambodia Branch. The Group's employees are remunerated in ac-
cordance with prevailing industry practices, and with reference to the
financial performance of the Group and performance of individual
employees. Other fringe benefits such as accommodations, meals,
insurance, medical coverage and provident fund are provided to
employees to ensure staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness.
To enhance the quality of human resources, bolster the professional
skills and management abilities of employees and build localised
workforces, the Group provides job rotation as well as internal
and external training courses and seminars on professional skills,
languages, etc.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HUANG, Chung-Fong
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According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen, Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen and
Mr. Huang, Chung-Fong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 32 to 37.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of Directors of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), were as follows:—

REBEERBDZEBERZMAEST()IR HHHF
KEBRXFTE MEERE, REERIER
REABEERREBFAE LHERE-FIE
ZEEENAERKERERE R

EEREREEERERE

t

EFEREREERBNBEFENENEIVE.

EERMNARM BN REHESEZEmN
e

B —FF+ZA=+—RH FRAEEFRN
FABRHEEAEEZE (EERESFRHAE
1EBIBXVER) Z B0~ MR R EEE P
BzEE=mWT -

Interests in shares

RGO ZEDR
Number of Percentage of

issued shares
of the Company

ordinary shares
(Long Position)

Name Capacity TiEREE HERTBEIT
i 15 (F &) RHEBEDL
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
HEEESE controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)

RHERZ X #E (fF5E1/3)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
BIEfE controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)

RHERZ X #E (M sE2523)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
ERREE BHEEAA
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%

MR TE B@mBEEA
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Notes:

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
more than one-third of the voting power of King International Limited
("King International”). Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to
have interest in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King
International.

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest in the
169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International.

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng had in
the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been granted such rights.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updates in Directors’ information during the year ended 31 December
2021 are as follows:

Mr. CHEN, Joen Ray was appointed as the Independent Non executive
Director of Pili International Multimedia Co.,Ltd. (a publicly traded
company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) from 26 May 2019.
Mr. Chen no longer serves as the Independent Non executive Director of
Kayee International Group Co., Ltd. (a publicly traded company on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) from 8 January 2021. Mr. Chen
was appointed as a director of of Forcecon Tech. Co., Ltd(a publicly
traded Company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) from 7
July 2021 and was appointed as the Independent Non executive Director
of Longwell Company (a publicly traded Company on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation) from 20 July 2021.

Saved as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
2020 annual report of the Company.

L
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2021.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’'s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month'’s notice in writing by either party to the
other.
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Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2021.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HUANG, Chung-Fong has a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 22 October 2018.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above and continuing
connected transactions detailed below, no director had a material
interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.

RERAEBRAERBITURFHE BT
“—HFHNB—HBEEN AM=F -FREEH
TRBARREERAEEAEERE (7
BRME) BB Z AU EBIFE &R 1%
BZEHER—F - MHARB REREEILFE
BEREH ARBHERCRZHREZRER
RS EREEREH GRIBERME) BREE
ke REERERA RAEEZEZEATERH
F-mEELEE—EREEAEN T UKL

HERATRAARBITAEZEER BTN\
FE+AZ+ZHEBEXN AH=F-

ERERRBEAGLAEEZEFIEEASL
RBEFIUARBE—FAFERBE CEERE
BR5N BIR BT 2 RFF S5 40 <

EFFERZaNOED

bR EXFRst it 2 BRFS B4 B T X FRsF It 2 F 48
MEXZIN UBREFEERLBIEEMFKE
RENERFRITIMBAEREBEBEAZS
NREEEA#ED -

=F B 3 18 (R 58
ERERMARAEEFRITIRETLATNEERK
FHERSBE ZZSALMNSENEBRITH
BEREMEL ZENFEAITERMBR
AERZNREFHFA-BER WE -BRBERK
B JERREMILZEMBE ; HABE
REFEHEENAEETHFATABEARN
EHe

EESH

PREERITUNBRB AN AR REARIL
EEEMERNAL AREEABBTILER
BHNEENERELRREMEBNEES SN
EREZEESD -

Annual Report 2021 &R 103



Report of Directors
EEEHRE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

RHERERXS
BERBEERMGARLR (TREKMA) Z2X5

HE_Z-—H+°“RA=+—HLEE &A
BEEFERRREAEATAEKIET T
Ry MzEXZBRAET EHRAIE14A
ERBRAEREZFERERS  AAFTF
B EHRAUEUAENERIEEBERKE

Note Us$'000
iz FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan Group A. AEEKAEEHEESR (i) 8,083
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MAEKMAZM (ii) 2,210
Taiwan Vedan RiTZiRE
Notes: MisE :
(1) The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”), (i) FEBERAEAERARENB AT (EH

MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
7 December 2020, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$7,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2023. The Directors believe that the sale of goods
to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will
generate additional income to the Group

On 4 May 2021, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into the
supplemental agreement on substantially the same terms as the Taiwan
Sales Agreement, so as to revise the annual cap for the continuing
connected transactions under the Taiwan Sales Agreement for each of
the three financial years ending 31 December 2023 from US$7,000,000
to US$50,000,000.

US$8,083,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$50,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 4 May 2021.
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(i)

(iii)

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 7 December 2020, the Company and
Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision of
such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2023. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group’s future business
developments.

US$2,210,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 7 December 2020.

The prices of goods and services provided to connected persons of the
Company are determined within the normal commercial price range
and the price quotation of the product is determined after taking
into account the production cost and the local market price of the
product with an aim to maintain the overall gross profit margin within
a reasonable range. The management of the Company has reviewed
the prices of transactions with connected persons and those with other
independent customers on a quarterly basis to ensure that the pricing
and terms with connected persons are fair and reasonable, and has
reported the relevant information at least once every six months to the
Board for review.

Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 104 to 105 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 32
to the accounts. Save for the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which
requires to be disclosed.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
and certain other continuing connected transactions/connected
transactions which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, during the reporting year,
there were no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements for connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 210 of the annual
report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2021, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRMNRGZEHRIRE

BARBMA RBE-_—F+A=+—
H BREXFRBEAADEFHARSTHRAE
BN UTALTRELXF RN FEERE
BERHAERPIBEXVERE 2R B3D B Z R XA
BAARKENED  HIALRBRBES
REAGIRGIE336IRFIFE 2 B o MBI !

Number of
ordinary Percentage of
shares issued shares
(Long Position) of the Company
Name Capacity ZiEREE HEATE
EaE 51 (#FR) BITRMBESL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
E@mBEAA (Note 1)
(BFEET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
("Taiwan Vedan”) corporation (Note 1)
R RERMERAT (T&EK) RHEEZER 2 bEZ#R (BFEET)
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
BHEAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BmEAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BHEAA
REECERMNBRAS Beneficial owner 83,348,000 5.47%
BmEAA
Notes: PEE -
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan 1. Billion Power &EBKANEZEMB AR > K

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512
shares held by Billion Power.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2021, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

BEKAWIRAEEZEHEBIllion PowerFifF
B22512,082,512RIP e
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group's controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group’s products in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group's business operations in
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the
basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of
Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
YANG, Kun-Hsiang

Director and Chief Executive Officer
22 March 2022
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 116 to 209, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related
to revenue recognition.

Key Audit Matter
RSB R

RAPEEPHBOFRE S FEAR D
R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB N RIEMRBE N EE

Revenue Recognition

Wy i 52

Refer to note 2.21 and note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

F2RGREMB|RRME2.21 KMFEs -

The Group recognised revenue from sales of goods
amounted to approximately US$382million for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
REEZZSZ—F+-A=+—HILEE> B£ER
RIHEERmZWEHLI382EEETT

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when or as the control of the products
is transferred to the customer. The risk and reward of
ownership have been transferred to the customer upon
delivery of products or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

HEEMZWERNERZEREERER P AR R
RoEARNEBAERRENRERRNN SEEAERE
B BERmMAEMRECRERREBRER P

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition
included:

FRPIARMBRDERNEFEE !

1) We understood and evaluated the revenue recognition
policy of the Group by reviewing the sales contracts
entered with the customers on a sample basis and
discussed with management.
EMALMEREREERIIINHESOREE
e TRRREHE BEBMNERESEEER-

2)  We understood, evaluated, and tested the relevant
management’s controls in respect of the Group’s
revenue recognition process.

BMETH TR ERAEEEH SEEMWK
70 B 5 R A2 ER EN A9 452 6l FE i o

3) We tested the occurrence and accuracy of revenue
transactions recognised in relation to the sales of
goods by examining, on a sample basis, the relevant
supporting documents including sales orders, goods
delivery notes and invoices.

BMBEBMERE RIS (BEHEIE B
BEBRER) CAARMBEESR WWWEQ%ﬁ
AR
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RSBt EIE EMMNEANAEIERAREETEE

We focused on this area due to its financial significance  4)
and high volume of transactions involved. As a result, a
significant amount of effort was spent on auditing this
area.

AHEMBEEURIRARER S BB ITRZAE
At BPIRAKRELEFEZSE

5)

We confirmed the balances of trade receivables and
advance from customers with selected customers,
considering the significance of the balances and the
nature and characteristics of those customers.
EMEKCHERARIARNESRAKRETRERG
B BRERIRERPERNEEEUREMEMN
FERho

We tested sales transactions recorded before and
after the balance sheet date, on a sample basis, by
reconciling recognised revenue with the goods delivery
notes to assess whether revenue was recognised in the
correct reporting periods.
BMPEAZEEINCRERBTEE hRUEANRE
EEBERHABRREHNHER S  UFhHkEE SN
EHERVIR S HAR BT o

Based on our audit procedures performed, we found that
the Group's revenue recognised was supported by the
evidence that we obtained.

RBEEFFFATHESERF HAER AADNENIEX

e
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Hitz 8
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

o AL SR =
FeEEEAER
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—EZ—F —EZEHF
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 5% F= FET
ASSETS BHiE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSE 6 158,339 164,595
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7 4,841 4914
Intangible assets EREE 8 2,100 2,096
Long-term prepayments REATE(TRIA 13 2,718 3,711
Investment in an associate R—EBEA[TZ
®E 10 4,702 4,903
Total non-current assets ERIMEELEE 172,700 180,219
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 12 101,648 91,665
Trade receivables EURE ZER 13 32,164 30,298
Prepayments and other receivables FANTRIER
H fth FE WL FRIE 13 11,449 11,337
Amounts due from related parties EWERREALTRIE  32(d) 1,442 862
Structured bank deposits ERMIRITER 14 2,533 7,982
Short-term bank deposits and AR ITE R IR R
pledged bank deposits RITEM 14 1,075 21,817
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 14 66,136 42,359
Total current assets RENBEEHEE 216,447 206,320
Total assets BEEHE 389,147 386,539
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of EATHEA
the Company A #E 25
Share capital & s 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves 5 16 286,561 285,832
301,789 301,060
Non-controlling interest JEER S 228 210
Total equity R AREE 302,017 301,270
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEEERRR

As at 31 December

®+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-_—F —ECTE
Note USs$‘'000 Us$'000
B 5% F=T FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 8,647 13,986
Lease liabilities HEEaR 7 2,650 2,818
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRSIR AR 19 1,665 2,134
Retirement benefit obligations BAEANEE 27 1,505 1,460
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELLE 14,467 20,398
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade payables FE(S B B BRR 17 17,510 6,963
Accruals and other payables FEstER K
HMEMRIE 17 21,316 20,665
Amounts due to related parties FEHBERIEALRIE  32(d) 517 1,358
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 31,661 32,373
Lease liabilities HEaR 7 369 199
Current income tax liabilities BNERFR SR EaE 1,290 3,313
Total current liabilities mENBEEEE 72,663 64,871
Total liabilities =Rk 87,130 85,269
Total equity and liabilities EankaERE 389,147 386,539

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 209 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022 and were

signed on its behalf.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung
ZFEY:
Director

E

Lt EERRREZERERMMFE—HE

2
8= ©

HRBIN6E200E 2GR AUBRREN S

S —=

T TEZR+HEEZEEBEHRIHTIA

tREES

Yang, Kun-Hsiang

i
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Income Statement

rElkmk
Year ended 31 December
HE+-B=+—BHLFE
2021 2020
—T”—F —BEF
Note Us$’000 US$'000
B 5 FET TFE7
Revenue W == 5 382,361 360,741
Cost of sales iHE A& 21 (321,988) (288,185)
Gross profit EF 60,373 72,556
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEX 21 (23,121) (25,173)
Administrative expenses THREXZ 21 (23,905) (21,638)
Other gains/(losses) — net Hitzs,~ (B518)
—ER 20 1,635 (2,866)
Operating profit prd S| 14,982 22,879
Finance income AU A 569 728
Finance costs B H (336) (473)
Finance income — net B FEUR A — 3 RE 22 233 255
Share of post-tax loss of an associate L —E e AT
IR B RS 18 10 (201) (1,117)
Profit before income tax BRER 1SR AIEFI 15,014 22,017
Income tax expense Frigiipms 23 (3,982) (5,340)
Profit for the year REERA 11,032 16,677
Profit attributable to: UT&EFRESGETR
Owners of the Company KATEE A 11,014 16,650
Non-controlling interest JEERR RS 18 27
11,032 16,677
Earnings per share for profit KATIHEE AEGE
attributable to the owners of REMNZESRER
the Company during the year (U EBEWTT)
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share SRBRELAER 25 0.72 1.09
Diluted earnings per share SRBETH 25 0.72 1.09

The above consolidated income statement should be read in _Eii4sE& WS REEEBRWNE —HRE-
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mAEEERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-H=+—HL=EE
2021 2020
—E_—F —ZETEHF
Us$’000 US$'000
TF=T FEx
Profit for the year EEEREF 11,032 16,677
Other comprehensive income: HthZ2mBA :
Item that may be reclassified to B EH S EE R m 2 EH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences bE R ZXE 907 3,102
Other comprehensive income for TEERREEMEZEKRA
the year, net of tax 907 3,102
Total comprehensive income for EEEZTERALLE
the year 11,939 19,779
Total comprehensive income for UTEARGEERE
the year attributable to: PEUWABEE:
— Owners of the Company —KABHEAA 11,921 19,752
— Non-controlling interest — IR R 18 27
Total comprehensive income EEEZTERALLE
for the year 11,939 19,779

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should _Eiiéz&

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B

% [ Wy 2 A 7 (5 48 BR Y 5 — D
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Consolida:ced Statement of Changes in Equity
Y L e

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAFEE AR
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest equity

ke REE  EREE  AHEE AERE  REEA @it FEREE  EDEE
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TER TERT TEn TEn TER TE7T TEn TEn

Balance at 1 January 2020 RZBZEZ

—R—BZ#&k 15,228 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 287,514 213 287,727
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year FEEER - - - - - 16,650 16,650 7 16,677
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKRA
Currency translation differences ERER - - 3,102 - - - 3,102 - 3,102
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - - 3,102 - - 16,650 19,752 7 19,779

Total transactions with owners BREAZERAE

Dividends (Note 24) BE (z24) - - - - - (6,206) (6,206) - (6,206)
Dividend payable to non-controlling ~ FEff—RIKBATZ
interest of a subsidiary FEREZZRE - - - - - - - (30) (30)

Balance at 31 December 2020 RZEZ%E

+ZB=+—-HzH&H 15,228 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 301,060 210 301,270
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-&

—B—-Rz%&H 15,228 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 301,060 210 301,270
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year FEEER - - - - - 11,014 11,014 18 11,032
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA
Currency translation differences EREHE - - 907 - - - 907 - 907
Total comprehensive income 2EMALE - - 907 - - 11,014 11,921 18 11,939
Total transactions with owners BRBAZERSE
Dividends (Note 24) RE (Mz£24) - - - - - (11,192) (11,192) - (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve ENMPRLERE - - - - 46 (46) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZB-Z-£

+ZR=+-Rz#&8 15,228 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 301,789 28 302,017

m

&8 R EE R AR MY 5 — 5T B

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be b4z & #E %4
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Bo
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\7|- - | Iﬁﬁ;ﬁgi

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_-_A=1+—HLEFE

2021 2020
Note Us$°000 US$ 000
M 5 TxT FEx
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEEZ
HERE
Cash generated from operations e e 29(a) 31,846 50,037
Interest paid [SENEES) (469) (763)
Income taxes paid [=ENIIECY (6,505) (3,632)
Net cash generated from A B 2 e
operating activities REFEE 24,872 45,642
Cash flows from investing activities REEFHEEZ
HE&ERE
Purchases of property, BEVME -BEX
plant and equipment B (11,393) (35,647)
Proceeds from disposal of H:'.’Efl"@ﬁ R = &
property, plant and equipment RBZFR1ERIE 29(a) 77 8
Purchases of intangible assets BERTEE 8 (17) (76)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank DHAIRITER
deposits and pledged bank deposits BIEHIRITER
B () 20,742 (5,837)
Decrease/(increase) in structured bank EEEIRITER
deposits B (Ggm) 5,455 (5,208)
Proceeds from return on REEEEIRITER
structured bank deposits [El$R Z FR1§ 18 145 155
Interest received BUF & 569 728
Net cash generated from/(used in) KRETBEEFTR)Z
investing activities H&F5E 15,578 (45,877)
Cash flows from financing activities MEESHEEZ
HERE
Dividends paid BURE 24 (11,192) (6,206)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITEEMERIE 73,424 72,536
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (79,487) (66,299)
Principal elements of lease payment MEMRZAEID (375) (114)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBFAZ
REEH (17,630) (83)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERkREEEY
cash equivalents o, GRilb) B8 22,820 (318)
Cash and cash equivalents REVIZRER
at beginning of year HRELEEY 14 42,359 41,127
Exchange gains on cash and REkREEEYMZ
cash equivalents BE 2 U & 957 1,550
Cash and cash equivalents REXRZRAER
at end of year REEEY 14 66,136 42,359
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in Lz &RESRBEREE R ERIM T — 5
conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of fermentation-based food additives,
biochemical products and cassava starch-based industrial
products including modified starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium
Glutamate (“MSG"”), soda, glutamic acid (“GA") and others.
The products are sold to food distributors, international trading
companies, and manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and
chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries,
the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and
several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the structured bank deposits which
are measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

N

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Amendments to standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
to standards which are mandatory for the Company
for the first time for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2021:

Interest rate benchmark
reform — Phase 2

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

(Amendments)
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related rent
(Amendments) concessions

The adoption of the above amendments to
standards did not have any material impact on the
current period or any prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (8
(b) The following new standards, amendments to (b) UTHEBEMENRZ-ZZ—
standards, accounting guideline and practice F—A—HBHHEBZHHEE
statement (together refers as “Amendments”) have AR AE R INEIR AT AN Z
been issued, but are not effective for the financial ZRNZERZEETAR FEHE
year beginning on 1 January 2021 and have not SIREEZER (REA MEET
been early adopted. 7)) o

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or

after
RTH Bz &G
ZEERBEEN
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-related rent concessions 1 April 2021
beyond 2021
BEEMBREENFE 165 ZE T —F RS i X AR —E”_—FHmA—H
(CEIE:N) HER%R
Annual Improvements Project  Annual improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
(Amendments) 2018 - 2020
FENEEE (B:T4) EEUBREEN _Z—N\FE T__F—H—H
T EHEERZEENE
HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and Narrow-scope amendments 1 January 2022
HKAS 37 (Amendments)
ERAMBREERFE39R NEEEEST —_E”_"_#—H—H
EBESHERB165E R
EBGERE375R
(CEIEN)
AG 5 (Revised) Revised accounting guideline 5 1 January 2022
merger accounting for common
control combinations
B5H1551 855 (B5T ) B5H1E515855% (B5TA) HEERSHHN T _F—H—H
afEsE
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of liabilities as 1 January 2023
current or non-current
EREEREIE (1B5T4H) RBFERDEGESE —E=F—H—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
EARAMBREERFE 1758 REEHY —E”=F—H—H
HKFRS 17 (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 January 2023
BERMBREENFE 7R BEEMBREENE 7R (BTH) —E=F—H—H
(CEIE:N)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RRBERTEGHHRBE (B)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE R
(b) The following new standards, amendments to by UTEAEEHGER_Z_—

standards, accounting guideline and practice
statement (together refers as “Amendments”) have
been issued, but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2021 and have not

F-B—HHRABZMBEE
iH R E R TR LR A R A0 2
EQERZEFT A GFHE
SR AEEEER] (B R TMERT

been early adopted. (continued)

&) e

(&)

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or
after

RTF Bz A
ZEERBER

HK Int 5 (2020)

EHREESR CETF)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)
BEAGHENEIRK
EARAUMBRESEL
TEEEERIZE25% (1BET4N)
HKAS 8 (Amendments)
BB G ERFE’ (BFTA)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

ERAGERE 125
(EET %)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

ERMBREERFE 10K
ERB G R 5B285%
(5T )

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
presentation of financial statements —
classification by the Borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause (HK Int 5 (2020))

BEEREESH (C2ZF) MBRRZ
2 -EEAHEEREREERYZ
BHRERZDE
(BBRESSH (CETEH))

Disclosure of accounting policies

BETBERIRE

Definition of accounting estimates

Bt ER

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction

REE—XSNEERABZIEH

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture

REEZHEHMERTANEGELEZHNE
EHEFIE

1 January 2023

—E=F—A—H

1 January 2023

—E-_=%F—HF—H

1 January 2023
—E-=#—A—H
1 January 2023

—E-_=F—8A—H

To be determined

TEE

The directors of the Company have assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption of
the above Amendments. There are no Amendments
that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions. The Group intends to adopt the
Amendments when they become effective.

ERBEFEFEHEM LR
EIAHNAERZHMBLE-
B REM R AR KRR
BEREHAERUKRATR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(@]

Business combinations (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.9). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RRBERTEGHHRBE (@)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 2.2 MIBATE (B)

2.3

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group’'s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E MR R M EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERFTEGHHREE (B
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 EBREE
(a)  Goodwill (a) HE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries BERKERBARRES
represents the excess of the consideration TWEPrE R E R RUEES
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling ZAERIEER #E m U KA
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair RIS A 2 IR AR &= 7 I
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree BHHEZRAFEBHETWE
over the fair value of the identified net assets HNERNEEFEQAFEZ
acquired. g
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill BHETHREINS REBES
acquired in a business combination is allocated HhkE2EENDSEETR
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), HZEREHBERNEZE
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the BEREEN (THRIREE
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of fii)) EBERE B AR - &
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents EoimE BN —HE
the lowest level within the entity at which the ABRMANEIEERE
goodwill is monitored for internal management By RBEE@D BERKED
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating HEmETER-
segment level.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken HmESFETRERS  TF
annually or more frequently if events or changes RESHLRABERNERE
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. A S IR ER (EH EE
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the Bigst o mEREEREATWE
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value SR BAIERABEAATER
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any HERAZESE) (ELE&K-
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense ERERNRERARST B
and is not subsequently reversed. HBAg#E -
(b)  Trademarks and license (b) BEIERIERE
Separately acquired trademarks and the license, EEREAFRAFHZEIL
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost B 2 B AR R KR R ¥R AR AN R
less accumulated amortisation and impairment REMBHEAREBEAR#
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight- HILFBEGEHE UEE
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and BRIBBEREARBESERE
license over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 +EEE A FERAFIRARNET
years. paNioh
(c)  Computer software (c) EBEeEH

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

134 vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT

BANBRKNTERRER
BEREAZEERMEFSIE
R ARE AL - BRAMARE
EEt P ERER A F#N-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEERTEGHHREE (B

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 28 FEHMBEEZRE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, TWEREIEBRFHZEE (NE
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are 2) BAESE BEASFEANARE
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject BEBEHHRABRETETRER
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever HEAEFEKRER A ATEE
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the HEBHE 2 EEFRRET G R
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment BEEENREERAEBEETIK
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's Bl EE 2 £ Ea M - 7] W EI R EE 1S
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The BEZATERHENSEERE
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value ERHNRESE MTEESTREM
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of S EERSERBIATHANRER
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest 2 (BIRESELN) 2REKFES
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash F-HIRBEBEZIEVEEE (FEIE
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other ME) > REREHAEM A sEEE
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed BT T AT
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

2.9 Financial assets 29 MBEEE
2.9.1 Classification 2.9.1 748

The Group classifies its financial assets in the TEEREMBEES AU
following measurement categories: TEtE8ER ¢

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.12),
amounts due from related parties, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2.13) in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss comprise structured
bank deposits.

e HBBATESAHET
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REBB+__EABZEZWN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERFTEGHHREE (B
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 HMBEE @
2.9.1 Classification (continued) 2.9.1 248 (#)
The Group reclassifies debt investments when and TEBRERHEEZEEE
only when its business model for managing those ZEBEEANHREHEFEN
assets changes. DEEBRSE-
2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition 2.9.2 R RARILFESR
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets MHEERREENRSH
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which (AR EFEAEBERHE
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. ZEEHBR BRI -MBEE
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights R BEERE RN
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have MERREEERTERE
expired or have been transferred and the group has BERBERENAKE S BB K
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of O] R Fr 4% LIEFE SR o
ownership.
2.9.3 Measurement 29352
At initial recognition, the Group measures a R LR NEE R
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of BEZRATFESM HHMBE
a financial asset not at fair value through profit ElFFEATES AEE (%2
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly ANFEFAERDR)) KR
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. BEEEEBELA 2R MAE
ENBEE-
Debt instruments BB IA
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments BEIAZBEBSAERTELX
depends on the Group's business model EHEEEEZEBEAR
for managing the asset and the cash flow BEEZRERERFEME

characteristics of the asset.

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for . B A | FF A MULEY
collection of contractual cash flows where ENRERE (ZFR
those cash flows represent solely payments EMEBEEALTOAXAEEE
of principal and interest are measured at RAE) 2EEZEH
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt ARG E - B EREH
investment that is subsequently measured at B AR 5t 2 Rt FE R R
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging HR—BOZEBBEREZ
relationship is recognised in the consolidated W BENZEER
statements of comprehensive income when IR RERRES
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest 2EKERAER - Z
income from these financial assets is included EHBEEZMERA
in finance income using the effective interest BB A=A AR
rate method. WA ©
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R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 HBBEE @)
2.9.3 Measurement (continued) 2.9.3 52 (#&)

RRBERTEGHHRBE (@)

Debt instruments (continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

2.9.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, the impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected credit losses.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group
considers both historical default rate and forward-
looking information.

BEBTE (@)
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Bt AEtMEEBRAR
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BaER LEELEH
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RLUEEEE S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10

2.12

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

The Group has no offsetting financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2020 and
2021.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.

138 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT

2

RRBERTEGHHRBEE (B)

2.10 IEHE/MTE

MBEERBRAERAKERGH
T REANRFHEED A RNERER
FEEEEEUARBFEREERE
BEaERTLURE ; ARAFEAR
mEBEEBERRATR BIRIAR
1T Z R B A BURFE R K
E BRARTRARBHHEFH
WEBEBERF UERREEH
RENEH BHEHERREZRE
TR REIAT

FERRBE_S_ZFER-FT
T+ R=+—HZKEEE
BERANTERFHESRTIA

w8
FEURARATEEZEMEN
AR E ARR o BUAS N T 1905 5
B HRmNERERASERM
B BEAI HttEZRANE
MEEER UESERTHH) -
BREEEEME - T #FFER
RABEEFPESNEERERN
FFEIEHER<E -

HERFATFES LEAMEF
HER B AT AR ©

2.12 FEUNE 5 ARAR B E fth FE W R IR

PR E 2 AR R HL A FE WO I )
BATERSD HBRUBERA R
BREBHERANRREREE W
FE UL & 5 R AR s EL At FE W R TR TR AR
AR—FHURKE o ESR
BEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RRBERTEGHHRBEE (B)

(continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company's subsidiaries
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 EHIRIEIEFREMH (&)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(b)
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AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 EHIRIEIEFRSMH (&)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RRBERTEGHHRBE (@)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 2.19 BERH (@&

(a)  Pension obligations (continued) (a) BUZTEMR #HE)
The current service cost of a defined benefit plan, RiZEWRaERAZEERT
recognised in the consolidated income statement in HERR 2 AEREHME 2R
employee benefit expense, except where included HRBA A GtABERSE
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the PRON RERAFEEREE R
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee EEZRAERANEMEIEGM- &
service in the current year, benefit changes, FIEE - HIR R AEE o
curtailments and settlements.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in BERBRAMNEEEER
profit or loss. o
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays MATHEHMRFEMES &
contributions to publicly or privately administered BEaHAZERMAREESE
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, ZRARMRME ST 2 7E H 8
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no BHIHEREEHER N AMH
further payment obligations once the contributions R rEEBEEMORE
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as Fo RN EAZTRERA
employee benefit expense when they are due. EERAMAZ-

(b)  Termination benefits (b) ARUEFEF

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 2.19 BERH (@

2.20

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RRBERTEGHHRBE (@)

(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income recognition

2.21 RN EREMEA

(a)  Sales of goods (a) HEEY
Sales are recognised when control of the product HERERZEFREERE
has transferred, being when the product is on board (RNEEHERUBILE) &
for delivery, and there is no unfulfilled obligation BMEIEETREMERZ
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the KBITEERES - REKRE
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have KEABRERRNHAAERS
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or R BIREAMAEMEE
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for ERENFERERR
acceptance have been satisfied.
Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the REHEERZWHEDER
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of HESNIEEZEREH B
financing is deemed present as the sales are made RBETLREE{IHRECOH
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days, ZIEEHHREL (ERHIBIE
which is consistent with market practice. Bl—5) HEHETEERS

TEE-

Receivable is recognised when the product is R IER R & m s
delivered as this is the point in time when the FEEABLILBTREABREEZ
consideration is unconditional, which only the REEI R EARFRBBEER
passage of time is required before the payment is IER AT FR
due.
Contract liabilities BHaRE
Contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits or EHNEBFEERXRINTER
payments received in advance for sales of goods not PzEmEEZTARZEER
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised TREM WERERXNTT
when goods are delivered to customers. R FFRESE o

(b) Interest income (b) FIEKA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion FMEWMAKBERANE AR
basis using the effective interest method. When a BFFE LB R ZE TSR o M E R
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces FEWER IR RE N ERE
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, BREEREHEHZERER
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at TERBERAERZ G
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, WRKREREMRE Z ]
and continues unwinding the discount as interest U B Rk EE - 4B B R BRITIRE
income. Interest income on impaired loan and BRBUA BEERKREK
receivables is recognised using the original effective R ZF BWATI LR E R
interest rate. MIRFEED o

(c)  Dividend income () BREKA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to 7E T 37 U B GR IE 2 REF) B 0 BR
receive payment is established. BIAF U -
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AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.22 Leases 222 #HE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBERFETHEHREE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.22 Leases (continued) 2,22 HHE (&)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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AR e R R M SE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23

2.24

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants
do not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and
all attached condition were complied by the Group,
they are recognised under “other gains/(losses) — net”
in consolidated income statement upon receipt of the
grants.
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RAF5 R R M 5E

4o A
s 3

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally with most
of the transactions denominated in US$,
Vietnam Dong and Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily
through future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
with respect to Vietnam Dong and Renminbi.
The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(M)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2021, for the Group's
subsidiary whose functional currency is
Us$, if the Vietnam Dong had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the US$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been US$1,362,000
(2020: US$1,777,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other payables denominated in Vietnam
Dong.

At 31 December 2021, for the Group's
subsidiaries whose functional currency
is Renminbi, if the US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the Renminbi
with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been US$2,000
(2020:US$2,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of cash and cash equivalents
denominated in US$.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$35,314,000 (2020: US$39,743,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$4,994,000
(2020: US$6,616,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$150,000 (2020: US$169,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on variable rate borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties.

0]

(i)

Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related
parties included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 14 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

Impairment of financial assets

While structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 40% (2020:
39%) of its trade receivables were from the
five largest trade receivables (2020: five),
which are mainly reputable corporations.
Considering the track record of regular
repayment of trade receivables based on
the Group's experience with respect to the
collection of these receivables, the directors
are of the opinion that the risk of default by
these customers is not significant.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by customers is not significant.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be close to zero.
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AT R R M 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2021
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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R MR EE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 WMBERER @
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEAKREZE (@)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b) EERE #)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) iy HMHBEEEZHE @
Trade receivables (continued) FEURE Z IR (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 FHEELE - RIE
December 2021 and 2020 was determined _—EKRZIE_EHF
as follows for both trade receivables and +ZB=+—HBZEK
contract assets: BERIANREGHNEEZ
BEBEDEETNT :
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
E--F bl ki ki
31 December 2021 +ZA=+-H 1£1808  181E360H 183608 &t
Expected loss rate ki) opi ok 0.01% 0.66% N/ATER 100%
Gross carrying amount RIRERE
- trade receivables (US$'000) —TEE BIRS
(F&£m) 30,501 1,677 - 309 32,487
Loss allowance (US$'000) EiEkE (T£1) 11 - 309 323
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ECEBE ol B k]
31 December 2020 +-RA=+-H B 1£180H 181E360H 81B360H At
Expected loss rate BHEEE 0.01% 0.89% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount RIREE
~ trade receivables (US$'000) —TERE BIRT
(F&£m) 28,024 2,251 57 328 30,660
Loss allowance (US$'000) EiEkE (TE1) 3 20 1 328 362
As at 31 December 2021, the loss allowances RZIEZ—H+ =

for trade receivables were US$323,000 (2020:
US$362,000). Management are of opinion
that that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other receivables, amount due from an
associate and amounts due from related
parties
The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is minimal.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital-intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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R MR EE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 WMBEAKREIE (@
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBRAMREZR (&)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REBELEE )
The table below analyses the Group's financial T RERGEEHESHNE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based B THESEAERZM
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BEESAEMI AR E
date to the contractual maturity date. The TR -NEREPIRBEZEEE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BENRBRIRERE

undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between Between
Tyear 1and2years 2and5years Over5 years Total
—-ER  -EERE REELE BRLE Bt
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FEn SE SEH TEx TE1
At 31 December 2021 AZEZ-F
TZA=1-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RTEE (1) 32,041 5,300 3,541 - 40,882
Lease liabilities (Note) REEE () 454 380 1,130 1,765 3,729
Trade payables ELERED 17,510 - - - 17,510
Other payables and accruals  EftIETEREER 5,759 - - - 5,759
Amounts due to EAEHEALRE
related parties 517 - - - 517
At 31 December 2020 \_EER
+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (f5) 32,922 5,676 8,180 730 47,508
Lease liabilities (Note) RE&E () 282 282 1,128 2,046 3,738
Trade payables LS 6,963 - - - 6,963
Other payables and accruals  Eft IR E: &R 7,451 - - - 7,451
Amounts due to EAEREALRIE
related parties 1,358 - - - 1,358
Note: B 5T
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings AR EEEESIHAAME
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TEEREEaERMGZHE
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BAEE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEREEESZERARELRE
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going BREEBUREEELE 2k N
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders UABRREREFRASHMFTRHE
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an TR E UWRERFEBEZERG
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. LU DB AR o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, ABTHERIABRELREE ~&EE
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to ARERABKNFREZKREEEE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new AREREES  ZBITHRMIE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. EEEMREGER-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total
borrowings include non-current bank borrowings, current
borrowings, non-current lease liabilities and current lease
liabilities.

During 2021, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2020, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
as follows:

3

REBEREEE (B
3.2 BEXEE @

BERNHEMAT K FEEUE
EEBRLEEREEERELR - ZL
RRGRCEERBRATRZBMEE
BRUERE AREFAE -REEEE
FFRBIBITEE RHEE R
BEEaERABEEGRE

RIEZ—F AEBEZKEKHAT
T EMRMNEER—2 h#
FEEEBBLEEREGEKFE-R
TR FRIEZZTE+CZH
=t+—HBZEE&GBLEDT

2021 2020

—E-—F —EIEE

us$’000 Us$'000

FET FE

Total borrowings BmEE 43,327 49,376

Owners' equity (including non- EE AR (BEFETA

controlling interest in equity) U g | 2 ) 302,017 301,270

Gearing ratio BEEABMBLER 14.3% 16.4%
Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMGE

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, prepayments, amounts due from
related parties, structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due to related parties and trade
and other payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values because of their short maturities. The carrying
value of the long-term other receivables approximates its
fair value as it was estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

158 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT

E W E 5 R R H A& W
B -AMRE-ERARBEALR
B ERBERTER - RBRTE
REREERBETER - RERRE
ZEY BOAAMEALRENR
FE{T & 5 AR R L e (T TR IE & 2
HAME AEEREHKREERR
EREFERAQATERE REHM
BUHREZ FEEZHEQFERE
HOWHAREDZEBEAEERM
BUERMIATBZRETHBANE
MERRENEEREMHFH-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT R R M 5E
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (continued)

0 Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed

MEBEKEERE (8)
3.3 AFEMGE (@

()  RFEER
FEHBABEENMBRERA
BATERINGTENTH
T EMATER LA B
Reftist o 213 HEE R FEFR
REABBHAESER &
EEREHEMRERES
MIASER=EE®-

under the accounting standards.

Level 2
B/
Us$'000
TET
Recurring fair value measurements BEMNFEE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ_—%+"A=+—H
Financial assets MBEEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEStABENHMBEE
profit or loss 2,533
Recurring fair value measurements BEMERNFEFE
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZEHE+"A=+—H
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEBEStABENTBTEE
profit or loss 7,982
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
There were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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R MR EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 8).

Current income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in
the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. The estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charges where useful lives are different from those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

4

EE

(a)

(b)

(c)

Gt st R ¥R (48

EEN G R E
NEEMESEHY BB E2 8FT M
THEENRE ISEE2T
WEMREE - BEIRS BT
C&EDRBERAEESE HHE
B2 EEE W G5t R B (M s
8) e

EHFREH

FEBTEABMTE BEkE
BHFRR - NEERIKAAIERR
REFNERR AEEHAFHE
KAV - 5F 2 X5 Rest EI9H LA
HEERENNBER FEEA
st RRE T RMERINRIE > M
ERHRBRRGEREEZEE-
HZEEEZRENBEE R
ARZEEAR ZEEBRTE
MBEEHAANZ ERRIELEFRER
BERERE

ME -BERRBNGEAERSE
B R RIEREE
FEBEELAEBZYE BEK
RENMGFUEAER RBREE
REEFEER ARG DER
MERINERUZYME HEIRR
BRERERAEHNBEERME
W e B EA RN TRl E
Hr-AxEBRGEITNEER &
HEH MR E R A S E HAV R M
REEXFRBEUEEE - BREK
FHHAEERRESHEREHAKE
BRRBREER G AN G5 RERE
E-EMRANAUESTINETFHAK
FREELREE URTERRK
AR ER L2
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has been operating
in one single business segment, i.e. the manufacture and sale
of fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products
and cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, MSG, soda, GA and others (2020: same).

PEEH

FTEEERAKRECHTAZRBUITE
B HITESBERAERBZHERER U
FRRREEDEER - BE_Z”-—F
+ZA=+—HUEFE xERKLE—E
BB MNERHEZBRERA
MBS tERERABERMIEER B
BRI BEEE KB HIT A8

BREM (CEIEEFE EE) o

(a) Revenue (a) Uk
2021 2020

—E=Z—F —EZEHF

Us$’000 Us$'000

F= F=T

Sales of goods HEE M 382,361 360,741

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The Group receives payments from certain customers
in advance of the performance under the contracts.
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

BENEERRZ W
AEERBITEOMKRETER
ZHEMGH e TRETVRARSEE
MIAZWEEREE SN EE 2R
BE-

2021 2020
—s-—% —EoEsF
Us$'000 US$'000
FET FE7
Revenue recognised that was ARV EHNEaREERZ
included in the contract liabilities Bl E
balance at the beginning of the
year 4,230 2,506

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of
approximately US$41,509,000 is derived from a single
external customer located in Japan. The revenue is
attributable to the MSG and GA products (2020: no
customers individually contribute 10% or more of the
Group's revenue).
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R MR EE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 DEEE A
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Wz (@)
The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is AEMBHIIBAE (RAEHMIEBAL
determined by the geographical presence of customers, is BARAE) Bl WM -
as follows:
2021 2020
—E_—F —EIEE
us$‘000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
Vietnam [2g=] 169,363 170,547
Japan H4s 62,832 61,195
The PRC & 63,447 47,016
ASEAN member countries (other than R EE (FEIEHE)

Vietnam) 29,067 26,112
America E==H 26,132 26,717
Other regions Hihith&@ 31,520 29,154

382,361 360,741
(b) Non-current assets, other than prepayments, by location, (b) #%UE HEEMEERRE) &5

which is determined by the country in which the asset is
located, are as follows:

ZIERBEE FENIRIERIN W
T

2021 2020

—EZ—F —ECEF

Us$'000 US$'000

FE=T F=T

Vietnam R 158,693 165,263
The PRC A 11,287 11,245
Cambodia TR 2 -
Total &5t 169,982 176,508
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME-BERSE
Construction Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles equipment Total
TEIR ¥ BERER HE BAERE Eh
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
T T TEr TEr TEx S
At 1 January 2020 RZ-E”_2%£-F—AH
Cost M 25,976 108,080 463,110 9,857 20,160 627,183
Accumulated depreciation RitiE - (77,477) (371,067) (7,373) (17,987) (473,904)
Accumulated impairment REtEE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REZE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZS-ZE
+ZB=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FRAZE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
Additions RE 30,872 316 2,129 314 250 33,881
Transfer E2 (3.122) 205 2,917 - - -
Disposals (Note 29) HE (29 - - (39) (4) (2) (45)
Depreciation (Note 21) 178 (fisk21) - (2,683) (14,340) (585) (440) (18,048)
Impairment (Note 20) AE (fEE20) - (114) (672) - - (786)
Exchange differences ERER - 385 116 15 5 521
Closing net book amount FRRAFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
At 31 December 2020 R-Z-Z5+”_B=+-H
Cost WA 53,726 110,337 471,343 10,015 20,410 665,831
Accumulated depreciation RetiE - (81,511) (388,517) (7,791) (18,424) (496,243)
Accumulated impairment RitRfE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z--F
+ZA=1+—-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENRAFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Additions RE 9,461 16 1,334 280 305 11,396
Transfer gz (4,107) 131 3,784 - 53 (139)
Disposals (Note 29) HE (H329) - - (5) (22) (3) (30)
Depreciation (Note 21) e (fe21) - (2,791) (13,878) (545) (465) (17,679)
Exchange differences ERER - 140 53 3 - 196
Closing net book amount EXREEEE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
At 31 December 2021 R-Z--%+”B=+-H
Cost WA 59,080 110,728 471,743 10,043 20,756 672,350
Accumulated depreciation RetiE - (84,406) (397,629) (8,103) (18,880) (509,018)
Accumulated impairment RitAE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339

Depreciation expense of US$16,905,000 (2020:
US$17,199,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$292,000
(2020: US$288,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$482,000 (2020: US$561,000) in administrative expenses.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain property,
plant and machinery of the Group amounting to US$786,000
was impaired as no economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal due to the transformation of Phuoc Long Plant in
Vietnam.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$225,000 (2020: US$379,000) on qualifying
assets.

As at 31 December 2021, certain buildings with carrying
amount of US$3,603,000 (2020: Nil), were pledged as
collaterals for the Group’s bank borrowings of US$784,000
(2020: Nil) (Note 18).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

6

ME - -BERRE (B

BE_Z_THF+-_A=+—HBLE
B> HREENEERNIE RRTE

RERAIHEZTIHRPERSEEND > &
EEHNEMET86,000ETZETYE
iR 55 Be 1 23 B R E

ER AEFECREEREENEERE
225,000E 75 (ZEZEF 1 379,000%7T)
BB

RIEZ—HF+ZHA=+—H RKEES
3,603,000 (ZEZEF . |8 WET
BFEIRPAAREEIRITHERT84,000%

T (CEIEF | NI WsE18) o

EREEERHEEAR
() MREEEEARREINEH

HEEEAREXRYIIUTREAR
BEER

2021 2020

us$’'000 Us$'000

FET FE=T

Land use rights T R 3,335 3,594
Building g 1,498 1,312
Equipment Bodi] 8 8
Total right-of-use assets FRAEEERLE 4,841 4914
Current lease liabilities mEMEEaR 369 199
Non-current lease liabilities ErRBEEAaRE 2,650 2,818
Total lease liabilities HEaEHESE 3,019 3,017
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7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7 GERESERESHEE @
(continued)
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance (i) RZEEEARKRBEINEE @
sheet (continued)
Movement of right of use assets for the year: FREAEEENES !
2021 2020
ZEZ—F “EEE
us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE
At 1 January w—R—H 4,914 5,073
Addition for the year FRAE 376 -
Termination of contract FAKRLEELN
during the year (86) -
Amortisation of right-of-use assets EREE EHH (405) (280)
Exchange differences PERZEXE 42 121
At 31 December ®W+ZB=+—H 4,841 4,914
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) NiFEWRRERWEEE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following FeaRaREVUTHBEERRAN
amounts relating to leases: SR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEHE
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx TET
Amortisation charge of FREEEN
right-of-use assets: ENkRE
Land use rights T {E R 271 132
Building BF 134 148
405 280
Interest expense (included in A EEX
finance cost) GtAMBEZL) 92 89
Expense relating to short-term leases SR HAFHEBRAMNMEX
(included in administrative GtAfTTHBREX)
expenses) 47 43
The total cash outflow for leases, including payment _E_-FHEHEMERESRBEEE
for short-term leases, in 2021 was US$422,000 (2020: (BIEREAE R #2422,000%
US$157,000). JTT(ZTEZEHE : 157,000E7T) °
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7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7
(continued)

EREEERBEEGRE (&)

(i) FEEMNEEEHRARBEEZS

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for
The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
and Vietnam.

Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have
each been granted rights to use two lands in the PRC by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in
2042 and 2060, respectively.

Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam, has
obtained the rights to use certain lands in Vietnam by the
relevant authority for 43 to 50 years, which will expire in
2041.

Rental contract for building is made for a fixed period of
10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

ZHE
2 & [ B9 1 3t o AR R AL S o B e it
Eﬁo

PR BRI K B BB R A B B P
KAERAERAR (EFIKRA) &
EBE/AEERRAE (TLBK
1) E B EAMMPIE T HEMER
PEBMmE R FHR50E 0 D
AR BN _FR_ZTREFE
Ho

KA (EE) ROBRAE —ER
HMERIKEENKEBAR BB
TERASPERESEREES T L1
R EHA4L3ESOE BN _E
m—EEIff

BFNEESHIIE+ENEER
MR

HEBLEENERLERE T8
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 WmEEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
He R RIER [ &t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER FTER FTER TER
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZE&H—F—H
Cost A 8,001 2,013 12,189 22,203
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,751) (12,126) (13,877)
Accumulated impairment ZERE (3,580) - - (3,580)
Net book amount REFE 4,421 262 63 4,746
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_-TF
+ZB=+—-BHLEE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 4,421 262 63 4,746
Amortisation charge (Note 21) A% (M5t21) - (103) (mn (114)
Additions HE - 76 - 76
Impairment loss (Note 20) B (i5t20) (3,107) - (3,107)
Exchange differences ERER 495 - - 495
Closing net book amount FRIEEAFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
At 31 December 2020 RZ2ZEE+ZA=+—-H
Cost (DN 8,496 2,089 12,189 22,774
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,854) (12,137) (13,991)
Accumulated impairment REtAE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount REFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z-_-&
+ZA=+—-BLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BHmE% (ME21) - (113) (14) (127)
Additions AE - 17 - 17
Transfer 2 F - 139 - 139
Exchange differences ERERE (25) - - (25)
Closing net book amount EXRREFE 1,784 278 38 2,100
At 31 December 2021 RZE2_-f#+”"HB=1+-H
Cost B 8,471 2,245 12,189 22,905
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,967) (12,151) (14,118)
Accumulated impairment ZERE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount RERE 1,784 278 38 2,100
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BIHAS St ATTHMAX
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8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to

8 mﬁ/ﬁé (nﬂ)
AERERNR

HMEDREBEEESBIEELAEERN

operating segment. REE(o
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
] RS Rk S
TERAZER MRS wst
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FEr FET FET
At 31 December 2021 NI —4%
+=-—B=+—H 1,054 730 1,784
At 31 December 2020 NIE-EE
+=-—B=+—H 1,079 730 1,809

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU”) and the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). As management considered the recoverable amount
under the VIU method to be higher, the recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined based on VIU calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by management and approved by the Board
of Directors covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond the
five years period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG related
business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of

EERBREBFERIREEMN (THRIGR
EEMU)NERERE ((EREE) &R
FEAHERDS (T FEREERZE])
MEFNRSEECAREIEERE-HINE
EERAEREBERZTHNROEE
Wi FLBREIRE B2 T EIEERTD
Ut EEREEZARNEE RS EE
Fﬁ%ﬁ"’r’qfilﬁiﬁlﬁ_é&mﬁ$ﬁﬁtﬁ2£
FHMBREESUZKRRARERE
E'Ji’%ﬁOEHjEEHHZEE%/MET@ﬂL/{"F
FREFIZ AR REFERE WER) - B R
RAEerRINRESBUMEEZKE
HEEBHNRPFHOERER

BUsEPEREEARNIREEUR

the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows. BrERABEZEEZRRUW T
The PRC
hE
2021 2020
—E_—5F —TTEH
Sales per annum (US$'000) SEHER (T 13,032 - 14,913 11,608 - 13,287

Growth rate in sales HERRER

Gross margin EFE

Other operating costs per annum SEHMEERA®
(US$'000) (F%7m)

Long term growth rate REAGRE

RE (A

Discount rate (pre-tax)

3% - 7%
14.8% - 15.4%

3% - 12%
18.3% - 19.0%

1,234 - 1,448 1,615 -1,708
3% 3%
15.5% 15.4%
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8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill: (continued)

Sales per annum and growth rate in sales is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on
past performance and management’s expectations of market
development and current industry trends and includes long
term inflation forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

The management has performed sensitivity analysis over the
PRC MSG related business. A decrease in annual sales volume
growth rate by 25.1%, a decrease in annual sales price growth
rate by 0.4%, a decrease in gross margin by 1.0%, an increase
in annual operating costs by 0.5%, a decrease in long term
growth rate by 4.6% or an increase in discount rate by 2.6%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.

Based on the impairment review on the goodwill of PRC
and Vietnam MSG related business, the recoverable amount
calculated based on value-in-use calculations exceeds its
carrying value. As a result, no impairment loss was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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HEBAR
THAR-E-—&+-H=+—02
TEWEATEE

9 SUBSIDIARIES 9

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2021:

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
SEMERIL/FR I B FEARAZ  FEREERAZ
&8 NRiEEBRE FTEEBEREENY B#T/BRRAHE BERLA BERLA
Directly held:
b-1:7:7-
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited HEELHS TERRELR 100RBREBIZTN
(EERZES) BER
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. e GEERREER 100REBREBIZTH
BRR
Indirectly held:
BEEE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. i ERIRREER 61,109,000% 7T
ERR
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Eiyikd TR EER 20,177,000% 7T
BBR
Veedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 171,574,967 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each
industrial products including MSG, GA,
modified starch, glucose syrup, soda
and acid in Vietnam and for export
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation i THERERHESRRAAMEN £ 1715749678
Limited ERRABRNIXER OEKE SRAEEIZETN
AEE SURN BERR FITR BER
BRI MO
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, 15$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in the Registered capital
PRC
LERACERRAT HE BERERAH EREBRRAERE Rit 9,800,000%7¢
BB RAMER AR
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, US$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in the Registered capital
PRC
EMHARRERAR HE ARARAF EREBERBERE R 20,270,000%7% -
EHERSREAMER AMER
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Sale of starch and other products in the US$254,000 100% -
Co., Ltd. company PRC Registered capital
EFARELOEZBRAT HE ERERAAT EREHERNRAMER 254,000%7% -
AMER
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food additives  Registered capital of Riels 100% -
and biochemical products and cassava 2,640,000,000
starch-based industrial products in
Cambodia and for export
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd RER RRERUZERRATME £tER HREL
RAERNIXERHERLO 2,640,000,000%%
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10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 10

Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows:

REBEATZRE
REERARNZREZEFHUT :

2021 2020

—E_—F —EIE2H

us$000 Us$'000

FET FE=1

As at 1 January w—A—H 4,903 6,020
Share of post-tax loss of an associate L E AR BRREEEE (201) (1,117)
As at 31 December m+-ZB=+—H 4,702 4,903

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December
2021 and 2020:

WIEBE_—FR_E_ZTF+_-AH
=+—H REBEATZREEENT :

Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
%18 S AL B X BEITRAER HEEE% HERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMERZERERAR HENE 21,027,559 F /& R
HE1ETZ KRR

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development
in Vietnam.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and
there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 (2020:

US$112,000) in relation to the Group’s investment in the
associate.
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10

11

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 10 REEQATZIRE (@)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information MEENBEHK
2021 2020
—E=Z—F —EEHF
us$’'000 Us$'000
FET FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—RA—BZEERE 16,342 20,067
Loss for the year FRNEE (668) (3,725)
Net assets as at 31 December ®B+ZRA=+—H2
BEFE 15,674 16,342
Interest in an associate (30%) REE AT 2 #m(30%) 4,702 4,903
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11 #BEHNSISZEMITA
2021 2020
—T”—F B F
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
Financial assets at amortised cost BRBHEEAHAEZ
MEEE
— Trade receivables — BB ZER™® 32,164 30,298
— Other receivables —H W IE 996 2,151
— Amounts due from related parties —FEWAREALTRIE 1,442 862
— Short-term bank deposits and pledged — AR ITER K
bank deposits IKIPIRITIER 1,075 21,817
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERIREEEY 66,136 42,359
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESAERZ
profit or loss MEEE
— Structured bank deposits —EBMIRITER 2,533 7,982
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HRBHERAAEZ
M aE
— Trade payables — T EZER 17,510 6,963
— Other payables and accruals —HthEAMIER
et &R 5,759 7,451
— Amounts due to related parties —FENAREALRIE 517 1,358
- Bank borrowings —iR1TEE 40,308 46,359
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12 INVENTORIES 12 #H

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEF
US$°000 Us$'000
FET TFE7
Consumables JHFE R 6,711 6,403
Raw materials R 44 # 46,854 45,890
Work in progress ERG 6,389 2,776
Finished goods S A% o 41,758 36,773
101,712 91,842

Less: Provision for impairment losses on B FERERERE
inventories (64) (177)
101,648 91,665

The cost of inventories of US$271,177,000 (2020:
US$240,361,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included

in cost of sales amounted to US$16,000 (2020: US$3,000) and
US$113,000 (2020: US$50,000), respectively.

174 vedan International (Holdings) Limited B/ BIRE (2:A2) AIRAS

FERA271,177,000E T (ZEZF4F :
240,361,000%7T) B 5t ASHE RS ©

BERHEREZEE R E MR ERD
DA %16,000E T (ZE-FF : 3,0005
7t) % 113,000%E 7T (ZEZFF : 50,000
ET) °
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13

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 BERESRFKREMEKRRE
2021 2020
—E_—F —ECTE
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=T FET
Trade receivables from third parties EWRE=FEZEM 32,487 30,660
Less: loss allowance A EEIEEE (323) (362)
Trade receivables - net U E ZERR— P58 32,164 30,298
Prepayments FEfIRIE 12,434 11,794
VAT recoverable A U [E] g E R 737 1,103
Other receivables Hith g RIE 873 2,019
Amount due from an associate FEUR B = AR RIB 3 10
Loan to an associate (Note (b)) HBFBERNTZER
(Ft 5% (b)) 120 122
46,331 45,346
Less: non-current portion B FERNERER
— Prepayment for plant and equipment —BE MR BEMRIE (2,718) (3,711)
Current portion BVEAER 7 43,613 41,635

Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the
purchase of raw materials and plant and equipment.

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values due to their short maturity.

BANRETEZEMRBREMEERE &

REBAMBRIE

HREAREE  *EBEWE SRR KRH
thEWRIEZ REEREAFERE -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period
to certain customers, subject to the satisfactory results of credit
assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based on
invoice date is as follows:

13

&ML & 5 AR 7k B HL fth FE W 7R IR (48)

BB ZERRZEEHNFREINGEE
0K -AEMAMEFEFRHBERRE
B MEZRREENEZREER -
KB ZRFIZEZ AR ZRENT ¢

2021 2020

—E_—F —EBCBF

Us$'000 us$'000

FE7T FE7

0 - 30 days 0E30X 21,790 20,880
31 -90 days 31FE90K 9,694 8,292
91 — 180 days 91FE 180K 368 284
181 — 365 days 181E 365K 124 829
Over 365 days 365Kk E 511 375
32,487 30,660

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2020 and
2021 are the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are

P& W B 53 Bl R EL fth FE U R IR (48)
& U B 5 BR 7R B HL th FE W R IR 2 AR T B

denominated in the following currencies: BTHEEEE !

2021 2020
—E-—F “EIEE
Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE
Vietnam Dong HrEE 20,614 21,818
us$ E7T 15,782 14,703
Renminbi AR 9,761 8,711
Others Hith 174 114
46,331 45,346

(a) Loss allowance of trade receivables (a) EWERERRZEEERE

FEBEREBMBREEDNE
REEHEABRPEERE B
FRERKE ZRRKA2IERES
BEH-

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

B —FR-FEFF+A
=t—BZEKREZERRZERES
BRERAFVNERBERZHRN

The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 reconciles to the opening loss
allowance as follows:

T
2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7T
Opening loss allowance R—A—HBZE¥EE
as at 1 January BE 362 488
Decrease in loss allowance RERGE W@ RPER
recognised in consolidated income ZEEBEHERD
statement during the year (39) (126)
Closing loss allowance BW+ZB=+—HB2
as at 31 December FREERE 323 362
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Loss allowance of trade receivables (continued)

The provision for credit loss of receivables have been
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

Loan to an associate

As at 31 December 2021, the loan to an associate of
US$120,000 (2020: US$122,000) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4.5% (2020: 4%) per annum,
denominated in US$ and repayable on demand with
three-day notice.
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&ML & 5 AR 7k B HL fth FE W 7R IR (48)

(a)

(b)

FEWE B IR ZBIREE (8
MERRRGEEBEFHNEAER
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BHEROBNEE-RNEREX
W EE % RS FHEE -
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 14 HERBESZEY -SEBNEBREE
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS T ERRITERRIRIIRITER
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

2021 2020
—T-—F ZEITE
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FEx
Short-term bank deposits with original REfHABB=EBRAZ
maturity over three months FEHARITERK - 21,111
Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) EIRIRITER (HF5EG)) 1,075 706
Structured bank deposits (note (b)) EREIRITER (MIEEDb)) 2,533 7,982
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERE 66,136 42,359
69,744 72,158
As at 31 December 2021, cash at banks of US$66,003,000 RZE-_—-—F+"HB=+—QH #&17
(2020: US$42,181,000) and bank deposits of US$3,608,000 I8%66,003,000F T (ZEZTF .
(2020: US$29,799,000) were exposed to credit risk. 42,181,000 7T) K IR1T1F3,608,0003
7T (ZE T 29,799,000 ) @RS
BRkE-
The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts of BE R EISRITAR A 2B £16,978,0005% 75
US$16,978,000 (2020: US$16,631,000) and Vietnam bank (ZEBE-Z4%F 16,631,000 7)) REH
accounts of US$52,973,000 (2020: US$51,521,000) is subject WMEIRITIRE 2B $52,973,000% T (=
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese T ”Z 4 151,521,000 7T) B RESF
governments, respectively. PR e i 7 1B T B9 91 BE B I FE B ©
The Group's cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank FEBZRERREEEY  RREITHE
deposits, pledged bank deposits and structured bank deposits PRI ER ARG RITERENY
are denominated in the following currencies: TEBHE:
2021 2020
T —=F —ETEE
uss$‘000 Us$'000
F=x FE
Vietnam Dong HEE 31,571 34,325
us$ ETT 25,495 19,844
Renminbi N 11,468 15,770
Hong Kong dollar BT 107 74
New Taiwan dollar mes 966 2,143
Others Hith 137 2
69,744 72,158
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 14 RERRELEEBY - EEBEERTE
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS M IEEASRITE R R AR IR IRITFER
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued) (48)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end REIEHFR AEBZEREREHIIN
of the reporting period were as follows: T
2021 2020
T —F —B_BF
Short-term bank deposits with original HEfHABBR=EBRAZ
maturity over three months FEHARITERK N/AFRER 5.0%
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) IEHEIRITIEM
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank balances A _E_—F+"_HBA=+—H"'%&K
amounting to US$1,075,000 (2020: US$706,000) were EEMIRITAEHR1,075,000% 7T (Z
deposited at designated bank accounts in certain banks T T HF :706,000E5T) H1ESE
as guarantee deposits for certain letter of credits released FREREREENETERENE
to the Group's customers. RERERSE TIRITHIETIRITIR
Bo
(b) Structured bank deposits (b) #EBMIRITEMR
As at 31 December 2021, the structured bank deposits RIEZ—F+ZB=+—H %
amounting to US$2,533,000 (2020: US$7,982,000) BMIRITEH2,533,000% % (ZF
represents wealth management products issued by — T 7,982,000 7)) AHEE
certain reputable banks in PRC with guaranteed principal, THLIBITETNETER B
variable interest and terms less than 182 days. Changes EREFEREIE - FHME B
in fair value of these investments were recognised in RLORI8 2K - ZEKRENATE
“other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated income BERGERERERS THK
statement. &,/ (B538) — 3% °
15 SHARE CAPITAL 15 BRZs
Authorised ordinary shares
EELBE
Par value Number
uss of shares uss$‘000
EEET R EE FEr
At 1 January 2020, e SR S
31 December 2020, “ZIZFE+ZA=+—8"
1 January 2021 and “E_—-#%—-HF—-HkK
31 December 2021 - —%+-B=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

BERTREBRLER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
EEXT i1 8 E FEx
At 1 January 2020, e SR S

31 December 2020, —EZ-EFE+-A=+—A8"
1 January 2021 and “_E_—-#—HF—-HEK
31 December 2021 _E_—%+"A=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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16 RESERVES 16 (#fE
Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
RMEE ERMEE SoE  EEHRE  GRIERN At
(MiEk@) (kb))
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEr TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2020 A_E-TE—-F—H 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 272,286
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year AEERR - - - - 16,650 16,650
Other comprehensive income  Hfti2HEIKA
Currency translation differences ERZ%E - 3,102 - - - 3,102
Total comprehensive income  2EUNA L - 3,102 - - 16,650 19,752
Total transactions with HBEBAZERZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) ENRE (fiz24) - - - - (6,206) (6,206)
At 31 December 2020 A_ETERE
+ZB=+—-H 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 285,832
At 1 January 2021 A _E_—F—HF—H 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 285,832
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year AEERR N = - - 11,014 11,014
Other comprehensive income  Effi2EKA
Currency translation differences ERZH - 907 - - - 907
Total comprehensive income  2EWALLE - 907 - - 11,014 11,921
Total transactions with HBEBEAZERZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) ENRE (fiz24) - - - - (11,192) (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve % EHHENHE - - - 46 (46) -
At 31 December 2021 RZI2Z—-%
+ZB=+—-H 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 286,561
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16 RESERVES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor.

Statutory reserve

The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.

17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER

f#th
ER

16

(a)

(b)

()

A

FEENGHEBERER-_ZZ-F
TR HRBRMNEREARMKE
MEBARNKRAEERRDEERER
BIMETKMMBETZRAEENE
e

PEABARRERABFMNZI0%EEE
A BEEAHSERATDEMES
Z50% - EIERA KRR HLE  EE QTS
BT B A LR R et AR EIE M A B &
MEL FIRRABRARSAERNA
BlEEME A& 125% °

17 BEESRR - EAERREME

PAYABLES MIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEE
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=x FEx
Current ENHA
Trade payables FE {1 B 5 BRFR 17,510 6,963
Accruals FEst& A 10,596 9,096
Payable of purchase of property, FEEEYE -BEK
plant and equipment and U R RS R AR IE
construction costs 476 1,466
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) aHaE (@) 5,885 4,230
Other payables Hh g FRIE 4,359 5,873
Total trade payables, accruals and FET B SRR FESt & A
other payables KB M AE (I FRIB4a%E 38,826 27,628
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FEE SR EtERREMEMS
mMIE (48)

KRB - -—&#R_-_ZE_SE+_-8
SR ENESEREEEAME

17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 17
PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing of trade payables
based on invoice date is as follows:

g

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECEHF

us$'000 Us$'000

FET FE7

0 - 30 days 0FE30K 16,851 5,515
31 - 90 days 31E90K 659 1,448
17,510 6,963

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following

FEBZENEZRT Bt BEAKREM
EARIEZ REEE T EHEEHE :

currencies:

2021 2020
—E_—F —EBCBF
us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE=T
Vietnam Dong i fE 20,022 13,661
us$ E7T 12,696 8,369
New Taiwan Dollar et 24 24
Renminbi AR 5,995 5,522
Others Hith 89 52
38,826 27,628

(a) Contract liabilities (a) AHEafE

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits EHNEBEFERXRRINFRERZE

mifEZ AR LA RA R W
HEREMRATEFREL

or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.
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18 BANK BORROWINGS 18 RITEE
2021 2020
—E_—F —Z2TEHF
US$°000 Us$'000
F=T FEx
Non-current JEBNHA
- Long-term bank borrowings —RBPRITEE
- secured — B 12,856 13,501
— Long-term bank borrowings —RHARITHEE
— unsecured — I 1,776 6,164
Less: current portion of long-term A REARITEEZ
bank borrowings BRERER 3 (5,985) (5,679)
8,647 13,986
Current BNHA
— Short-term bank borrowings —fSHIRITEE
- secured — B 15,698 18,061
— Short-term bank borrowings —iRHARITEE
— unsecured —\EIEH 9,978 8,633
— Current portion of long-term —RBRITEEZ
bank borrowings — secured BNERER 9 — B IR R 4,776 1,291
— Current portion of long-term —RERITEEZ
bank borrowings — unsecured BNHERER 7> — M IE R 1,209 4,388
31,661 32,373
Total bank borrowings RITHEE®EE 40,308 46,359

184 vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MR EE

18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 18

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's bank borrowings
were repayable as follows:

IR{TEE (])
R-_B-_-—GR-_ZF_FH+_-H
=t—B AEEZRITEERRUTH

IEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —EIEE

us$’'000 Us$'000

FET FE7

Within 1 year 1R 31,661 32,373
Between 1 and 2 years 1FEE2F 5,216 5,536
Between 2 and 5 years 2EFESE 3,431 7,786
Over 5 years SEME - 664
40,308 46,359

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

FO8R 45 1 ok 7 o 4 5 P I Y B0 S g
BRANEFRTEABOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —_EEF

Us$‘000 Us$'000

F=T TE7T

Within 6 months FEVENR 27,861 29,533
Between 7 and 12 months 7E128 8 3,800 2,840
Between 1 and 5 years 1255 8,647 13,322
Over 5 years SEL E - 664
40,308 46,359

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair values.

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group’s

FERBEZREEEEATERES

RESHR cEBREEZERERN XN

borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: B
2021 2020
—_EB_—F g 5
uss$ ETT 1.1% 1.7%
New Taiwan dollar ma 1.8% 1.8%
Renminbi AR 4.6% N/AT3E
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18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

18

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

IRITEE (8

FEBRBEZREERUTERSE:

2021 2020
—T-—F ZEITE
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FEx
us$ ETT 38,088 44,254
New Taiwan dollar etk 1,436 2,105
Renminbi AR 784 -
40,308 46,359
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: TEBREUTRIZERABEME !
2021 2020
T —F ZEITHE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Floating rate: RS
— Expiring within one year —R—FERIEH 117,023 105,480
— Expiring beyond one year —R—FE3 32,740 31,748
Fixed rate: EE
— Expiring within one year —R—EREH 12,664 6,100
— Expiring beyond one year —R—FEEB3H 11,035 9,299
173,462 152,627

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$213,770,000 (2020:
US$203,162,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2021 amounted to US$173,462,000 (2020: US$152,627,000).
Among them, US$110,258,000 (2020: US$98,658,000) and
US$8,622,000 (2020: Nil) of the unutilised bank facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and
pledged by the Group’s buildings with carrying amount of
US$3,603,000 (2020: Nil) (Note 6), respectively.
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

19 JBHEFREM
I A FFF 4590 T 1R 2 5% LA A 46 [
FEBRENNEERERFEERE
@it E-

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: IRIEFRSIRBEZ2WAT !
2021 2020
—E_—F —EBCBF
us$’'000 Us$'000
FE=T FE7T
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —BRiEBE12E A % UkE
recovered after more than 12 months ZIREFIERARE 1,665 2,134
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as IRIEFTSRBREENFREN T -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEHF
uUs$’000 Us$'000
FE=T F=T
At 1 January w—HB—H 2,134 2,705
Credited to consolidated income AR ERER (HaE23)
statement (Note 23) (469) (571)
At 31 December ®W+=ZA=+—H 1,665 2,134

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

FEFEEBREFRSREERER (Rt RIE
HABRRBR B AR ENBERAD NEFHM
T

BIEFRSRER

Accelerated tax depreciation

MIERFRIEITE
2021 2020
—EZ—F TETEF
US$’000 Us$'000
FE7 FE
At 1 January w—RB—H 3,818 4,362
Charged to consolidated income statement 4R & U R AN (420) (544)
At 31 December W+-HA=+—H 3,398 3,818
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets

Other temporary differences

Hth g =58
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEHF
us$’'000 Us$'000
FE=7 FE1
At 1 January w—HA—H (1,684) (1,657)
Credited to consolidated income statement st ALZEUZEER (49) (27)
At 31 December ®w+ZBA=+—H (1,733) (1,684)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$1,122,000 (2020: US$1,055,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries are intended to reinvest
to expand PRC markets.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
unrecognised deferred income tax assets of US$166,000 in
respect of the unrecognised tax loss of US$662,000 which will
expire within five years.

There is no unrecognised deferred income tax assets for tax loss
for the Group as at 31 December 2021.
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EEZHEMBAR R HAELZY
BRIZZEAKRAER T R #E > S
BN ERNEERRRIEFERAaE
1,122,000 7t (ZZTZF £ : 1,055,000
Em) cHENB AT RELNEAE
EBRBELIRBHEMNS

FREFBRMEENREARBI RIS
BARKRERMENSIRFRFASENR
HEEFHEI R _E_TE+_-4
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EHA -
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20 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 20 Hfthdgzs ~ (B548) — B8

2021 2020

—E_—F —ZETEHF

US$’000 US$'000

TxT FEx

Net exchange gains BE 2 U 2 0P BB 387 137
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEME BMERSREZ

and equipment Wi (B518) 47 (37)

Impairment of property, plant and ME- -BERSZERE

equipment = (786)

Sales of scrap materials BE ) EH 240 290

Government grant BT # B 96 32

Impairment of goodwill (Note 8) EmERE (MEE8) — (3,107)
Fair value gains on structured EEMIRTERZATE

bank deposits & 151 173

Others Hith 714 432

1,635 (2,866)
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21 EXPENSES BY NATURE 21 BUESEZHAR
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HEM A HE R HA RITE T
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BEZAZARWT
2021 2020
—T-—F ZEITE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Changes in inventories and FERERBEELES

consumables used (Note 12) (FFE12) 271,177 240,361
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8)  E B E & (H:E8) 127 114
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) {FAEEE#HRHE (5E7) 405 280
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B & B
—Audit services —ZH AR 355 353
—Non-audit services —IEIZEARTS 4 4
Depreciation on property, plant and ME- -BERZEITE

equipment (Note 6) GE)) 17,679 18,048
Reversal of impairment of inventories EFEREED (FF12)

(Note 12) (113) (50)
Write-off of inventory (Note 12) MiEEFES (M5E12) 16 3
Expense relating to short-term lease RIS ERRMNRES 47 43
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EERMEX (MsE26) 45,384 40,684
Reversal of loss allowance of U E Z R e IR E 2

trade receivables (Note 13) £ (fsE13) (39) (126)
Technical support fee (Note 32(b)) BMiZEE (MzE32()) 2,210 2,164
Travelling expenses ERFS 1,270 1,519
Transportation expenses RiBHEE 11,714 8,330
Advertising expenses EEHX 3,115 4,389
Repair and maintenance expenses HENFRERS 9,890 12,308
Other expenses HfA 5,773 6,572
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution $§E& RS~ $HE R D 84

expenses and administrative expenses X RITE 4858 369,014 334,996
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22 FINANCE INCOME - NET

MU A — B R

2021 2020

—EZ—F —EIEHF

Us$’000 Us$'000

F=T FET

Bank interest income RITH B UA 562 724
Interest income from an associate KE—EBERTZ

F B U A 7 4

Finance income B U A 569 728

Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEFEMAZ (469) (763)

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaRFERXE (92) (89)

Less: amounts capitalised on W EEREE
qualifying assets (Note 6) BAR{RE

(MizEe) 225 379

Finance costs M H (336) (473)

Finance income — net WA —F %8 233 255
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23 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 23 FRfSMAX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated wA ZMIEMFER LT RERREF Z A
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing EEEEMERRZIRITRESHE

in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income RiFEWEmRANBRZ TSR EEEIE -
statement represents:

2021 2020
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FE
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") HEMER 4,465 6,074
Over-provision of income tax in BEFEMESMBERE
previous years (14) (163)
Total current tax BVHAFRIE 48 28 4,451 5911
Deferred income tax (Note 19) EIEFTSHE (FEEE19) (469) (571)
3,982 5,340
The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax AEEGAMERAIGNNMEREMES
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using HRAAEBRTENB QB HEKRTNE
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major AREMAENERMAAR > &I W
subsidiary of the Group, as follows: I
2021 2020
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FE73T FE
Profit before income tax PRETIS TR A& F 15,014 22,017
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% BI15% 2 MEHBEZRIE
(2020: 15%) (ZBZZTF 1 15%) 2,252 3,303
Tax effects of different tax rates TEMEZMBLE 1,763 1,536
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ENGIE L d 5 172 1,061
Income not subject to tax BARTUA (25) (196)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised R 2RI R ERRITEE
tax losses (166) (201)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEER (14) (163)
Income tax expenses FrigfR 3,982 5,340
EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial T EFEREM R RN AT &AM
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items B> BRFAERNBARR AR IR
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. WEZIEBEHAEEE -
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23

24

FA 75 ¥R R Bt 5

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

23 FRIEMMAX (4B)

(i) Vietnam (i) #mE
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s principal EMB AN B EREIR
operations in Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax FEETHENETEZEZFZNERE
rate offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated EFFBREAIS%  BEEAREKAR
in the subsidiary’s investment license. For non-principal BMEERAETHNEERE
operation in Vietnam, the applicable EIT rate for the HNEFEXBEMs  ~EENER
Group is 20%. EMERER20%-
(ii) The PRC (i) HE
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operation in the AEBETEPENEZNERDERR
PRC is 25%. TRER25% -
(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia (i) #oEEFERIHER
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been ERAEBERAFEELEEHMM
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit W EB R RIER BN ES T
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and FESR#UE T > (R 1L 3 £ 1F & 37 00 3%
Cambodia during the year. SER RIBEFEREE
(iv) Taiwan (iv) &#&
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in AEBERENERNEREERR
Taiwan is 20%. BTRERH20%-
DIVIDENDS 24 BB
A final dividend of US$7,040,000 that relates to the year ended ERAEE_T-_ZEHF+_HA=+—HL
31 December 2020 was declared on 18 May 2021 and was paid FEZRHARKRET,040,000E 7T (ZEZ
in June 2021 (2020: US$3,259,000). T 1 3,259,000 7T) E',ﬁ\:g:—ﬁﬁ
B+NHERERZZZ—FXAFU
F Ao
The interim dividends paid in 2021 was US$4,152,000 (0.272 RIZIZZI—FEXNWNHPHERBEE S
US cents per share) (2020: US$2,947,000 (0.194 US cents 4,152, ooo%’ém (BR0.272%) (Z&Z
per share)). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 T4 12,947,000 75 (0. 1943E1)) ©
December 2021 of 0.162 US cents per share, amounting to a BREERRAEART LR E MUHEIIE
total dividend of US$2,466,000, is to be proposed for approval NBEE_E-_—F+ZHA=1+—HILHF
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated ENXREKREAESR0.162F M REAR
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. REEE2,466,000E T RSB M BEHREK
I R BREZ FE (T AR 2. o
2021 2020
—T-—F —ZETEHF
uss$‘000 Us$'000
F=ET FEx
Interim dividend paid of 0.272 US cents TP EARESRK
(2020: 0.194 US cents) E@AR0.272%4
per ordinary share (ZBE-EF:
0. 194%%) 4,152 2,947
Proposed final dividend of 0.162 US cents  #IRRHAG B SR LB
(2020: 0.462 US cents) 0. 162%%
per ordinary share (ZCE-BHF
0.4623Al) 2,466 7,040
6,618 9,987
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25 EARNINGS PER SHARE 25 SkEF
(a) Basic (a) E&
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the EREARBIBREAREER AEML
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the AU FEANBETEBRAME
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue THEEHE

during the year.

2021 2020
T —F ZEITE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Profit attributable to owners of the RATEB ANELGER
Company (US$'000) (F=Em) 11,014 16,650
Weighted average number EETEERNME
of ordinary shares in issue FHH (TR
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share (US cents BREAER (FREW
per share) 0.72 1.09
(b) Diluted (b) 8
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per BE_Z_—FRIZEZEF+Z
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years B=+—HBLEEE BHRILEEE
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. TE HeRBERINESRER
BAAER
26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 26 EEEFAX (BIBEFHM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2021 2020
=T —F ZEITE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE R &2 37,062 32,290
Bonus TE4L 1,634 2,311
Pension costs BARER AR
- defined contribution plans —EERMRETE 3,062 2,944
Other employee benefits HitEBEF 3,626 3,139
45,384 40,684
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of

services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly

27 EBHREMERME
RBHEFHEREE *EFBENZ
EZNF+__A=+—HIUAEAN
BEEESRHEEENBRARESFE -ZF
BHEUEER_ZETNE+A=+—
BZRBEFHRRERS B NEAR

salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. MM FEHSBHEL-

2021 2020
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FE7
As at 1 January w—B—H 1,460 1,414
Current service cost BNERRR 5 RE 2 125 141
Payments INEN (80) (95)
As at 31 December w+-—B=+—H 1,505 1,460

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FrERANETERERRNOT !
2021 2020
Discount rate TIRE 9% 9%
Salary growth rate HERREX 4.5% - 6.9% 4.5% - 6.9%
Expected years of service remaining TEEARIER AR TS IR 14-16 yearst 15-17 yearsfE

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

REH_ZETNF-—A—BEERZE
EMHERBRE FERRAHERES
BEREEZESHGREEFLHME
Mo REHZEHME  FEBBEEt
IREE - ZFEERN A A FHRDS
EERAMX-
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EFREMRED (FRQEGRG (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) $3831% A8 (KEEEHN
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE mEH) H (35622GE) REAL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRARE Z K E)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EEFERSRITHAEZMNE
The remuneration of every director and the chief BESERERITHAEZHNET
executive is set out below: mE
For the year ended 31 December 2021: g§E—_T-_—F+ZHA=+—HL
FE
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement o its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
RESHE
BRARFH
& HWBAIEH
i3 ERRENER BAERHE MEMRBEMD
Name of Director g2 ne (Hf3ta) RBTA (Fft3tb) MR ERZEMHE At
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F#T FET FET TR FER F#57 F#T
Executive Director BTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung RRELE 1 343 257 17 - - 618
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) #3354 (fkc) - 494 258 17 - - 769
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 218 180 17 - - 415
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou wENEE - 181 180 17 - - 378
Non-executive Director FaTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung ERERE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Independent non-executive  BIFEH{TES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBHAE 2 - - 16 - - 18
MIr. Ko, Jim-Chen fof-bicd 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BB 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total EE] 12 1,236 875 180 - - 2,303
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EFEREARED (FEARGRM (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%5) 383K - AT HEEEH
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE mEH) H (385622GE) REAL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAUREZKE) (&)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERITHAEZNE (&)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BHE_Z " ZF+”"HB=+—HL
R
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
HRESHE
ERARFY
B HWBAIEH
i3 ERRENER RINERIHE MEMBRBEND
Name of Director gz g (Kfsta) BRTEL (Hzkb) FfEs ERZzEMHS At
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FE£T FE£n TR TR RE F£57 FE£T
Executive Director RTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung REERE 1 343 499 16 - - 859
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ¢) #3374 (o) - 382 484 16 - - 882
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 216 349 16 - - 581
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou wENEE - 181 349 16 - - 546
Non-executive Director FaTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRRERLE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Independent non-executive  BUFHITES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BREREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBHEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
M. Ko, Jim-Chen AEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BHEREE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total 2o 10 1,122 1,681 176 - - 2,989
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(continued)

ESEMRED (FREARMGRGN (B

622%F) F3831% A8 (KEEEF
mEH) AP (55622GE) REE L
TRAREZIKE) (8)

(A)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to

EERERITHRABZME (&)

Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
EENEAERZRE EEHERAATY
(FRATAAREMBARZES) HMBAREHHERN
BEXAIRKZENE HitRB R ARk H it £ 2% Ch At
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ot Sl 3 T —B°-% —BCER “EC-F “2CZF
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
FET TEx FTEn FEx FER TER
192 186 2,111 2,803 2,303 2,989

Note:

(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind include meeting
attendance allowance.

(c) Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang is also the CEO of the Company, no

separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the
CEO has been made.
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2020: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2020: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2020: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2020: same).

EFENRED (FRQBRGM (B
622EF) F3831% A8 (WEEEF
mEH) AP (55622GE) REE L
HRARE ZIKE) (B)

(B) EZHEMAKEH
BEZ”_—H+”"H=+—HL
FE UEAZEEMNREETELR
BHEMB AR ERATRENR
B AHEMBRAEN CEIEFE:
HEE) o

(CQ) EXEZHKILER
BE_F_—H+”"HA=+—HIL
FE > UWERAESEI LR (2
TTEF D ER)

(D) MIRHEERBEMEB=FRMH
RE
BE_Z”—H+°"H=+—HL
EE UEMREEEREMES
ZHREREBCEZZSE HRE) -

(E) BRMUNES SZREFERTHNZE
ANEBRZEEESNEMEERS
SHANEBER EERREMRS
B &k
BE_Z”_—H+°"HA=+—HL
FE UTENEE TZEEFE
HREANEREZEEETNERE
ERATSEAFHNER EER
REMRZEG (CEZEF  HE) °

(F) EENXZ RHREHDHEKX
g
BRMIsE32FTIREE SN REEER
RAEAFERNTRER > QTR
SIBMAEREBERAMARAE
FEESHEREEARERNEM
BEAXRB RHIAEGH (ZEZE
F AR ©
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2020: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2020: one) individual during the year is as

28

ESEMRED (FREARMGRGN (B
622%F) F3831% A8 (KEEEF
mEH) AP (55622GE) REE L
TRAREZIKE) (8)

(G mAEEMEAL
FERAFENLEESHEAL
BENEG (CE22F  4A) AT
EF REMEEN EXZDF
PR AFERNBAFET—% (2
TTEF %) AEZHFMOT

follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
Us$’000 us$'000
FE7x FET
Wages, basic salaries and T&E KRR,
allowances 151 143
Bonus TE41 48 44
Pension costs — defined BRIRE AR
contribution plans —EfRMHAREE = 3
199 190
The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within BTATZMERRNUTHE

the following band:

Number of individuals

A8
2021 2020
—T_—f —TITHF
US$180,001 to 180,001 %L E
US$205,000 205,000% 7T 1 1
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R MR EE

29

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 HEEWEREBRMFE
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations EBEEZRE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEITHE
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B s TF=T FE7
Profit before income tax PRETIGM AR F] 15,014 22,017
Adjustments for: MUTIEERE .
- Finance income — BB (569) (728)
- Finance costs —MBEEH 336 473
— Share of post-tax loss of —EfE—
an associate REFRE
&5 18 201 1,117
— Write-off of inventories —MEEFEE 16 3
- Reversal of impairment —EOEFESERE
of inventories (113) (50)
— Depreciation of —ME-BEK
property, plant and REITE
equipment 6 17,679 18,048
— Reversal of impairment —ERE Z R
loss of trade REBEEE
receivables 13 (39) (126)
— Amortisation of — B EE#E
intangible assets 8 127 114
— Amortisation of right- — R EEEH
of-use assets 7 405 280
— Impairment of property, —ME-BEX
plant and equipment RERE 6 - 786
— (Gain)/loss on disposal —HEWE -BE
of property, plant and KEz ()
equipment /518 20 (47) 37
— Realised fair value gain —HEBEIRITER
on structured bank 2 BER
deposits NFEEWE (145) (155)
— Unrealised fair value —MEBEIRITER
gain on structured ZAREBL
bank deposits NEFEWE (6) (18)
— Impairment of goodwill —EERE 8 - 3,107
32,859 44,905
Change in working capital EEETEH
(excluding the effects of (RetizalRBESE
exchange differences on ZERERTE)
consolidation)
— Inventories —-E&8 (9,886) 4,210
— Trade receivables, —EURE Z AR
prepayments and FETFRIE &
other receivables HhpEWzhIE (1,948) 6,699
- Trade payables, accruals —ENEZRAR
and other payables FEstERA K
LAt & 1 R IE 12,233 (5,866)
— Net changes in —HEREXRT
balances with related EERZ EH
companies B (1,412) 89
Cash generated from EBELEZRE
operations 31,846 50,037
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This section sets out an analysis of net cash/(debt) and
the movements in net cash/(debt) for each of the periods

29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 BRETERERME (@
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) ¥EBELEZRE B
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EGReRERERN HEWE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BB REEZERIEEE !
2021 2020
—E_—F TEIEE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FxEx
Net book amount (Note 6) IREFE (fsk6) 30 45
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME BEREREZ
plant and equipment (Note 20) Wik (B518)
(M$5¥20) 47 (37)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment IFECE L] 77 8
(b) Net cash/(debt) reconciliation (b) IRE (BT BEZHIER

FEHHINE 2 BMEZRE
(&%) 2FEAINKEE (EH)

presented. HEREH o
Net cash/(debt) R& (B 258
2021 2020
B —F ZEIEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FE7
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 66,136 42,359
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ SR{TEE—R—FREE
one year (31,661) (32,373)
Bank borrowings — repayable after RITEE-NR—FRER
one year (8,647) (13,986)
Lease liabilities — current portion HESGE-RHEIES (369) (199)
Lease liabilities — non-current portion A& &&E—JERNEAE S (2,650) (2,818)
Net cash/(debt) RE/ (B F5B 22,809 (7,017)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 66,136 42,359
Gross debt — fixed interest rates EFMEE-EERE (11,013) (9,633)
Gross debt — variable interest rates EFLERE—ZHFEX (32,314) (39,743)
Net cash/(debt) R& (&) FHE 22,809 (7,017)
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 IZERERERME B
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Net cash/(debt) reconciliation (continued) (b) WE (B FEZHIK @)

Liabilities from
financing activities

REMEEHZER
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion

R—FREE R-FRIH HEaR HEaR

ZiRTEE ZiRTEE —EHRES RS
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEn TEn FER TER
Balance as at 1 January 2020 WR-ZZEHF
—B—BZ&k (24,748) (15,376) (111) (3,016)
Cash (inflows)/outflows B& GRA) /it (1,824) (4,413) 114 -
Non-cash flow movements: ERERELH
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMNEFEE 2 - - -
Interest expense on lease HESGENERS
liabilities - - (89) -
Other non-cash movement HitFREEH (5,803) 5,803 (113) 198
Balance as at RZEZ%F
31 December 2020 +ZB=+-Hz
@& (32,373) (13,986) (199) (2,818)
Cash outflows/(inflows) Bemd,/ GRA) 6,709 (646) 375 -
Non-cash flow movements: ERERELE) .
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEZFEE (12) - 5 -
Interest expense on lease HESENERY
liabilities - - (92)
Other non-cash movement HtERSEE (5,985) 5,985 (458) 168
Balance as at RZIBZ-%
31 December 2021 +ZB=+—-Hz2
KR (31,661) (8,647) (369) (2,650)
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30 COMMITMENTS 30

The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

T

FEERRSPRETNERELEZE
RZHMTF

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEE
us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE
Contracted but not provided for BRI NEXRER

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERSZE 2,302 4,442

Investment in an associate (Note 10) R—REBEATZ
BE (fsE10) 112 112
2,414 4,554

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 FHAER

At 31 December 2021, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$138,028,000
(2020: US$131,600,000), of which US$110,258,000 (2020:
US$91,827,000) has not been utilised.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

RIEZ—F+ZRA=+—H &xRr8%
/B AT 24%0138,028,000E 7T (ZFE =
T 1 131,600,000%7T) ZRITREIR
1R > HH110,258,0005% T (ZE-Z
£ 191,827,000 7T) MAREA

BEREALRS
FERRRERSAGRKE HRES®
BEHRBEEEBERE - BXERE
ISR E BN T E B R ERE
BRXEE - BXHEE - BREE B
X HRBRERGRIBER -

@) TN _—_E-_—F+=A4
=t+—HZEREALTKREHAKE

December 2021: EREEMEE !

Related party Relationship with the Group

BREATL BAREE %

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan”) A substantial shareholder of the Company
RAEERGBRAR (T8EKA) KABNEERR

Vedan Biotechnology Corporation (“Vedan Bio") A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
RAEMRERMAERAE (A EMRE) —HERGERELERZERNZAE

Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Group

EMEEZERERAR NEENKERT

Capron Group Limited A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
Capron Group Limited —HEBEREERZEGZ AT
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 FREALZS (@
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) HEAEEBEXEHEBREPETNE
out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as ABRAEALIRZOT :

follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F BT HF
Note US$°000 Us$'000
Mt =x F=T FE=T
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan MEeEKRAEEGR (i) 7,761 10,982
Purchase of goods from Taiwan HEeEKRAREER
Vedan (i) 1 5,856
Sale of goods to Vedan Bio B EMREHE
a&m 0) 322 12
Technical support fee paid to A& &K 2Rl
Taiwan Vedan ZiEE (ii) 2,210 2,164
Agency commission income [\ & &R UER S
received from Taiwan Vedan REBRSWA (ii) 2 2

Notes: MEsE :

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to/ (i) ERBEERE  REBBRAGR
purchases from the related parties were conducted in BERMEATEHZHE BE
the normal course of business in accordance with the MEATRBEATHEERBRE
underlying terms. LT o

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i AATDEERA ZEXRHEH
transactions were carried out in the normal course of BEBBREPET LHIREME
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the A SR AV IR AR UL & o

terms of underlying agreements.

() Key management compensation (00 FEEEASHS
The compensation paid or payable to key management, MEERBEARECSEEEEA
including all executive directors and senior management, B (BEMBERTESRERER
for employee services is shown below. @) Z &M -
2021 2020
T —F ZEITHE
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Salaries and other short-term FEREMSHEERT
employee benefits 3,305 4,161
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

32 FERAEALRZS (@)

(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) HBEREALZEREGLR
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had the A B —EFERE_EE+_RH
following significant balances with the related parties: =+—B FAEEEFREALZ
FEEHRUWT -
2021 2020
—E-—F “ETEE
Note Us$’000 US$'000
B s F=T FE7T
Current: BNHA :
Amount due from Taiwan FEUR & IR TR IE
Vedan (i) 1,442 850
Amount due from Vedan Bio FE Wk £ E R
Mg (if) = 12
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FE{T & E IR RIS (i) (505) (1,328)
Loan to an associate BT —HEBERTZ
=N (iii) 120 122
Amount due from an associate FEU — R B E AT
RIE (iv) 3 10
Amount due to Capron Group F&{$Capron Group
Limited LimitedZz #x 18 (v) (12) (30)
Notes: MisE :

(if)

(iii)

(v)

All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of payment.

The balance with Vedan Bio is unsecured, interest-free and
has no fixed terms of payment.

The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at
4.5% (2020: 4%) per annum, denominated in US$ and
repayable on demand with three-day notice.

The balance represents interest receivable from an
associate.

The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.
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4%) TR MUETHHE MAR=
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(iii)
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(iv)
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

FAREERAERRFEEGED

ERREERER

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E—F —E°E
Note Us$’000 US$'000
B 5 FEmT FE7
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZIRE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REE AR ZRE 4,702 4,903
Loan to a subsidiary BTFWBATIZER 125 500
Total non-current assets ERBEELEE 170,857 171,433
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS MY /8 A B FRIE 50,987 70,070
Amount due from a related party FEUR A Bl A\ T FRIE 25 34
Amount due from an associate & YR B i A B R IE 3 10
Loan to an associate BTHMEATZER 120 122
Loan to a subsidiary BTFWRBATIZER 75 -
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT FRIE R H At FE UL
EQC 126 655
Short-term bank deposits THARITE AR - 2,929
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 5,014 3,716
Total current assets MBEERE 56,350 77,536
Total assets HEMRE 227,207 248,969
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of P NETEZ TN
the Company FE(L iR
Share capital &N 15,228 15,228
Reserves HE (Note(a))
(Hi5E(a)) 207,576 227,035
Total equity W 4AEE 222,804 242,263
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FATIEEEBRREEESR (B
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

FRAREERER (B

As at 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEE
Note UsS$°'000 Us$'000
B 5% FET FE7
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables i =0
H M AE =R 2,457 3,270
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,436 2,105
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFRIEMEE 5 3
Amount due to a related party e BRIEANLRIE 505 1,328
Total current liabilities REIBEEEEE 4,403 6,706
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEMEEE 227,207 248,969

AAREEEBREEESTEN
_E=ZA_+_HABMITBHTIAL

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 22 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung

REREZ-

Yang, Kun-Hsiang

1B EE I i
Director Director
EE EE
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FATIEEEBRREEER (@)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TRTEEREBR (@)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company M5t (a)ds A B B 2 &Y
Share
premium and Exchange Retained
other reserve reserve earnings Total
B iRER
HifEE EREHE REET 4a%E
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FE FE53 FE7T
At 1 January 2020 RIZEZZEF—H—H 194,098 (12) 18,293 212,379
Comprehensive income Ei1 N
Profit for the year KEEEF - - 20,686 20,686
Other comprehensive income Hfth2EUTA
Currency translation difference  ERZEZXE - 176 - 176
Total comprehensive income  ZHEUALEEE - 176 20,686 20,862
Dividends paid ENKRE - - (6,206) (6,206)
At 31 December 2020 NI _THFE
+ZA=+—8H 194,098 164 32,773 227,035
At 1 January 2021 REZ2_—F—H—H 194,098 164 32,773 227,035
Comprehensive loss 2HEAE
Loss for the year KEERFIE - - (8,327) (8,327)
Other comprehensive income Htt2EUWA
Currency translation difference  EERZXE - 60 - 60
Total comprehensive loss 2HEERREE - 60 (8,327) (8,267)
Dividends paid BERRE - - (11,192) (11,192)
At 31 December 2021 RIZEZ—%F
+=ZB=+—H 194,098 224 13,254 207,576
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hFEMBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 BE+_-_BA=1+—HIEEEGSEE

DECEMBER
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B C"T-TFE "TB-hE "EBE-)N\E ZT—+t#H
USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FE£T FE3T
Revenue g 2% 382,361 360,741 357,857 356,772 322,805
Profit before bRFTS AT
income tax pagl 15,014 22,017 19,813 22,007 23,308
Income tax expense Frisfims (3,982) (5,340) (4,228) (4,613) (4,570)
Profit attributable to KATEEBA
owners of FE (L E R
the Company 11,014 16,650 15,563 14,285 19,061
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 B+-—B=+—HEFEEEREGE
DECEMBER
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B C"TB-E “E-hE E-NE ET—tfF
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FE73 FE73 T3 T3
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Total assets BEMBE 389,147 386,539 369,476 367,805 358,701
Total liabilities BE4E%E (87,130) (85,269) (81,749) (81,123) (76,118)
Total equity HEAEEE 302,017 301,270 287,727 286,682 282,583
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Reference for Shareholders

RER2EEH

Place of Listing : Main Board of Nulsrb: L BEBRMER
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

Stock Code & 17 X 5%

HKExX © 02317 Bt 32X P o 02317

Access to Bloomberg : 2317 HK Equity EAE ] © 2317 HK Equity

Access to Reuters ©2317.HK BIBEMhRE © 2317.HK
Board Lot © 4,000 BEEEB : 4,000
Par Value © US$0.01 EE © 0.01%7T
Trading Currency © HKD RZ G BT
FINANCIAL CALENDAR MBITEE
Financial year ended 31 December 2021 2EXEEEH —_E_—F+”ZRB=+—H
Full year results announced 22 March 2022 Z2FEERMH T _HF=AZ+ZH
Annual general meeting 24 May 2022 REREAEXRE - _HFHAZ+MEH
Interim results to be announced In the last week of ~ HHREE R M —E”F)N\A

August 2022* =B —(EEH*

* subject to change * BEHEE
SHAREHOLDER SERVICES B 3R AR #5
For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the FAEMRMNBE LB Z2EH  FHIBEA
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar: BzEBRMBREERLDE !
Tricor Tengis Limited BEEZREERAT
Level 54, Hopewell Centre &%
183 Queen’s Road East ERAKER183H
Hong Kong AP L5418
Telephone : (852) 2980 1768 E:E 1(852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158 {8H :(852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong FEXRATRMDZ AL BB FHRIR
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses. BHRESERMBRERLDE
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Investor Relations

KREERME

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and was proactive
in dispatching the latest information of its business to investors.
Information about an environmental issue related to its Vietnam
operation was relayed to investors. This is in line with the Group’s
commitment to keep up open and transparent communication as well
as ensuring that investors fully understand its operations in order for
them to make sound investment decisions.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com.

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com.

212 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited BkFFEIRR (HERE) BIRAT

REEMF

—BELMR EEBNUTXRIBHNEERER
BEEMRETRERFNERE WEESHAER
BESRER URBKREAMEBMNERRE R
ZRAM UBREEEEAMREERGO-

REEFERN SEEEEYTHARBRE
BENTERGR RBARIFIOKEEHRHR
MERAREBHE EnlEmENRREER
HREEBMRRNA IREFEENAFHEAE
B BREERD THRABREERT  FHR
ERRERE

F—rhE EEBBRELEAREERFTESE
HARNERRBEMAS - FREPAEERS
REBESHEREER@L BREETHER
ERNEMEFR VIEREENTE - ABH

A% Thttp://www.vedaninternational.com ©

FAEREFTREEEENEERHES
EREIDMEREEEAIREE R F IR AR

vdi@vedaninternational.com.
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